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Part |
Iltem 1. Business.
General

AMC Networks Inc. is a Delaware corporation withr qarincipal executive offices at 11 Penn Plaza, Néavk, NY 10001. AMC
Networks Inc. is a holding company and conductsstuttially all of its operations through its suligites. Unless the context otherw
requires, all references to “we,” “our,” “us,” “AMGletworks” or the “Companytefer to AMC Networks Inc., together with its diteanc
indirect subsidiaries. “AMC Networks Inc.” refers AMC Networks Inc. individually as a separate gntOur telephone number is (212) 324
8500. Our internet address is http://www.amcnetwamdm and the investor relations section of our siebis located
http://investor.amcnetworks.com. We make availatoke of charge through the investor relationsisaadf our website, our annual reports
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and aurreports on Form & and amendments to those reports filed or furdghersuant t
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange & 1934, as well as our proxy statements, as s®reasonably practicable after
electronically file such material with, or furnishto, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“3EReferences to our website in 1
Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Repor#ije provided as a convenience and the informatomaned on, or available through,
website is not part of this or any other reportfieewith or furnish to the SEC.

AMC Networks Inc. was incorporated on March 9, 2@klan indirect, whollpwned subsidiary of Cablevision Systems Corpor.
(Cablevision Systems Corporation and its subsieadre referred to as “Cablevision”). On June 6,12@ablevisiors board of directo
approved the distribution of all of the outstanditmmmon stock of the Company to Cablevision shddemns (the “Distribution”)and th
Company thereafter acquired 100% of the limitedility company interests in Rainbow Media HoldingsC (“RMH”), the subsidiary ¢
Cablevision through which Cablevision had histdijcawned the businesses described below. Cabtavispuneff the Company and tl
Company became an independent public company an3y2011, the date of the Distribution. Both @alsdion and AMC Networks contin
to be controlled by Charles F. Dolan, certain merml# his immediate family and certain family relatentities (collectively theDolar
Family”).

Our Company

AMC Networks owns and operates several of cabiyigibn’s most recognized brands delivering high qualityteot to audiences an
valuable platform to distributors and advertisé@mce our founding in 1980, we have been a pioive¢he cable television programm
industry, having created or developed some ofrilastry’s leading programming networks. Since our incepfiiecluding through our creati
of Bravo (in 1980), which we sold to NBC Univergal2002, and AMC (in 1984), we have focused on pouning of film and origin:
productions. We have continued our dedication tlitguprogramming and storytelling through our d¢iea of The Independent Film Chan
(today known as IFC) in 1994 and WE tv (which wenlehed as Romance Classics in 1997) and our atquisif Sundance Channel in Ji
2008.

We manage our business through two reportable tpgraegments: (i) National Networks, which incladaMC, WE tv, IFC an
Sundance Channel; and (i) International and Otivaich includes AMC/Sundance Channel Global, oterimational programming busine
IFC Films, our independent film distribution busise and AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology, oetwork technical servic
business. Our National Networks are distribute@ughout the United States (“U.S¥)a cable and other multichannel video programt
distribution platforms, including direct broadcasatellite (“DBS”) and platforms operated by telecommunications pergid(we refe
collectively to these cable and other multichanwieleo programming distributors as “multichannel eadprogramming distributorsbr
“distributors”). In addition to our extensive U.S. distribution, AMIEC and Sundance Channel are available in Caaadé&undance Chan
and WE tv are available in other countries througHeurope and Asia. We earn revenue principallynftbe distribution of our programmi
and the sale of advertising. Distribution revemgudes affiliation fees paid by distributors targaour programming networks as well as
licensing of programming for digital, foreign andrhe video distribution. Other sources of revenuduife origination fee revenue from
network technical services business and the liognef brands for consumer products. In 2012, distidon and other revenue accountec
61% of our consolidated revenues, net and advagtisales accounted for 39% of our consolidatedmas®, net.

For financial information of the Company by opeangtisegment, see Item 7, “ManagemeriDiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations — ConsolidaRabults of Operationsand Note 16 to the accompanying consolidated fiiad
statements.




Our Strengths
Our strengths include:

Strong Industry Presence and Portfolio of Brand&e have operated in the cable programming inddstrynore than 30 years &
over this time we have continually enhanced theeaf our network portfolio. Our programming netkérands are well known and w
regarded by our key constituents—our viewers, ihistors and advertisersand have developed strong followings within thespectiv
targeted demographics, increasing our value toiloigbrs and advertisers. AMC (which targets adagisd 25 to 54), WE tv (which targ
women aged 18 to 49 and 25 to 54), IFC (which targdults aged 18 to 49) and Sundance Channellfwhigets adults aged 25 to
have established themselves as important withiir tiespective markets. Our deep and establishedepoe in the industry and
recognition we have received for our brands throinglustry awards and other honors lend us a higinegeof credibility with distributo
and content producers, and help provide us withlstaffiliate and studio relationships, advantageoliannel placements and heighte
viewer engagement.

Broad Distribution and Penetration of Our Nationdetworks. Our national networks are broadly distributedtie United State
AMC, WE tv, IFC and Sundance Channel are eachathby all major multichannel video programming tilsitors. Our national networ
are available to a significant percentage of subsrs in these distributorsystems. This broad distribution and penetratiavides u
with a strong national platform on which to maintggromote and grow our business.

Compelling ProgrammingWe continually refine our mix of programming and, addition to our popular film content, hi
increasingly focused on highly visible, criticatiyclaimed original programming, including the awaidning Mad Men, Breaking Ba
and The Walking Dead which in 2012 became the first cable series lavision history to achieve higher Nielsen Medias€arcl
(“Nielsen”) ratings than any other show of the Falbadcast season among adults 18-49. Other pogetiss includ@ he Killing, Hell on
Wheels Braxton Family ValuesMary Mary andPortlandia. Our focus on quality original programming, taiggtspecific audiences, f
allowed us in recent years to increase our progragnmetworks’ ratings and their viewership within these respecttargete
demographics.

Recurring Revenue from Affiliation Agreemen@ur affiliation agreements with multichannel vidprogramming distributors are
recurring source of revenue. We generally seekirictsire these agreements so that they are temg-in nature and to stagger tl
expiration dates, thereby increasing the predititalaind stability of our affiliation fee revenues.

Desirable Advertising PlatformOur national networks have a strong connectidh wach of their respective targeted demograg
which make our programming networks an attractilaf@rm to advertisers. We have experienced sigaifi growth in our advertisi
revenues in recent years, which has allowed usveldp high-quality programming.

Our Strategy

Our strategy is to maintain and improve our pogités a leading programming and entertainment comnpgnowning and operati
several of the most popular and awaridning brands in cable television that create gegzent with audiences globally across multiple @
and distribution platforms. The key focuses of simategy are:

Continued Development of High-Quality Original Prammming. We intend to continue developing strong origipedgrammin
across all of our programming networks to enhangeboands, strengthen our relationships with oemers, distributors and advertis:
and increase distribution and audience ratingsb@lieve that our continued investment in originalggamming supports future growtt
distribution and advertising revenue. We also idtém continue to expand the exploitation of ougmral programming across multi|
media and distribution platforms.

Increased Distribution of our Programming Networkdf our four national networks, only AMC is subdially fully distributed ir
the United States. We intend to continue to seekeased distribution of our other national netwatdkggrow affiliate and advertisii
revenues. In addition, we are expanding the digidlb of our programming networks around the glabfe. first expanded beyond the L
market with the launch in Canada of IFC (in 2004d AMC (in 2006). We are building on this base tighb a distribution arrangement
AMC/Sundance Channel Global in Canada which weredteto in 2010, fifteen countries in Europe aegien countries in Asia, wi
additional expansion planned in 2013 and futuragsed/e also distribute an international versioWMdE tv in five countries in Asia, wi
further expansion planned in other Asian markets.

Continued Growth of Advertising Revenu&Ve have a proven track record of significantlgr@asing revenue by introduc
advertising on networks that were previously notemtiser supported. We first accomplished this®2, when we moved AMC and V
tv to an advertisesupported model. More recently, in December 20l®mwoved IFC to such a model. We seek to continievadve thi
programming on each of our networks to achieve eternger viewer engagement within their respectivee targeted demograph
thereby increasing the value of our programmingdeertisers and allowing us to obtain higher adsiad rates. For example, we conti
to refine the programming mix on IFC to include






alternative comedy programming, such Rertlandia and Comedy Bang! Bang! in order to increase IFE€’appeal to its target
demographic of adults aged 18 to 49. We are alstireong to seek additional advertising revenu@BstC and WE tv through high
Nielsen ratings in desirable demographics.

Increased Control of ContentWe believe that control (including lonigkrm contract arrangements) and ownership of corns
becoming increasingly important, and we intendnicréase our control position over our programmiogtent. We currently control, o
or have longerm license agreements covering significant pogiof our content across our programming netwosksvall as in ot
independent film distribution business operatedBy Films. We intend to continue to focus on obtagnthe broadest possible con
rights (both as to territory and platforms) for @ontent.

Exploitation of Emerging Media PlatformsThe technological landscape surrounding theidigion of entertainment content
continuously evolving as new digital platforms egeerWe intend to distribute our content across asynof these new platforms
possible, when it makes business sense to do shasour viewers can access our content wherenwhd how they want it. To that e
our programming networks are allowing many of owstributors to offer our content to subscriberscomputers and other digital devic
and on video-oremand platforms, all of which permit subscribersatcess programs at their convenience. We alse makl|FC Film
library content available on thingarty digital platforms such as Netflix and iTunesaddition to amctv.com, which delivers over 4lioin
unique browsers each month, our national netwoidah ehost dedicated websites that promote theirdstaprovide programmi
information and provide access to content.

Key Challenges
We face a number of challenges, including:
* intense competition in the markets in which we ape
» alimited number of distributors for our programugnimetworks
e continuing availability of desirable programmingid

» significant levels of debt and leverage, assallteof the debt financing agreements describectuttdm 7, “Managemerd’Discussio
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©pkrations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

See Item 1A, “Risk Factors” for a discussion ofsén@nd other factors that could impact our perfoceand operating results.
National Networks

We own four nationally distributed entertainmendgnramming networks: AMC, WE tv, IFC and Sundanceu@tel, which are availat
to our distributors in high-definition and/or stamd-definition formats. Our programming networks pripadly generate their revenues from
distribution of programming and the sale of adwamtj. Affiliation fees paid by multichannel videsogramming distributors represent
largest component of distribution revenue, whickoaincludes the licensing of original programmimy 8igital, foreign and home vid
distribution. As of December 31, 2012 , AMC, WE and IFC had 98.9 million, 81.5 million and 69#illion Nielsen subscribel
respectively, and Sundance Channel had 5@iltion viewing subscribers (for a discussion bétdifference between Nielsen subscribers
viewing subscribers, see “Subscriber and Viewer $deament’below). Reported subscribers as of December 312 &i¥eased as compa
to December 31, 2011 primarily reflecting the refiosing of our networks carriage with certain ogers to more widely distributed tiers
service (see below).

AMC

AMC is a television network dedicated to the highegsality storytelling, whether commemorating fat®@rfilms or creating acclaim
original programming. In addition to presenting plap feature films from its comprehensive movierdity, AMC features origin
programming that includes critically-acclaimed amsard-winning original scripted dramatic serieshrsasMad Men, Breaking Bad, The
Killing , Hell on Wheelsand The Walking Dead which in 2012 became the first cable series li@vision history to achieve higher Niels
ratings than any other show of the Fall broadoaassn among adults ¥®. Additionally, the network has introduced ungtd programmin
including Talking Dead(a live talk show that follows premiere episoded’bé& Walking Deadl, Comic Book Men The Pitchand Small Tow
Security.

We launched AMC in 1984, and over the past sewerals it has garnered many of the industry’s highesors, including 25 Emm
Awards, 4 Golden Glob& Awards, 2 Screen Actors Guild Awards, 2 Peabody wiwaand 4 consecutive American Film Institute ()
Awards for Top 10 Most Outstanding Television Peaogs of the Year. AMC is the only cable network istdry to win the Emmy Award fol
Outstanding Drama Series four years in a row, dsasethe Golden Glob& Award for Best Television Seriesbrama for three consecut
years.






AMC' s film library consists of films that are licensBdm major studios such as Twentieth Century Foxarveér Bros., Sony, MG)}
NBC Universal, Paramount and Buena Vista under-term contracts. AMC generally structures its cartsdor the exclusive cable televis
rights to air the films during identified window npeds.

AMC Subscribers and Affiliation AgreementAs of December 31, 2012 AMC had affiliation agreements with all major L
multichannel video programming distributors ancctesd approximately 99 million Nielsen subscribers.

Historical Subscribers—AMC

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Nielsen Subscribers (at year-end) 98.¢ 96.2 96.4
Growth from Prior Year-end 3% —% 1%

WE tv

WE tv is a womers network that features original stories for andwtmodern women who are taking charge of thedy, tifieir family an
their household.

WE tv’s original series includBraxton Family Values Tamar & Vince, Mary Mary, Joan and Melissa: Joan Knows BeartdMy Fair
Wedding with David Tutera among others. Additionally, WE tv's programmintcludes series such &harmed, Ghost Whispereanc
Roseannas well as feature films, with exclusive licenghts to certain films from studios such as Paramdsony and Warner Bros.

WE tv Subscribers and Affiliation Agreementds of December 31, 2012 WE tv had affiliation agreements with all majorS.
multichannel video distributors and reached appnately 82 million Nielsen subscribers.

Historical Subscribers—WE tv

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Nielsen Subscribers (at year-end) 81.t 76.1 76.¢
Growth from Prior Year-end 7% (D% 3%

IFC

IFC creates original comedies that are in keepiith the network’s “Always On. Slightly Offbrand and which air alongside a collec
of films and comedic cult TV shows.

The network’s original content includes the comsdyiesPortlandia, created by and starring Fred Armisen and CarrevBstein, an
executive produced by Saturday Night Live's Lornehdels. Other IFC originals includ@omedy Bang! BangR. Kelly's Trapped in th
ClosetandOut There, an animated series created by the long time diimdirector of South Park (which premiered Febyu2013). IFCs
programming also includes series suchAaiested DevelopmentFreaks and Geekand Malcolm in the Middle, along with films fron
independent film distributors including Fox, Miraxp&ony, IFC Films, Lionsgate, Universal, Paramaumd Warner Bros.

IFC Subscribers and Affiliation Agreementas of December 31, 2012FC had affiliation agreements with all major UrBultichanne
video distributors and reached approximately 7@ianiNielsen subscribers.

Historical Subscribers—IFC

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Nielsen Subscribers (at year-end) 69.€ 65.2 62.7
Growth from Prior Year-end 7% 4% 4%

Sundance Channel

Launched in 1996 and acquired by us in 2008, Swel@&hannel showcases todagreative icons and the emerging talent of tonvg,
telling bold stories with a fresh point of view. &ddition to award winning films, Sundance Charisghome to original programming tl
provides perspectives dedicated to founder Robedfdrd’s mission to celebrate creativity.

In 2010, Sundance Channel embarked on an origiorgted programming strategy with its first scrigptenini-series, the acclaim
Carlos, which went on to win the 2011 Golden Globe® Awé#od Best Mini-Series or Motion Picture Made forl&eésion. The networlg
second scripted projedippropriate Adult, aired in Fall 2011 to critical acclaim and wagmeated






for a 2012 Golden Globe® Award. In December 20h2, network premiered a brand new original co-prtidndRestless and star Charlot
Rampling was nominated for a 2013 Screen ActorddGAivard. In 2013, Sundance Channel will launch wew original scripted serie$pf
of the Lakeand Rectify. Top of the Laké€from Oscar®winning director Jane Campion) is a miniseriesrstgrHolly Hunter and Elisabe
Moss.Rectifyis Sundance Channel’s first wholly owned originaipgted series from the producers of AM@geaking Bad

Sundance Channel also has a slate of original iptedrseries, each exploring aspects of contempaerdture. Sundance Channel origi
unscripted programming includes theodu -seriesPush Girls, and celebrity vehicle$he Mortified Sessionsnd lconoclasts. The networ
recently announced the greenlight of a non-ficderiesThe Writers’ Room in partnership with Entertainment Weekly.

In addition, the network benefits from its relasbip with Sundance Institute and the renowned Suwal&ilm Festival, where each y
the network gives festival attendees and viewectusive access to the festival on-site and thradegticated programming on-air and online.

Sundance Channel Subscribers and Affiliation Agesam As of December 31, 201,2Sundance Channel had affiliation agreements
all major U.S. multichannel video programming dmsitors and reached approximately H0illion viewing subscribers. Sundance Cha
currently generates advertising revenue from spshgmarrangements and promotional breaks, raltar traditional advertising spots.

Historical Subscribers—Sundance Channel

2012 2011 2010

(in millions)
Viewing Subscribers* (at year-end) 50.2 42.1 39.¢
Growth from Prior Year-end 19% 6% 5%

* Subscriber counts are based on internal managemgmtts and represent viewing subscribers. Foseudsion of the differences betw
Nielsen subscribers and viewing subscribers“Subscriber and Viewer Measurement” below.

The increase in subscribers noted in the above fatiinarily reflects the repositioning of carriagieour Sundance Channel with cer
operators to more widely distributed tiers of segvi

International and Other

In addition to our National Networks, we also operAMC/Sundance Channel Global, which is our iré¢ional programming busine
IFC Films, our independent film distribution busise and AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology, oetwork technical servic
business. Our International and Other segmentiat$edes VOOM HD Holdings LLC (“VOOM HD")which we are winding down, and wh
continues to sell certain limited amounts of progmang through program license agreements.

AMC/Sundance Channel Global

AMC/Sundance Channel Global's business principedigsists of seven distinct channels in thirteeglages spread across twefays
countries, focusing primarily on AMC in Canada aidbally on versions of the Sundance Channel andtWiitands. Principally generati
revenues from affiliation fees, AMC/Sundance Cham@iebal reached approximately 15.9 million viewisgbscribers in Canada, Europe
Asia as of December 31, 2012and has broad availability to distributors in &ue and in Asia through satellite and fiber deljvtrat cal
facilitate future expansion.

Sundance Channel—International

An internationally-recognized brand, Sundance Cbhismlobal services provide not only the best ofittteependent film world but al
feature certain content from AMC, IFC, Sundancer@iehand IFC Films, as well as serve as a unigpelipie of international content, in
effort to provide distinctive programming to an cgke audience.

The ability of Sundance Channel to offer contenstandard definition and high definition ("HD") ass multiple platforms provid
value to distributors and opportunity for expansioto additional international markets. The inté¢im@al version of Sundance Channe
currently available via six distinct feeds provigliservice throughout various countries in Europd &sia and provides programming
thirteen different languages. The network is disiréd via satellite and fiber in Europe and vieliéed in Asia with a substantial satel
footprint (which extends from the Philippines te thliddle East and from Russia to Australia).




Canada

We provide programming to the Canadian market tinoour AMC and Sundance Channel brands, which &teitdited throug
affiliation arrangements with the three major Caaadnultichannel video programming distributors ameugh trademark license and con
distribution arrangements with Canadian programnoudets. AMC Canada has today achieved near-fsifidution in the Canadian market.

WE tv Asia

Providing programming in the Korean and Mandarimglaages, WE tv Asia provides a selection of theé Bemsestic programming frc
the WE tv U.S. network with programs lilgridezillasand My Fair Wedding with David Tuteraand some of the best programming f
networks in the U.S., such 8sbatha’'s Salon Takeoveand Tori & Dean. With the same broad satellite footprint as Sucda@hannel-
International, WE tv Asia is available in South Kar Malaysia, Taiwan, Singapore and Hong Kong.

IFC Films

IFC Films, our independent film distribution bussse makes independent films available to a worldwaddience. IFC Films opera
three distribution labels: Sundance Selects, IH@i$and IFC Midnight, all of which distribute cdélly acclaimed independent films acr
virtually all available media platforms, includirig theaters, on cable/satellite video-@@mand (reaching approximately 50 million horr
DVDs and cable network television, and streamingftoading to computers and other electronic devitEE€ Films has a film librai
consisting of more than 500 titles. Recently redgafiims include: the OscérnominatedHow to Survive a Plague, On the Road, Your Si
Sister and Sleepwalk with Me

As part of its strategy to encourage the growtlthef marketplace for independent film, IFC Filmsoatperates IFC Center, DOC N'
and SundanceNow. IFC Center is a state-of-thenddgendent movie theater located in the heart @f Nerk City's Greenwich Village. DO
NYC is an annual festival also located in New Y@Qiky celebrating documentary storytelling in filphotography, prose and other media.
Films’ direct-toconsumer online digital platform, SundanceNow, nsa&ar IFC Films library content and independenh fidontent license
from third parties available to consumers in th8.lhnd around the globe.

AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology

AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology is a fa#fvice network programming feed origination anstrihution company, whic
primarily services the programming networks of @empany. AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technologyoperations are located
Bethpage, New York, where AMC Networks Broadcas@ingechnology consolidates origination and satelibmmunications functions ir
60,000 squaréaot facility designed to keep AMC Networks at floeefront of network origination and distributioechnology. AMC Network
Broadcasting & Technology has nearly 30 yeasperience across its network services groupsudimd affiliate engineering, netwc
operations, traffic and scheduling that provide-tiaxgay delivery of any programming network, in fidefinition or standard definition.

Currently, AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology riesponsible for the origination of 33 programmifegds for national ai
international distribution. In addition to servitige programming networks of the Company, AMC NetsgoBroadcasting & Technology’
affiliated and third-party clients include Fuse, Gl8letwork, MSG Plus, MSG Varsity, SNY and Mid AttanSports Network.




Content Rights and Development

The programming on our networks includes origirralgpamming that we control, either through outrighinership or through longprim
licensing arrangements, and acquired programmiaigvil license from studios and other rights holders

Original Programming

We contract with some of the indussyleading independent production companies, inofyidionsgate, Sony Pictures Television,
Television Studios, Entertainment One TelevisionAURelativityREAL, Magical Elves, Broadway VideoeReille Productions and Pilgr
Films & Television, to produce most of the origimabgramming that appears on our programming nétsvorhese contractual arrangem
either provide us with outright ownership of thegmramming, in which case we hold all programmingd ather rights to the content, or tl
consist of longeerm licensing arrangements, which provide us withlusive rights to exhibit the content on our pesgming networks, b
may be limited in terms of specific geographic netskor distribution platforms. We currently selbguce two of our original series, AME’
The Walking Deadnd Sundance ChanndRectify.

The original programming that we either exclusiviétgnse or own outright includes, for WE Braxton Family Values, Mary Mai
Joan and Melissa: Joan Knows Best?, Cyndi Laupélt So Unusualand My Fair Wedding with David Tuterafor IFC: Portlandia anc
Comedy Bang! Bang!for Sundance ChanndPush Girls, The Mortified SessioaadlconoclastsWe may freely exhibit this programming
our networks or, in certain instances, through oth&ribution platforms, both in the U.S. and mernational markets. We may also license
content to other programming networks or distributplatforms.

We hold long-term licenses for original programmthgt includesviad Men, Breaking Bad, The Killing, Hell on WheealadBridezillas.
These licensing arrangements give us the exclugiie for certain periods of time to exhibit theosés on our programming networks wit
the U.S. and, in some cases, in international nisrkéhese licenses may also give us the right pjoéxthe programming on certain dig
distribution platforms (such as video-on-demand rmthile devices) within our licensed territory. Tiiense agreements are typically of multi
season duration and provide us with a right of fiegyotiation or a right of first refusal on theesval of the license for additional programrm
seasons.

Acquired Programming

The majority of the content on our programming re&s consists of existing films, episodic seried apecials that we acquire purst
to rights agreements with film studios, productoimmpanies or other rights holders. This acquired@mming includes episodic series suc
CSI: Miami, Charmed, Ghost Whisperey Roseanne, Malcolm in the Middied Arrested Developmentas well as an extensive film libra
The rights agreements for this content are of varyluration and generally permit our programmintywoeks to carry these series, films .
other programming during certain window periods.

Affiliation Agreements

Affiliation Agreements Our programming networks are distributed to oiswing audience pursuant to affiliation agreememnith
multichannel video programming distributors. Thesgreements, which typically have durations of sa@veears, require us to deli
programming that meets certain standards set forthe agreement. We earn affiliation fees undes¢hagreements, generally based upc
number of each distribut@’subscribers who receive our programming or, imes@ases, based on a fixed contractual monthly Ges
affiliation agreements also give us the right th &especific amount of national advertising timeaur programming networks.

Our programming network®xisting affiliation agreements expire at varioases through 2021. Failure to renew affiliationesgnents
or renewal on less favorable terms, or the terndnabf those agreements could have a material adveiffect on our business, and, evt
affiliation agreements are renewed, there can bassarance that renewal rates will equal or extieedates that are currently being charge
2012, Comcast and DirecTV each accounted for apmately 10% or more of our consolidated revenues, n

We frequently negotiate with distributors in anceffto increase the subscriber base for our netsvdfke have in some instances n
upfront payments to distributors in exchange fasth additional subscribers or agreed to waive oegclower subscriber fees if cert
numbers of additional subscribers are provided.alde may help fund the distributoesfforts to market our programming networks or wey
permit distributors to offer limited promotional nieds without payment of subscriber fees. As wetioore our efforts to add subscribers,
subscriber revenue may be negatively affected lop sleferred carriage fee arrangements, discountesiceber fees and other payme
however, we believe that these transactions genarpbsitive return on investment over the confpaciod.
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Advertising Arrangements

Under affiliation agreements with our distributonge have the right to sell a specified amount dfomal advertising time on certain
our programming networks. Our advertising reveraresmore variable than affiliation fee revenuesabse the majority of our advertising
sold on a short-term basis, not under loagn contracts. We sell advertising time in both tipfront and scatter markets. In the upfront niz
advertisers buy advertising time for the upcomiags®n, and by purchasing in advance, often recksemunted rates. In the scatter ma
advertisers buy advertising time close to the timhen the commercials will be run, and often payarpum. The mix between the upfront .
scatter markets is based upon a number of facsoid) as pricing, demand for advertising time anoshemic conditions. Our advertisi
arrangements with advertisers provide for a setharmof advertising units to air over a specificiperof time at a negotiated price per uni
certain advertising sales arrangements, our pragiaginetworks guarantee specified viewer ratinggHeir programming. If these guarant
viewer ratings are not met, we are generally reglio provide additional advertising units to thliwertiser at no charge. For these type
arrangements, a portion of the related revenuesfierged if the guaranteed viewer ratings are nat anel is subsequently recognized ei
when we provide the required additional advertidinge, the guarantee obligation contractually eepior performance requirements bec
remote. Most of our advertising revenues vary bagexh the popularity of our programming as measbgeNielsen.

In 2012, our national programming networks had approxitgateO00 advertisers representing companies inoadrange of secto
including the health, insurance, food, automotinel aetail industries. Our AMC, WE tv and IFC progmaing networks use a traditio
advertising sales model, while Sundance Channetipally sells sponsorships. Prior to December 20AQ principally sold sponsorships.

Subscriber and Viewer Measurement

The number of subscribers receiving our programnfiogn multichannel video programming distributorengrally determines t
affiliation fees we receive. We refer to these subers as “viewing subscribersThese numbers are reported monthly by the distitand ar
reported net of certain excluded categories of ilbers set forth in the relevant affiliation agremnt. These excluded categories inc
delinquent and complimentary accounts and subssrieeeiving our programming networks during praoml periods. For most day-tiay
management purposes, we use a different measureNietsen subscribers, when that measurement itabla Nielsen subscribers repres
the number of subscribers receiving our programnfiiagn multichannel video programming distributossraported by Nielsen, based on t
sampling procedures. Because Nielsen subscriberseported without deduction for certain classesutfscribers, Nielsen subscriber figt
tend to be higher than viewing subscribers fonemgiprogramming network. Nielsen subscriber figuresavailable for our AMC, WE tv a
IFC programming networks.

For purposes of the advertising rates we are abtdarge advertisers, the relevant measuremeé islielsen rating, which measures
number of viewers actually watching the commerapethin programs we show on our programming netwoilhis measurement is calcule
by The Nielsen Company using their sampling proocesiand reported daily, although advertising ratesadjusted less frequently. In addi
to the Nielsen rating, our advertising rates ase ahfluenced by the demographic mix of our viewagliences, since advertisers tend tc
premium rates for more desirable demographic grofipgewers.

Regulation
The Federal Communications Commission (the “FQ€fulates programming networks in certain respgben they are affiliated with
cable television operator, as we are with CablewisiOther FCC regulations, although imposed onecadlevision operators and sate
operators, affect programming networks indirectly.
Closed Captioning
Certain of our networks must provide closeEgtioning of programming for the hearing impairéde 21st Century Communications

Video Accessibility Act of 2010 also requires uspi@vide closed captioning on certain video prograng that we offer on the Internet
through other Internet Protocol distribution.
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CALM Act

FCC rules require multichannel video programmingfriiutors to ensure that all commercials complthveipecified volume standar
and our affiliation agreements generally requiréausertify compliance with such standards.

Obscenity Restrictions

Cable operators and other distributors are praddbftom transmitting obscene programming, and difiliaion agreements genera
require us to refrain from including such programgon our networks.

Violent Programming

In 2007, the FCC issued a report on violence ingnmming that recommended that Congress prohileitatvailability of violer
programming, including cable programming, during tiours when children are likely to be watchingcéte events have led to a rene
interest by some members of Congress in the alleffedts of violent programming, which could leadat renewal of interest in limiting t
availability of such programming or prohibiting it.

Program Access

The “program accesgrovisions of the Federal Cable Act generally reggatellite delivered video programming in whiclkcable
operator holds an attributable interest, as thah tss defined by the FCC, to be made available Itaraltichannel video programmi
distributors, including DBS providers and telephapepanies, on nondiscriminatory prices, termsamlitions, subject to certain excepti
specified in the statute and the FCC'’s rules. FGI€srprovide that the FCC may order a calffdiated programmer to continue to mak
programming service available to a multichannekuigorogramming distributor during the pendency pf@gram access complaint, under
terms of the existing contract. For purposes o$e¢heiles, the common directors and five percemfreater voting stockholders of Cablevis
and AMC Networks are deemed to be cable operatdtsaitributable interests in us. As long as weticare to have common directors
major stockholders with Cablevision, our sateltiivered video programming services will remaifbjeat to the program access provisi
The FCC allowed a previous blanket prohibition ewclesive arrangements with cable operators to exipirOctober 2012, but will consic
case-by-case complaints that exclusive contradiwdmm cable operators and cabféliated programmers significantly hinder or peew ¢
competing distributor from providing satellite cafgrogramming.

The FCC has also extended the program access twlgsrrestrially-delivered programming created kable operatogffiliated
programmers such as us when a showing can be ratthe lack of such programming significantly férglor prevents the distributor fr
providing satellite cable programming. The rulethatize the FCC to compel the licensing of suchgprmming in response to a complain
a multichannel video programming distributor. Thages could require us to make any terrestriag@mming services we create availabl
multichannel video programming distributors on nisadminatory prices, terms and conditions.

Program Carriage

The FCC has sought comment on proposed changks tales governing carriage agreements betweer gabyramming networks a
cable operators or other multichannel video prognémg distributors. Some of these changes could givadvantage to cable programn
networks that are not affiliated with any distribuand make it easier for those programming nets/éokchallenge a distributar'’decision t
terminate a carriage agreement or to decline ity @network in the first place.

Wholesale “A La Carte”

In 2007, the FCC sought comment on whether cabtgramming networks require distributors to purchasel carry undesir
programming in return for the right to carry dedifgrogramming and, if so, whether such arrangemsmsild be prohibited. The FCC |
taken no action on this proposal. We do not culyaetjuire distributors to carry more than one of pational programming networks in or
to obtain the right to carry a particular natiopedgramming network. However, we generally negetigith a distributor for the carriage of
of our national networks concurrently.
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Effect of “Must-Carry” Requirements

The FCC'’s implementation of the statutory “mustrgambligations requires cable and DBS operators te diroadcasters preferen
access to channel space. In contrast, programnehgorks, such as ours, have no guaranteed rigbtuofage on cable television or D
systems. This may reduce the amount of channelesiiat is available for carriage of our networksdaple television systems and C
operators.

Satellite Carriage

All satellite carriers must under federal law offégreir service to deliver our and our competgoprogramming networks on
nondiscriminatory basis (including by means of tely). A satellite carrier cannot unreasonablycdisinate against any customer in
charges or conditions of carriage.

Media Ownership Restrictions

FCC rules set media ownership limits that restdatpng other things, the number of daily newspagpedsradio and television station:
which a single entity may hold an attributable iatt as that term is defined by the FCC. Pursuaat€ongressional mandate, the FCC |
review these rules every four years. Such a reigemurrently underway. Cablevision currently owrnswéday, a daily newspaper publishe:
Long Island, New York. The fact that the commorediors and five percent or greater voting stockéisladf Cablevision and AMC Netwol
hold attributable interests in each of the compafioe purposes of these rules means that thess-owatership rules may have the effec
limiting the activities or strategic business aitives available to us, at least for as long asovdinue to have common directors and n
stockholders with Cablevision. Although we haveptens or intentions to become involved in the beisges affected by these restrictions
would need to be mindful of these rules if we wiereonsider engaging in any such business in thedu

Website Requirements

We maintain various websites that provide informratiegarding our businesses and offer contentdier $he operation of these webs
may be subject to a range of federal, state aral laws such as privacy and consumer protectionla¢igns.

Other Regulation
The FCC also imposes rules regarding political ticaats and telemarketing.
Competition

Our programming networks operate in two highly cefitive markets. First, our programming networkmpete with other programmi
networks to obtain distribution on cable televisgystems and other multichannel video programmisgiblution systems, such as DBS,
ultimately for viewing by each systemsubscribers. Second, our programming networkgpetarwith other programming networks and c
sources of video content, including broadcast nekeydo secure desired entertainment programmihg.sticcess of our businesses depen
our ability to license angroduce content for our programming networks teadequate in quantity and quality and will gereesattisfactor
viewer ratings. In each of these cases, some otompetitors are large publicly held companies teate greater financial resources that
do. In addition, we compete with these entitiesafdvertising revenue.

It is difficult to predict the future effect of tenology on many of the factors affecting AMC Netk&rcompetitive position. For examp
data compression technology has made it possibl@dst video programming distributors to incredssrtchannel capacity, which may red
the competition among programming networks and dwasters for channel space. On the other handdtiiéion of channel space could ¢
increase competition for desired entertainment @ogning and ultimately, for viewing by subscribefs more channel space beco
available, the position of our programming netwarkshe most favorable tiers of these distributemild be an important goal. Additiona
video content delivered directly to viewers over thternet competes with our programming netwoodks/fewership.

Distribution of Programming Networks

The business of distributing programming networksdble television systems and other multichanitsosprogramming distributors
highly competitive. Our programming networks facenpetition from other programming networksirriage by a particular multichannel vi
programming distributor, and for the carriage om $krvice tier that will attract the most subsasb@©nce our programming network is sele
by a distributor for carriage, that network compefer viewers not only with the other programmirgfworks available on the distributer’
system, but also with over-the-air broadcast telewi Internethased video and other online services, mobile sesyiradio, print medi
motion picture theaters, DVDs, and other sourcaasfofmation and entertainment.

Important to our success in each area of competitie face are the prices we charge for our progriagnmetworks, the quantity, qual
and variety of the programming offered on our nekspand the effectiveness of our networks’ marigéfforts.
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The competition for viewers among advertiser suggabnetworks is directly correlated with the conitpmt for advertising revenues with e:
of our competitors.

Our ability to successfully compete with other netiis may be hampered because the cable televigkianss or other multichant
video programming distributors through which weksdstribution may be affiliated with other prograrimg networks. In addition, becai
such distributors may have a substantial numbeubgcribers, the ability of such programming neksdp obtain distribution on the syste
of affiliated distributors may lead to increasediliation and advertising revenue for such programgmnetworks because of their incree
penetration compared to our programming networkenkf such affiliated distributors carry our pragrming networks, such distributors r
place their affiliated programming network on a mdesirable tier, thereby giving the affiliated gnamming network a competitive advant
over our own.

New or existing programming networks that are iafid with broadcasting networks like NBC, ABC, CB6Fox may also have
competitive advantage over our programming netwdrkobtaining distribution through the “bundlingif agreements to carry thc
programming networks with agreements giving thérithistor the right to carry a broadcast statioriliated with the broadcasting network.

An important part of our strategy involves explogtiidentified markets of the cable television viegviaudience that are generally \
defined and limited in size. Our networks have fbaad will continue to face increasing competitiagnother programming networks and or
or other services seek to serve the same or sinigaes.

Sources of Programming

We also compete with other programming networksdoure desired programming. Most of our originalgpamming and all of o
acquired programming is obtained through agreemuiitis other parties that have produced or own tights to such programmir
Competition for this programming will increase & thumber of programming networks increases. Ophegramming networks that
affiliated with programming sources such as movitetevision studios or film libraries may haveanpetitive advantage over us in this area.

With respect to the acquisition of entertainmeragoamming, such as syndicated programs and mokissare not produced by
specifically for networks, our competitors includational broadcast television networks, local boaad television stations, video-cleman:
programs and other cable programming networksrriatéased video content distributors have also emeagambmpetitors for the acquisit
of content or the rights to distribute content. $oof these competitors have exclusive contract mibtion picture studios or indepenc
motion picture distributors or own film libraries.

Competition for Advertising Revenue
Our programming networks must compete with oth#erseof advertising time and space, including otteble programming networl
radio, newspapers, outdoor media and, increasimgigrnet sites. We compete for advertisers onbtiss of rates we charge and also ot
number and demographic nature of viewers who watechprogramming. Advertisers will often seek tay&trtheir advertising content to th
demographic categories they consider most likelpurchase the product or service they advertiseoilingly, the demographic makgp- of
our viewership can be equally or more importanhttiee number of viewers watching our programming.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012 we had 980 full-time emeisyand 30 patime employees. In addition, one of our subsidséagagages tl
services of writers who are subject to a collechigegaining agreement. We believe that our emplayeelabor relations are good.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

The risk factors described below are not inclusif/all risk factors but highlight those that therQmany believes are the most signific
and that could impact its performance and finan@allts. These risk factors should be consideygéther with all other information preser
in this Annual Report.

Our business depends on the appeal of our programgrio our distributors and our viewers, which mag lbinpredictable and volatile.

Our business depends in part upon viewer prefeseand audience acceptance of the programming omeiurorks. These factors .
often unpredictable and volatile, and subject fluances that are beyond our control, such as dladity and appeal of competing programm
general economic conditions and the availabilitpibfer entertainment activities. We may not be #blenticipate and react effectively to st
in tastes and interests in our markets. A changéeiner preferences could cause our programmirtgtdine in popularity, which could caus
reduction in advertising revenues and jeopardinewl of our contracts with distributors. In addlitj our competitors may have more flex
programming arrangements, as well as greater amairdvailable content, distribution and capitao@rces, and may be able to react t
quickly than we can to shifts in tastes and intstes

To an increasing extent, the success of our busidegends on original programming, and our abititpredict accurately how audien
will respond to our original programming is parfedly important. Because original programming oftewolves a greater degree
commitment on our part, as compared to acquiredraroming that we license from third parties, andase our network branding strate
depend significantly on a relatively small numbérwdginal programs, a failure to anticipate viewseferences for such programs coul
especially detrimental to our business. We per@tliaeview the programming usefulness of our pamgrights based on a series of fac
including ratings, type and quality of program mnite standards and practices, and fithess forksttbn. We have incurred writeffs of
programming rights in the past, and may incur fitprogramming rights writeffs if it is determined that program rights have future
usefulness.

In addition, feature films constitute a significgmtrtion of the programming on our AMC, IFC and 8ance Channel programm
networks. In general, the popularity of featfifer content on linear television is declining, dimepart to the broad availability of such con
through an increasing number of distribution platfe. Should the popularity of featuiign programming suffer significant further decls
we may lose viewership or be forced to rely moravilg on original programming, which could increase costs.

If our programming does not gain the level of ande acceptance we expect, or if we are unable fataia the popularity of ol
programming, our ratings may suffer, which will a&igely affect advertising revenues, and we mayehawdiminished bargaining posit
when dealing with distributors, which could redum# affiliation fee revenues. We cannot assure §yat we will be able to maintain t
success of any of our current programming, or geresufficient demand and market acceptance fonewrprogramming.

If economic problems persist in the United Statesmother parts of the world, our results of opeians could be adversely affected.

Our business is significantly affected by prevajliaconomic conditions. We derive substantial reesniiom advertising spending
U.S. businesses, and these expenditures are gertsitgeneral economic conditions and consumerngugatterns. Financial instability o
general decline in economic conditions in the WhiBtates could adversely affect advertising rates\elume, resulting in a decrease in
advertising revenues.

Decreases in U.S. consumer discretionary spendimg affect cable television and other video sergabscriptions, in particular wi
respect to digital service tiers on which certafnoar programming networks are carried. This colgldd to a decrease in the numbe
subscribers receiving our programming from multrofe video programming distributors, which could/da negative impact on our view
subscribers and affiliation fee revenues. Similadydecrease in viewing subscribers would also lmawegative impact on the numbe
viewers actually watching the programs on our pgogning networks, which could also impact the ratesare able to charge advertisers.

Furthermore, worldvide financial instability may affect our abilitp fpenetrate new markets. Because our networksiginéy listributec
in the U.S., our ability to expand the scope of operations internationally is important to the thomed growth of our business. Our inabilit
negotiate favorable affiliation agreements withefgn distributors or to secure advertisers for ¢hwmrkets could negatively affect our res
of operations.
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Because a limited number of distributors accountrfa large portion of our business, the loss of asignificant distributor woulc
adversely affect our revenues.

Our programming networks depend upon agreements aviimited number of cable television system ofmsand other multichant
video programming distributors. In 2012, Comcast BirecTV each accounted for approximately 10% orerof our consolidated revent
net. The loss of any significant distributor wotlalve a material adverse effect on our consolidaedlts of operations.

In addition, we have in some instances made upfpagments to distributors in exchange for additicudscribers or have agreec
waive or accept lower affiliation fees if certainmbers of additional subscribers are provided. We may help fund our distributors' efforts
market our programming networks or we may permitriiutors to offer promotional periods without pagnt of subscriber fees. As
continue our efforts to add viewing subscribers; pet revenues may be negatively affected by tliegerred carriage fee arrangeme
discounted subscriber fees or other payments.

Failure to renew our programming networksaffiliation agreements, or renewal on less favorablerms, or the termination of tho
agreements could have a material adverse effecbanbusiness.

Currently our programming networks have affiliatiagreements that have staggered expiration datesgth 2021. Failure to rene!
these affiliation agreements, or renewal on leserible terms, or the termination of those agreasneould have a material adverse effec
our business A reduced distribution of our programming netwovksuld adversely affect our affiliation fee revenaad impact our ability -
sell advertising or the rates we charge for suareding. Even if affiliation agreements are reeeéywwe cannot assure you that the ren
rates will equal or exceed the rates that we ctigreharge these distributors.

Furthermore, the largest multichannel video programg distributors have significant leverage in theslationship with programmit
networks. The two largest cable distributors previservice to approximately 34% of U.S. householeseiving multichannel vide
programming distribution, while the two largest DBiStributors provide service to an additional 3d#such households. Further consolida
among multichannel video programming distributarald increase this leverage.

In some cases, if a distributor is acquired, tHgiatfon agreement of the acquiring distributorlivgovern following the acquisition.
those circumstances, the acquisition of a distoibthat is party to one or more affiliation agreetsewith our programming networks on te
that are more favorable to us could adversely imnpacfinancial condition and results of operations

We are subject to intense competition, which maywéa negative effect on our profitability or on oability to expand our business.

The cable programming industry is highly compegiti®ur programming networks compete with other @ogning networks and otf
types of video programming services for marketing distribution by cable and other multichannelegigprogramming distribution systems
distributing a programming network, we face comtpmti with other providers of programming networl® the right to be carried by
particular cable or other multichannel video prognaing distribution system and for the right to laeried by such system on a particular “tier
of service.

Certain programming networks affiliated with broasitnetworks like NBC, ABC, CBS or Fox may haveompetitive advantage o\
our programming networks in obtaining distributitimough the “bundling”of carriage agreements for such programming netsvarith ¢
distributor's right to carry the affiliated broadtag network. In addition, our ability to competdth certain programming networks
distribution may be hampered because the cableidgla or other multichannel video programming wlisitors through which we se
distribution may be affiliated with these programmginetworks. Because such distributors may haugbatantial number of subscribers,
ability of such programming networks to obtain disition on the systems of affiliated distributargy lead to increased affiliation &
advertising revenue for such programming netwodgalise of their increased penetration comparedrtprogramming networks. Even if 1
affiliated distributors carry our programming netks they may place their affiliated programmindgwark on a more desirable tier, ther
giving their affiliated programming network a contiee advantage over our own.

In addition to competition for distribution, we aldace intense competition for viewing audienceshwather cable and broadc
programming networks, home video products and metdrased video content providers, some of which and ok large diversifie
entertainment or media companies that have sulbdtgngreater resources than us. To the extent dbatviewing audiences are erodec
competition with these other sources of programneimgtent, our ratings would decline, negativeleefing advertising revenues, and we
face difficulty renewing affiliation agreements titlistributors on acceptable terms, which couldseaaffiliation fee revenues to decline
addition, competition for advertisers with thesatemt providers, as well as with other forms of mdhcluding print media, Internet websi
and radio), could affect the amount we are ableh@arge for advertising time on our programming reks, and therefore our advertis
revenues.
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An important part of our strategy involves explagtiidentified markets of the cable television viegviaudience that are generally \
defined and limited in size. Our programming netgohave faced and will continue to face increasiogipetition obtaining distribution a
attracting advertisers as other programming nets/edek to serve the same or similar markets.

Our programming networks'success depends upon the availability of programgithat is adequate in quantity and quality, and
may be unable to secure or maintain such programmgyin

Our programming networks' success depends upoaviiéability of quality programming, particularlyriginal programming and film
that is suitable for our target markets. While weduce some of our original programming, we obtaost of the programming on ¢
networks (including original programming, films aather acquired programming) through agreements thitd parties that have producec
control the rights to such programming. These agesgs expire at varying times and may be terminhiethe other parties if we are no
compliance with their terms.

We compete with other programming networks to sedasired programming. Competition for programnfiag increased as the nun
of programming networks has increased. Other progriamg networks that are affiliated with programmsaurces such as movie or televit
studios or film libraries may have a competitivevamtage over us in this area. In addition to ottedrle programming networks, we ¢
compete for programming with national broadcasévision networks, local broadcast television stegjovideo-ordemand services a
Internetbased content delivery services, such as Netflixnés, Hulu and Amazon. Some of these competitave exclusive contracts w
motion picture studios or independent motion pietdistributors or own film libraries.

We cannot assure you that we will ultimately becessful in negotiating renewals of our programmigbts agreements or in negotial
adequate substitute agreements in the event thse igreements expire or are terminated.

Our programming networks have entered into lotgrn programming acquisition contracts that requirsubstantial payments ov
long periods of time, even if we do not use sucbgnamming to generate revenues.

Our programming networks have entered into numecouagracts relating to the acquisition of programgniincluding rights agreeme
with film companies. These contracts typically regusubstantial payments over extended periodsinoé.tWe must make the requi
payments under these contracts even if we do mothesprogramming.

Increased programming costs may adversely affeat profits.

We incur costs for the creative talent, includirgoas, writers and producers, who create our caigimogramming. Some of our origil
programming has achieved significant popularity aritical acclaim, which has increased and couldtiooie to increase the costs of s
programming in the future. An increase in the cadtprogramming may lead to decreased profitabitityotherwise adversely affect
business.

We may not be able to adapt to new content distiitiu platforms and to changes in consumer behavigsulting from these ne
technologies, which may adversely affect our busise

We must successfully adapt to technological adwamnteur industry, including the emergence of aldive distribution platforms. O
ability to exploit new distribution platforms anéewing technologies will affect our ability to ma#in or grow our business. Emerging form
content distribution may provide different economimdels and compete with current distribution mdthan ways that are not entir
predictable. Such competition could reduce demanadr traditional television offerings or for tieéferings of digital distributors and redt
our revenue from these sources. Accordingly, wetradapt to changing consumer behavior driven byaades such as digital video recorc
video-on-demand, Internétased content delivery and mobile devices. Suchgdgmmay impact the revenues we are able to gerfeoat ou
traditional distribution methods, either by deciegsthe viewership of our programming networks @ble and other multichannel vic
programming distribution systems or by making atisixg on our programming networks less valuabladweertisers. If we fail to adapt «
distribution methods and content to emerging teldgies, our appeal to our targeted audiences nadghline and there could be a nege
effect on our business. In addition, advertisingeraies could be significantly impacted by emerdaghnologies, since advertising sales
dependent on audience measurement provided byghiteés, and the results of audience measureraelnhigues can vary independent ol
size of the audience for a variety of reasons,uiiclg difficulties related to the employed statiati sampling methods, new distribut
platforms and viewing technologies, and the stgftif the marketplace to the use of measuremeniffefeht viewer behaviors, such as dele
viewing.

We face risks from doing business internationally.

We distribute our programming outside the Unitedt&t. As a result, our business is subject to icerisks inherent in internatior
business, many of which are beyond our controls€éhrésks include:

» laws and policies affecting trade and taxes, indgdaws and policies relating to the repatriatadrfunds and withholding taxes, ¢



changes in these laws;

» changes in local regulatory requirements, includagjrictions on conter
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» differing degrees of protection for intellectuabperty
« the instability of foreign economies and governrsy
» fluctuating foreign exchange rat

» war and acts of terrorisi

e anticorruption laws and regulations such as the For&gnrupt Practices Act and the U.K. Bribery Act tthapose stringel
requirements on how we conduct our foreign opemnatend changes in these laws and regulations;

» foreign privacy and data protection laws and retipieand changes in these la
* varying attitudes towards the piracy of intelle¢toi@perty; an
» shifting consumer preferences regarding the viewiingdeo programmini

Events or developments related to these and oler associated with international trade could asklg affect our revenues from non.
U.S. sources, which could have a material advdfseten our business, financial condition, opergtiesults, liquidity and prospects.

Our business is limited by regulatory constraintsmth domestic and foreign, which may adversely irapaur operations.

Although most aspects of our business generallynatalirectly regulated by the FCC, under the Comications Act of 1934, there ¢
certain FCC regulations that govern our busineizeeidirectly or indirectly. See Item 1, “BusinesBegulation”in this Annual Repotr
Furthermore, to the extent that regulations andJaither presently in force or proposed, hindestonulate the growth of the cable televis
and satellite industries, our business will be c#d.

The United States Congress and the FCC currenthg kiader consideration, and may in the future gdoptv laws, regulations a
policies regarding a wide variety of matters thaild, directly or indirectly, affect our operations

The regulation of cable television services, siéeltarriers, and other multichannel video prograngrdistributors is subject to t
political process and has been in constant flux tive past two decades. Further material changt®eitaw and regulatory requirements n
be anticipated. We cannot assure you that our essiwill not be adversely affected by future ledish, new regulation or deregulation.

An important aspect of our growth strategy involtlee expansion of our programming networks and ds&nto markets outside 1
United States. The distribution of our programmiregworks in foreign markets is subject to laws asgllations specific to those countr
Changes in laws and regulations of foreign jurisdits could adversely affect our business andtglidi access new foreign markets.

Theft of our content, including digital copyrighthieft and other unauthorized exhibitions of our cost, may decrease rever
received from our programming and adversely affectr businesses and profitability.

The success of our businesses depends in partrabiity to maintain and monetize our intellectpabperty rights to our entertainm
content. We are fundamentally a content companythitl of our brands, television programming, digtontent and other intellectual propr
has the potential to significantly affect us and #alue of our content. Copyright theft is partaly prevalent in many parts of the world 1
lack effective copyright and technical protectiveasures similar to those existing in the UnitedeStar that lack effective enforcement of <
measures. The interpretation of copyright, privaoy other laws as applied to our content, and pidatection and enforcement efforts, rer
in flux. The failure to strengthen, or the weakenuf, existing intellectual property laws could maik more difficult for us to adequat:
protect our intellectual property and negativeligef its value.

Content theft has been made easier by the widdahilay of higher bandwidth and reduced storagstspas well as tools that undern
security features such as encryption and the wlufippirates to cloak their identities online. Iddition, we and our numerous production
distribution partners operate various technologgteayis in connection with the production and distidn of our programming, and intentio
or unintentional acts could result in unauthorizedess to our content, a disruption of our seryioesmproper disclosure of confiden
information. The increasing use of digital formatsd technologies heightens this risk. Unauthor&eckss to our content could result in
premature release of television shows, which ilyiko have a significant adverse effect on theealf the affected programming.
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Copyright theft has an adverse effect on our bgsifecause it reduces the revenue that we aréoatgleeive from the legitimate sale
distribution of our content, undermines lawful distition channels and inhibits our ability to repoor profit from the costs incurred to cre
such works. Efforts to prevent the unauthorizedrithistion, performance and copying of our contemtyraffect our profitability and may not
successful in preventing harm to our business.

Protection of electronically stored data is costynd if our data is compromised in spite of this pection, we may incur addition
costs, lost opportunities and damage to our repigat

We maintain information in digital form as necegsar conduct our business, including confidentiad @roprietary information regardi
our distributors, advertisers, viewers and empleyag well as personal information. Data maintaimedigital form is subject to the risk
intrusion, tampering and theft. We develop and taéinsystems to prevent this from occurring, bet development and maintenance of t
systems is costly and requires ongoing monitorimg) @pdating as technologies change and efforts¢ocome security measures become |
sophisticated. Moreover, despite our efforts, thsspbility of intrusion, tampering and theft canet eliminated entirely, and risks associ
with each of these remain. In addition, we providafidential, proprietary and personal informationthird parties when it is necessan
pursue business objectives. While we obtain assagthat these third parties will protect this infation and, where appropriate, monitor
protections employed by these third parties, thera risk the confidentiality of data held by thipdrties may be compromised. If our «
systems are compromised, our ability to conduct lmsginess may be impaired, we may lose profitaplgodunities or the value of thc
opportunities may be diminished and, as descrilbbede we may lose revenue as a result of unlicensedf our intellectual property. Furtt
a penetration of our network security or other msapriation or misuse of personal consumer or eyg# information could subject us
business, litigation and reputation risk, whichIdduave a negative effect on our business, findwcoiadition and results of operations.

If our technology facility fails or its operationare disrupted, our performance could be hindered.

Our programming is transmitted by our subsidiaryl@ Networks Broadcasting & Technology. AMC NetworBsoadcasting «
Technology uses its technology facility for a varief purposes, including signal processing, prograditing, promotions, creation
programming segments to fill short gaps betweetufed programs, quality control, and live and relear playback. Like other facilities, t
facility is subject to interruption from fire, lighing, adverse weather conditions and other natcaalses. Equipment failure, emplo
misconduct or outside interference could also gistie facility's services. Although we have araagement with a third party to bereadcas
the previous 48 hours of our networks' programnimthe event of a disruption, we currently do navé a backup operations facility for
programming.

In addition, we rely on thirgharty satellites in order to transmit our programgnsignals to our distributors. As with all satel, there is
risk that the satellites we use will be damaged essult of natural or mamade causes, or will otherwise fail to operate priyp Although wi
maintain in-orbit protection providing us with baag satellite transmission facilities should ounpary satellites fail, there can be no assur
that such back-up transmission facilities will iieetive or will not themselves fail.

Any significant interruption at AMC Networks Broaakting & Technology's facility affecting the diswition of our programming, or a
failure in satellite transmission of our programggignals, could have an adverse effect on ouratipgrresults and financial condition.

The loss of any of our key personnel and artistident could adversely affect our business.

We believe that our future success will depend sigaificant extent upon the performance of ouri@eaxecutives. We generally do
maintain “key man” insurance. In addition, we depeon the availability of thirgearty production companies to create our ori
programming. Some of the writers employed by oheur subsidiaries and some of the employees odl tharty production companies t
create our original programming are subject toemive bargaining agreements. Any labor disputes atrike by one or more unic
representing our subsidiary's writers or employaethird-party production companies who are essential toosiginal programming cou
have a material adverse effect on our original @ogning and on our business as a whole. The losspfsignificant personnel or artis
talent, or our artistic talent losing their audiermase, could also have a material adverse effiestiobusiness.

Our substantial debt and high leverage could adwaysaffect our business.

We have a significant amount of debt. As of Decendde 2012, we have $2,180 milligmincipal amount of total debt (excluding caf
leases), $880 million of which is senior securebtdmder our Credit Facility and $1,300 millionwalfich is senior unsecured debt.

Our ability to make payments on, or repay or rafioeg our debt, and to fund planned distributiond eapital expenditures, will depe
largely upon our future operating performance. Quiure performance, to a certain extent, is subjectgeneral economic, financi
competitive, regulatory and other factors thatlagond our control. In addition, our ability to bmw funds in the future to make payment:
our debt will depend on the satisfaction of theasmants in the Credit Facility and our other
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debt agreements, including the 7.75% Notes Indenthe 4.75% Notes Indenture and other agreemantaay enter into in the future.
Our substantial amount of debt could have importansequences. For example, it could:
* increase our vulnerability to general adverseneatc and industry conditions;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaash flow from operations to make interest andqipial payments on our debt, ther
limiting the availability of our cash flow to funfiiture programming investments, capital expend#ureorking capital, busine
activities and other general corporate requirements

« limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactigjto, changes in our business and the industryhiclwwe operate;
* place us at a competitive disadvantage compartdonr competitors; and
« limit our ability to borrow additional funds, ewevhen necessary to maintain adequate liquidity.

In the longterm, we do not expect to generate sufficient desim operations to repay at maturity our outstagdiebt obligations. As
result, we will be dependent upon our ability teess the capital and credit markets. Failure teeraignificant amounts of funding to re
these obligations at maturity could adversely d@ftaa business. If we are unable to raise such atspwe would need to take other act
including selling assets, seeking strategic investis1 from third parties or reducing other discraiy uses of cash. The Credit Facility,
7.75% Notes Indenture and the 4.75% Notes Indentilkeestrict, and market or business conditiorsyniimit, our ability to do some of the
things.

A significant portion ofour debt bears interest at variable rates. Whilehawxe entered into hedging agreements limitingeogoosure t
higher interest rates, such agreements do not off@iplete protection from this risk.

The agreements governing our debt, the Credit Fagjlthe 7.75% Notes Indenture and the 4.75% Nobedenture, contain variou
covenants that impose restrictions on us that mdfget our ability to operate our business.

The agreements governing the Credit Facility, the&% Notes Indenture and the 4.75% Notes Indergongain covenants that, amc
other things, limit our ability to:

* borrow money or guarantee d¢

» create lient

* pay dividends on or redeem or repurchase ¢
* make specified types of investme

» enter into transactions with affiliates;

» sell assets or merge with other compa

The Credit Facility requires us to comply with as@GaFlow Ratio and an Interest Coverage Ratio, estdefined in Item
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations — Debt Finapdgreements.”

Various risks, uncertainties and events beyondooumtrol could affect our ability to comply with th& covenants and maintain tr
financial ratios. Failure to comply with any of thevenants in our existing or future financing agnents could result in a default under tl
agreements and under other agreements containisge=fault provisions. A default would permit lendéosaccelerate the maturity for -
debt under these agreements and to foreclose upoodateral securing the debt. Under these cistances, we might not have suffici
funds or other resources to satisfy all of our gdtiions. In addition, the limitations imposed byaincing agreements on our ability to ir
additional debt and to take other actions mightificantly impair our ability to obtain other finaimg.

Despite our current levels of debt, we may still Bble to incur substantially more debt. This coufdrther exacerbate the risl
associated with our substantial debt.

We may be able to incur additional debt in the faitirhe terms of the Credit Facility, the 7.75% é&sotndenture and the 4.75% N
Indenture allow us to incur substantial amountadifitional debt, subject to certain limitations.aldition, we may refinance all or a portiol
our debt, including borrowings under the Creditiftgc and obtain the ability to incur more debtasesult. If new debt is added to our cur
debt levels, the related risks we could face wd@dnagnified.
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A lowering or withdrawal of the ratings assigned twr debt securities by rating agencies may furthacrease our future borrowin
costs and reduce our access to capital.

The debt ratings for our notes are below the “itwmesit grade’tategory, which results in higher borrowing costsvell as a reduced pe
of potential purchasers of our debt as some investdl not purchase debt securities that are atgd in an investment grade rating categot
addition, there can be no assurance that any rassgned will remain for any given period of timethat a rating will not be lowered
withdrawn entirely by a rating agency, if in thating agency's judgment, future circumstancesingldb the basis of the rating, such as ady
changes, so warrant. A lowering or withdrawal o&ting may further increase our future borrowingts@and reduce our access to capital.

A significant amount of our book value consists aftangible assets that may not generate cash in #ent of a voluntary ¢
involuntary sale.

At December 31, 2012 , our consolidated finandiatesnents included approximately $dilion of consolidated total assets, of wt
approximately $320million were classified as intangible assets. Igthle assets primarily include affiliation agreerserand affiliat
relationships, advertiser relationships, trademaakd goodwill. While we believe that the carryinglues of our intangible assets
recoverable, you should not assume that we wouwleive any cash from the voluntary or involuntare s# these intangible assets, particul
if we were not continuing as an operating business.

We may have a significant indemnity obligation t@Blevision if the Distribution is treated as a talx transaction.

Prior to the distribution of all of the outstandim@mmon stock of the Company to Cablevision stolddrs in the Distributiol
Cablevision received a private letter ruling frolne internal Revenue Service (“IRS9 the effect that, among other things, the Disititmn,
and certain related transactions would qualify tx-free treatment under the Internal Revenue Clue “Code”)to Cablevision, AM(
Networks, and holders of Cablevision common stédthough a private letter ruling from the IRS gealr is binding on the IRS, if the factt
representations or assumptions made in the leti@egrrequest were untrue or incomplete in any mteespect, Cablevision would not be ¢
to rely on the ruling. Furthermore, the IRS willtrrale on whether a distribution satisfies certeéguirements necessary to obtain teee
treatment under the Code. Rather, the ruling waedaipon representations by Cablevision that tleseitions were satisfied, and :
inaccuracy in such representations could invalitiaeruling.

If the Distribution does not qualify for tadxee treatment for United States federal income pasposes, then, in general, Cablevi
would be subject to tax as if it had sold the comratmck of our Company in a taxable sale for itsrfzarket value. Cablevision's stockholc
would be subject to tax as if they had receivedstidution equal to the fair market value of ownumon stock that was distributed to th
which generally would be treated first as a taxatédend to the extent of Cablevision's earningd profits, then as a ndaxable return ¢
capital to the extent of each stockholder's taxshiashis or her Cablevision stock, and thereadieicapital gain with respect to the remail
value. It is expected that the amount of any sagkg to Cablevision's stockholders and Cablevisionld be substantial.

As part of the Distribution, we entered into a wisaffiliation agreement with Cablevision, whichtseut each party's rights ¢
obligations with respect to deficiencies and refyritlany, of federal, state, local or foreign texfer periods before and after the Distribu
and related matters such as the filing of tax retiand the conduct of IRS and other audits. Putdoahe tax disaffiliation agreement, we
required to indemnify Cablevision for losses arxksaof Cablevision relating to the Distributionamy related debt exchanges resulting 1
the breach of certain covenants, including as altre$ certain acquisitions of our stock or ass®tas a result of modification or repaymer
certain related debt in a manner inconsistent Withprivate letter ruling or letter ruling requeltwe are required to indemnify Cablevis
under the circumstances set forth in the tax digafbn agreement, we may be subject to substhaliikilities, which could have a mater
negative effect on our business, results of oparatifinancial position and cash flows.

The tax rules applicable to the Distribution may gsteict us from engaging in certain corporate transéons or from raising equit
capital beyond certain thresholds for a period aht after June 30, 2011, the date of the Distritarii

To preserve the taftee treatment of the Distribution to Cablevisiamdats stockholders, under the Tax Disaffiliatiograement wit
Cablevision, for the two-year period following JuB® 2011, the date of the Distribution, we willsaebject to restrictions with respect to:

» entering into any transaction pursuant to which 50%mnore of our equity securities or assets woelébquired, whether by merge
otherwise, unless certain tests are met;

* issuing equity securities, if any such issuanceslvan the aggregate, constitute 50% or more efubting power or value of @
capital stock;

e certain repurchases of our common sh

e ceasing to actively conduct our busin
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e amendments to our organizational documents (ictffg the relative voting rights of our stock dj onverting one class of our stc
to another;

» liquidating or partially liquidating; ar
« taking any other action that prevents the Disiion and related transactions from beingfrae

Furthermore, the tax disaffiliation agreement Isvour ability to prepay, pay down, redeem, retire, or otherwise acghiee7.75% Note
or the 4.75% Notes. These restrictions may fomee tlimit our ability to pursue strategic transanticof a certain magnitude that involve
issuance or acquisition of our stock or engageew businesses or other transactions that couletaser the value of our business. T
restrictions may also limit our ability to raisegsificant amounts of cash through the issuanceawtks especially if our stock price were
suffer substantial declines, or through the saleeofain of our assets.

Our historical financial results as a business segnt of Cablevision may not be representative of oesults as a separate, staradbne
company.

The historical financial information through Jur® 2011 included in this Annual Report has beeivddrfrom the consolidated financ
statements and accounting records of Cablevisidndaes not necessarily reflect what our financtagifion, results of operations or cash fli
would have been had we operated as a separatd;adtare company during those periods. Although Casilew accounted for our Company
a business segment, we were not operated as asgpstandilone company for the historical periods througheJ80, 2011. The historic
costs and expenses through June 30, 2011 reflectad consolidated financial statements includekacation for certain corporate functic
historically provided by Cablevision, including geal corporate expenses and employee benefitsnaedtives. These allocations were bi
on what we and Cablevision considered to be reddemaflections of the historical utilization legedf these services required in support o
business. Prior to its termination on June 30, 204t historical costs also included a managemsmiphid to Cablevision calculated base
certain of our subsidiaries gross revenues (asefinder the terms of the consulting agreemend) monthly basis. The historical informat
does not necessarily indicate what our resultgpefations, financial position, cash flows or casid expenses will be in the future.

Our ability to operate our business effectively msyffer if we do not, effectively, establish our ndinancial, administrative and othe
support functions in order to operate as a sepatag¢andalone company, and we cannot assure you that thensition service
Cablevision has agreed to provide us will be su#fitt for our needs.

Historically, we have relied on financial, adming&ive and other resources of Cablevision to supier operation of our business. £
result of our separation from Cablevision, we haxpanded our financial, administrative and othgmpsut systems and contracted with t
parties to replace certain of Cablevis®isystems. We also have established our own aaditanking relationships and are performinc
own financial and operational functions. Any fadur significant downtime in our own financial atrainistrative systems or in Cablevisien’
financial or administrative systems during the $ition period could impact our results or prevesatftom performing other administrat
services and financial reporting on a timely basid could materially harm our business, finanadaldition and results of operations.

In connection with the Distribution, we rely on Cédwvision’s performance under various agreements.

In connection with the Distribution, we enteredointarious agreements with Cablevision, includindiatribution Agreement, t¢
disaffiliation agreement, a transition serviceseagnent, an employee matters agreement and certfaém related party agreements
arrangements. These agreements govern our relaifomsth Cablevision subsequent to the Distributimd provide for the allocation
employee benefits, taxes and certain other ligdsliand obligations attributable to periods priorthie Distribution. These agreements
include arrangements with respect to transitiorvises and a number of ageing commercial relationships. The Distribution régmer
includes an agreement that we and Cablevision amgrggovide each other with indemnities with regptec liabilities arising out of tt
businesses that were transferred to u€hplevision. We are also party to other arrangemetith Cablevision. We and Cablevision rely
each other to perform each entityobligations under these agreements. If Cablavigiere to breach or to be unable to satisfy itseni
obligations under these agreements, including lar&ito satisfy its indemnification obligations, weuld suffer operational difficulties
significant losses.
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We are controlled by the Dolan family, which mayeate certain conflicts of interest and which meaaoertain stockholder decisiol
can be taken without the consent of the majoritytb® holders of our Class A Common Stock.

We have two classes of common stock:

e Class B Common Stock, which is generally entitleden votes per share and is entitled collectitelglect 75% of our Board
Directors, and

e Class A Common Stock, which is entitled to one e share and is entitled collectively to elee tmaining 25% of our Board
Directors.

As of December 31, 201,2Charles F. Dolan, our Executive Chairman, anditbtan family, including trusts for the benefit member
of the Dolan family, collectively own all of our &s B Common Stock, less than 2% our outstanding Class A Common Stock
approximately 66%f the total voting power of all our outstandingramon stock. The members of the Dolan family holdiigss B Commc
Stock have entered into a stockholders agreemeasuant to which, among other things, the voting @owf the holders of our Clas:
Common Stock will be cast as a block with respeclt matters to be voted on by holders of ClagddBhmon Stock. The Dolan family is a
to prevent a change in control of our Company amgerson interested in acquiring us will be ablddaso without obtaining the consent of
Dolan family.

Charles F. Dolan, members of his family and centalated family entities, by virtue of their stookwnership, have the power to elec
of our directors subject to election by holderCtdss B Common Stock and are able collectivelyoratrol stockholder decisions on matter:
which holders of all classes of our common stodie together as a single class. These matters amlidle the amendment of some provis
of our certificate of incorporation and the appiosfafundamental corporate transactions.

In addition, the affirmative vote or consent of thelders of at least 66 2/3% of the outstandingeshaf the Class B Common Stc
voting separately as a class, is required to agprov

« the authorization or issuance of any additionatehaf Class B Common Stock, i

e any amendment, alteration or repeal of any of ttevipions of our certificate of incorporation thadversely affects the powe
preferences or rights of the Class B Common Stock.

As a result, Charles F. Dolan, members of his famid certain related family entities also colleely have the power to prevent s
issuance or amendment.

We have adopted a written policy whereby an inddpahcommittee of our Board of Directors will rewieand approve or take such ol
action as it may deem appropriate with respecettai transactions involving the Company and utissgdiaries, on the one hand, and ce
related parties, including Charles F. Dolan andageiof his family members and related entitiegtmnother hand. This policy does not adc
all possible conflicts which may arise, and theae be no assurance that this policy will be effecin dealing with conflict scenarios.

We are a “controlled companyfor NASDAQ purposes, which allows us not to complith certain of the corporate governance ru
of NASDAQ.

Charles F. Dolan, members of his family and certalated family entities have entered into a stotitérs agreement relating, ami
other things, to the voting of their shares of @lass B Common Stock. As a result, we are a “ctlattocompany”under the corpora
governance rules of NASDAQ. As a controlled compamg have the right to elect not to comply with t@porate governance rules
NASDAQ requiring: (i) a majority of independent elitors on our Board of Directors, (ii) an indeparndsmpensation committee and (iii)
independent corporate governance and nominatingnitbe®. Our Board of Directors has elected for@mnpany to be treated as@htrollec
company”under NASDAQ corporate governance rules and nobtoply with the NASDAQ requirement for a majoritydependent board
directors and an independent corporate governamg¢en@minating committee because of our status @m#olled company. For purposes
this agreement, the term “independent directorsans the directors of the Company who have betenndiemed by our Board of Directors to
independent directors for purposes of NASDAQ caapmgovernance standards.

Future stock sales, including as a result of theeggising of registration rights by certain of outhareholders, could adversely affect 1
trading price of our Class A Common Stock.

Certain parties have registration rights coverirgpgion of our shares. We have entered into resgien rights agreements with Cha
F. Dolan, members of his family, certain Dolan finterests and the Dolan Family Foundations hravide them with “demandéanc
“piggyback” registration rights with respect to approximateB/4lmillion shares of Class A Common Stock, inahgdshares issuable ug
conversion of shares of Class B Common Stock. Sdlessubstantial number of shares of Class A ComBtock could adversely affect
market price of the Class A Common Stock and caufghir our future ability to raise capital through offering of our equity securities.
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We share a senior executive and certain directoithvCablevision and The Madison Square Garden Compawhich may give rise
conflicts.

Our Executive Chairman, Charles F. Dolan, alsoeseas the Chairman of Cablevision. As a resuleraos executive officer of tl
Company will not be devoting his full time and atien to the Company'affairs. In addition, eight members of our Boafdirectors are als
directors of Cablevision and seven members of mar® are also directors of The Madison Square Ga@mpany (“MSG”)an affiliate o
Cablevision and the Company. These directors mag hatual or apparent conflicts of interest withpect to matters involving or affect
each company. For example, the potential for alwbrdf interest exists when we on one hand, antl&@asion or MSG on the other ha
consider acquisitions and other corporate oppdiamthat may be suitable for us and either or lodtthem. Also, conflicts may arise if thi
are issues or disputes under the commercial amasges that exist between Cablevision or MSG andinuaddition, certain of our directors ¢
officers, including Charles F. Dolan, own Cableeisbr MSG stock, restricted stock units and optimngurchase, and stock appreciation ri
in respect of, Cablevision or MSG stock, as weltash performance awards with any payout basedatte@sion’s or MSGs performanc
These ownership interests could create actual,rappar potential conflicts of interest when thésdividuals are faced with decisions t
could have different implications for our CompaBgblevision or MSG. See “Certain Relationships Bethted Party Transactions=ertair
Relationships and Potential Conflicts of Interast’our proxy statement filed with the SEC on A4, 2012 for a description of our rela
party transaction approval policy that we have aelbpo help address such potential conflicts thay arise.

Our overlapping directors and executive officer Wi€Cablevision and MSG may result in the diversiohamrporate opportunities to ar
other conflicts with Cablevision or MSG and provisis in our amended and restated certificate of imgoration may provide us r
remedy in that circumstance.

The Companys amended and restated certificate of incorporatitkmowledges that directors and officers of thenfany may also |
serving as directors, officers, employees, constdtar agents of Cablevision and its subsidiarie$18G and its subsidiaries and that
Company may engage in material business transactidgth such entities. The Company has renouncedigtsts to certain busine
opportunities and the Compasyamended and restated certificate of incorporgironides that no director or officer of the Comyparho is
also serving as a director, officer, employee, atiaat or agent of Cablevision and its subsidiade®SG and its subsidiaries will be liable
the Company or its stockholders for breach of ashydiary duty that would otherwise exist by reasbthe fact that any such individual dire
a corporate opportunity (other than certain limitgoes of opportunities set forth in our certifieaif incorporation) to Cablevision or any of
subsidiaries or MSG or any of its subsidiariesdadtof the Company, or does not refer or commumicdibrmation regarding such corpol
opportunities to the Company. These provisions un @amended and restated certificate of incorpamatitso expressly validates cer!
contracts, agreements, assignments and transad@émas amendments, modifications or terminationgeib® between the Company ¢
Cablevision or any of its subsidiaries or MSG oy ahits subsidiaries and, to the fullest extenthpéed by law, provide that the actions of
overlapping directors or officers in connectionréweith are not breaches of fiduciary duties owedh® Company, any of its subsidiarie:
their respective stockholders.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
Item 2. Properties.

We currently use approximately 239,000 square déeiffice space that we lease at 11 Penn Plaza, Xek, NY 10001, under lea
arrangements with remaining terms of up to eiglhryeWe use this space as our corporate headguartéras the principal business locatic
our Company. We also lease approximately 60,00@rsdeet of space for our broadcasting and technolagytes in Bethpage, New Yc
under a lease arrangement with a remaining ternsegen years, from which AMC Networks Broadcastind &hnology conducts

operations. In addition, we lease other propeitidéew York, California, lllinois, Georgia and Mijan.

We believe our properties are adequate for our use.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
DISH Network Contract Dispute

In 2005, subsidiaries of the Company entered igiee@ments with EchoStar Communications Corporagiod its affiliates by whic
EchoStar Media Holdings Corporation acquired a 208rest in VOOM HD and EchoStar Satellite LLC (fhedecessor to DISH Netwao
LLC (“DISH Network”)) agreed to distribute VOOM ddISH Network for a 15year term. The affiliation agreement with DISH Netw for
such distribution provided that if VOOM HD failed spend $10nillion per year (subject to reduction to the extirat the number of offer
channels was reduced to fewer than 21 ), up toxamuen of $500million in the aggregate, on VOOM, DISH Network tdgeek to termina
the agreement under certain circumstances. On da80a2008, DISH Network purported to terminate #iffiliation agreement, effecti
February 1, 2008, based on its assertion that VOdMhad failed to comply with this spending provisim 2006. On January 31, 20
VOOM HD sought and obtained a temporary restrairorder from the New York Supreme Court for New Y&@kunty prohibiting DISI
Network from terminating the affiliation agreemelmt.conjunction with its request for a temporargtraining order, VOOM HD also reques
a preliminary injunction and filed a lawsuit agdifdSH Network asserting that DISH Network did iatve the right to terminate the affiliat
agreement. In a decision filed on May 5, 2008,dbert denied VOOM HD8 motion for a preliminary injunction. On or abdday 13, 200¢
DISH Network ceased distribution of VOOM on its BISNetwork. On May 27, 2008, VOOM HD amended its ptaint to seek damages
DISH Network’s improper termination of the affiliah agreement. On June 24, 2008, DISH Network areiv&OOM HD’s amende
complaint and asserted counterclaims alleging lbredccontract and breach of the duty of good faittd fair dealing with respect to -
affiliation agreement. On July 14, 2008, VOOM HDplied to DISH Network'’s counterclaims. VOOM HD aBdiSH Network each filed cross-
motions for summary judgment. In November 2010, ¢bert denied both parties’ crossstions for summary judgment but granted VO
HD’s motion for sanctions based on DISH Networlpslgation of evidence as well as its motion to exid DISH Networks principal damag:
expert. DISH Network appealed these latter twiings. On January 31, 2012, the Appellate Divisaf the New York State Supreme C¢
issued a decision affirming (i) the trial cogrfinding of spoliation and imposition of the saontof an adverse inference at trial; and (ii)
trial court’s decision to exclude DISH Netwoskdamages expert. On February 6, 2012, DISH Netiiledk a motion seeking leave from
Appellate Division to appeal the order. On April, 2812, the Appellate Division denied DISH Netwarkhotion, thereby precluding &
further appeal of the trial court rulings. The stdythe pending trial court proceedings was liftedMay 1, 2012. A trial before the New Y1
State Supreme Court began on September 28, 2012.

On October 21, 2012, VOOM HD and CSC Holdings, LE:CSC Holdings"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Galikion, entered into
confidential settlement agreement and release “@e¢tlement Agreement’ith DISH Network, and for certain limited purposédSC
Holdings, L.P., The Madison Square Garden Comparty EBchoStar Corporation, to settle the litigatiostieen VOOM HD and DIS
Network. On October 24, 2012, VOOM HD and DISH Netkvfiled a stipulation of discontinuance with preice with the New York Sta
Supreme Court with respect to the litigation.

The principal terms of the Settlement Agreementamdollows: 1) DISH Network paid $70@illion to an account for the benefit
Cablevision and the Company; 2) Cablevision agteesell its multichannel video and data distribatgervice spectrum licenses in the U.¢
DISH Network; 3) simultaneously with the executioh the Settlement Agreement, DISH Network enteretb ia longterm affiliatior
agreement with AMC Network Entertainment LLC, WEoMven's Entertainment LLC, The Independent Film @eahLC, Sundance Chani
L.L.C. and Fuse Network LLC, a subsidiary of Thedi#é®n Square Garden Company, that provided fornpson of carriage of all of tt
Company's networks by no later than November 1228td 4) an affiliate of DISH Network agreed taveey its 20%membership interest
VOOM HD to Rainbow Programming Holdings LLC ("Raovwe Programming Holdings"), a wholly owned subsidiaf AMC Networks.

In connection with the Distribution, AMC Networksich Rainbow Programming Holdings (collectively, teMC Parties”) and CS(
Holdings entered into an agreement (the “VOOM latign Agreement”)which provides that, CSC Holdings had full conwekr the litigatiol
with DISH Network and the decision with respecséitlement was to be made jointly by CSC Holdings the AMC Parties. In addition, 1
VOOM Litigation Agreement provides that CSC Holdsngnd the AMC Parties will share equally in thegeexs (including in the value of ¢
non-cash consideration) of the settlement in the litigawith DISH Network. The AMC Parties were respiime for the legal fees and cc
until such costs reached an agreed upon threshbidh occurred in the third quarter of 2012, sulesr to which CSC Holdings and the Al
Parties bear such fees and expenses equally.

The allocation of the settlement proceeds betwbenAMC Parties and CSC Holdings will be determinmmasuant to the VOO
Litigation Agreement. The AMC Parties and CSC Hodsi agreed that, pending a determination of trecatiion of the settlement procee
$350 million of the cash proceeds would be distebduto each of the Company and Cablevision. Acoglglj the portion disbursed to
Company is included in cash and cash equivalentiseirconsolidated balance sheet at December 32, 2Bk final amount to be allocatec
the Company is yet to be determined and may béfisigmtly less than $350 million.

As the Settlement Agreement and the long-termiatifin agreement entered into on October 21, 2@2esent a multiplelemen

arrangement that includes elements other than weyesnd there is vendor-specific objective evideoté¢he fair value of the lontgrm
affiliation agreement, which is the only undeliveelement of the arrangement, the Company detechtivad
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the residual method of accounting is the most gmmte method to allocate the consideration amdrgy disparate elements of
arrangement. Accordingly, at October 21, 2012 fievalue of the affiliation agreement must beeatsfd and recognized as revenue a
programming services are provided.

Based on the Company's fair value assessment d@ffiiation agreement, the affiliation fees payalbly DISH Network to the Compa
from the effective date of the affiliation agreemehOctober 21, 2012 through December 31, 2013datew fair value by approximately $
million and the affiliation fees payable by DISH terk over the remaining term of the affiliationragment represent fair value. As a re
the Company recorded the $31 million excess off#lirevalue of the affiliation agreement over thentractual affiliation fees as defer
revenue on October 21, 2012, of which approxima#&ymillion was recognized as revenue during 204 2ha programming services w
provided. The remaining $26 million is included deferred revenue in the December 31, 2012 consetidhalance sheet and will
recognized ratably over 2013 as the programmingces are provided.

Deferred litigation settlement proceeds of $308iamilis recorded in the consolidated balance she&ecember 31, 2012, which is
result of the $350 million temporary allocationmbceeds, less the $31 million of deferred reveandtless an $11 million receivable relate
VOOM HD'’s previous affiliation agreement with DISH NetwoAt. December 31, 2012, there is no minimum amodrgettlement procee
that the Company is guaranteed. As a result, igation settlement gain, if any, was recognize@@i2 and such gain, if any, which coulc
material, will not be recognized until realizedlfoving the final resolution of the allocation oftkettlement proceeds.

Other Legal Matters

On April 15, 2011, Thomas C. Dolan, a directorhef Company and Executive Vice President, StratagyDevelopment, in the Office
the Chairman and a director of Cablevision, filethasuit against Cablevision and RMH in New YorkpS&me Court. The lawsuit rait
compensation-related claims (seeking approxima&iglymillion) related to events in 2005. The matteréig handled under the direction o
independent committee of the board of director€ablevision. In connection with the Distribution regment, Cablevision indemnified
Company and RMH against any liabilities and expsnstated to this lawsuit. Based on the indemrificaand Cablevisios’ and th
Company'’s assessment of this possible loss comtaygeo provision has been made for this matténénconsolidated financial statements.

In addition to the matters discussed above, the gamw is party to various lawsuits and claims in tndinary course of busine
Although the outcome of these other matters cahaqgtredicted with certainty and the impact of timalfresolution of these other matters
the Companys results of operations in a particular subseqregurting period is not known, management doedbali¢ve that the resolution
these matters will have a material adverse effacthe financial position of the Company or the ipibf the Company to meet its financ
obligations as they become due.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Part Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities.

Our Class A Common Stock is listed on The NASDA@c&tMarket LLC (“NASDAQ”) under the symbol “AMCX.'Our Class |
Common Stock is not listed on any exchange. OussfaCommon Stock began trading on NASDAQ on JuR011.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofGbenpany’s Class A Common Stock with the perforneanicthe S&P Mid€ap 40!
Index and a peer group (the “Peer Group Indéy’measuring the changes in our Class A CommorkStaces from July 1, 2011, the first ¢
our Class A Common Stock began regular-way tradim@NASDAQ, through December 31, 201Because no published index of compar
media companies currently reports values on a eiddreinvested basis, the Company has created a Peep @Gndex for purposes of tl
graph in accordance with the requirements of th€.SEhe Peer Group Index is made up of companies géhgage in cable televisi
programming as a significant element of their bess although not all of the companies includethenPeer Group Index participate in al
the lines of business in which the Company is eadagnd some of the companies included in the Beaup Index also engage in lines
business in which the Company does not particigadditionally, the market capitalizations of manf/the companies included in the F
Group are quite different from that of the Compahkie common stocks of the following companies hbgen included in the Peer Grt
Index: Discovery Communications Inc., the Walt grCompany, News Corporation, Scripps Networksraatigve Inc., Time Warner Inc. a
Viacom Inc. The chart assumes $100 was investedliynl, 2011 in each of the Company’s Class A Comi8tock, the S&P Midzap 40!
Index and in a peer group weighted by market chgatizon.
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Comparisonof Cumulative Total Return
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—B— AMC Hetworks ine.  —e— S&P MidCap 400 Index —%— Peer Group
B INDEXED RETURNS
Pe?i?)?j Quarter Ending
Company Name / Index 7/01/11 9/30/11 12/31/11 3/31/12 6/30/12 9/30/12 12/31/12
AMC Networks Inc. 100 80.1¢ 94.3( 111.9¢ 89.21 109.2: 124.2:
S&P MidCap 400 Index 100 78.8( 89.0: 101.0¢ 96.0¢ 101.2¢ 104.9¢
Peer Group 100 79.91 96.0¢ 107.5. 116.6: 129.5¢ 130.7(

This performance graph shall not be deemed “filleal"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgbafsct of 1934, as amended |
“Exchange Act”)or incorporated by reference into any of our fisngnder the Securities Act of 1933, as amendetheoExchange Act, exce

as shall be expressly set forth by specific refeean such filing.

As of February 19, 2013 there were 1,022 holderseobrd of our Class A Common Stock and 34 holaéreecord of our Class
Common Stock. We did not pay any cash dividenduncommon stock during 2012 and do not expect yogoaash dividend on our comn
stock for the foreseeable future. Our Credit Fagilihe 7.75% Notes Indenture and the 4.75% Natderiture restrict our ability to decl

dividends in certain situations.
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Price Range of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock

The following table sets forth for the periods atied the intratay high and low sales prices per share of the AMEI&ss A Commc
Stock as reported on the NASDAQ:

Year Ended December 31, 2012 High Low

First Quarter $ 46.6¢ $ 36.9¢
Second Quarter $ 46.0C $ 34.7¢
Third Quarter $ 45.0¢ $ 35.3(
Fourth Quarter $ 55.3¢ $ 40.7¢
Year Ended December 31, 2011 High Low

First Quarter N/A N/A
Second Quarter (a) $ 4421 % 31.0(
Third Quarter $ 40.2¢ $ 29.6¢
Fourth Quarter $ 37.9¢ $ 30.5:

N/A—Not applicable

(&) AMC Networks Inc. became an independent publichdéd company on June 30, 2011 upon the DistribliiorCablevision to it
stockholders of all of the outstanding common stoElKAMC Networks Inc. See Item 1, “Busines®Y discussion of our operati
history.

On March 9, 2011, in connection with the incorpimmatof AMC Networks Inc., CSC Holdings, LLC (“CSCollings”), a subsidiary ¢
Cablevision, acquired 1,000 shares of common a06&MC Networks Inc. for $10.00.

On June 6, 2011, in connection with the Distribati€SC Holdings acquired 5,000 shares of commockstd AMC Networks Inc. &
partial consideration for contributing 100% of tgtstanding stock and limited liability companyergsts in RMH to AMC Networks Inc. (
June 28, 2011, pursuant to our amended and restattficate of incorporation, the 6,000 shareg@mhmon stock outstanding were conve
to 57,813,257 shares of Class A Common Stock argB4318 shares of Class B Common Stock.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company bt acquire any of its equity securities.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The operating and balance sheet data includeceifiollowing selected financial data as of Decentier2012 and 2011 and for eacl
the years in the thregear period ended December 31, 2012, have beewmedefiom the audited consolidated financial stateisief the
Company included in this Annual Report. The balastoeet data included in the following selectedrimal data as of December 31, 2010
2009 and the operating data for the years in theywar period ended December 31, 2009 have beenedefiom the audited consolida
financial statements of the Company, not includethis Annual Report. The balance sheet data irdud the following selected financial d
as of December 31, 2008 has been derived fromrihedited consolidated financial statements of tben@any, not included in this Anni
Report. The financial information presented belavesinot necessarily reflect what our results ofatEns and financial position would hi
been through 2011 if we had operated as a sepaustely-traded entity prior to July 1, 2011. The selectiedricial data below is also 1
necessarily indicative of results of future opemasi and should be read in conjunction with Iterfifanagemens Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” #relaccompanying consolidated financial statemamdsrelated notes.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Operating Data (a):
Revenues, net $ 135257 $ 1,187,74 $ 1,078,301 $ 973,64: $ 893,55
Operating expenses:
Technical and operating (excluding
depreciation and amortization shown below) 507,43t 425,96: 366,09: 310,36! 314,96(
Selling, general and administrative 396,92t 335,65¢ 328,13: 313,90 302,47:
Restructuring (credit) expense (b) (3) (240 (2,219 5,16: 46,87
Depreciation and amortization 85,38( 99,84¢ 106,45! 106,50« 108,34¢
989,73¢ 861,22! 798,46: 735,93! 772,66(
Operating income 362,83t 326,51¢ 279,83t 237,70¢ 120,89°
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net (127,276 (94,796 (73,417 (78,947) (99,905
Other, net (13,289 (21,110 (162) 187 (38,83¢)
(140,56, (115,90¢) (73,579 (78,759 (138,74))
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxes 222,27 210,61( 206,26: 158,95« (17,849
Income tax expense (86,05¢) (84,249 (88,077) (70,407 (2,739
Income (loss) from continuing operations 136,21¢ 126,36. 118,18¢ 88,54’ (20,57¢)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, ne
income taxes 314 92 (38,090 (34,79) (26,86¢)
Net income (loss) $ 136,53( $ 126,45 $ 80,09¢ $ 53,75¢ $ (47,440
Income (loss) from continuing operations per
share:
Basic (c) $ 194 % 182 $ 171 % 128 % (0.30)
Diluted (c) $ 18 ¢ 1.7¢ $ 171 ¢ 128 $ (0.30
Balance Sheet Data, at period end:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 610,97( $ 215,83t $ 79,96( $ 29,82¢ $ 25,48(
Total assets 2,618,85! 2,183,93. 1,853,89! 1,934,36: 1,987,91
Note payable/advances to related parties — — — 190,00( 190,00(
Total debt (including capital leases) (d) 2,168,97 2,306,95 1,118,87! 1,227,71. 1,343,68
Stockholders’ (deficiency) equity (d) (882,35 (1,036,99) 24,83: (236,99:) (278,50

(&) We acquired Sundance Channel in June 2008.rd@$dts of Sundance Chanmebperations have been included in the consoli
financial statements from the date of acquisition.

(b) In December 2008, we decided to discontinue fundhmey domestic programming business of VOOM HD. émreection with thi
decision, we recorded restructuring expense (Qradéach of the years from 2008 to 2012.

29






(c) Common shares assumed to be outstanding duringetims ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008dd8ld 61,000, represent
the number of shares of AMC Networks common steskiéd to Cablevision shareholders on the Distobuliate, and excludes unves
outstanding restricted shares, based on a distiibuitio of one share of AMC Networks common stdok every four shares
Cablevision common stock outstanding.

(d) As part of the Distribution, we incurred $254@00 of debt (the “Distribution Debt"¢onsisting of $1,725,000 aggregate principal arr
of senior secured term loans and $700,000 aggregatepal amount of 7.75% senior unsecured nagipproximately $1,063,000 of t
proceeds of the Distribution Debt was used to regdapreDistribution outstanding Company debt (excludingital leases), includir
principal and accrued and unpaid interest to the d& repayment, and, as partial considerationCfablevisions contribution of th
membership interests in RMH to the Company, $1@80, net of discount, of Distribution Debt was isduo CSC Holdings, a wholy
owned subsidiary of Cablevision, which is reflectesl a deemed capital distribution in the consddidattatement of stockholdérs
deficiency for the year ended December 31, 201é&.\8#e 1 to the accompanying consolidated finarsta@kments.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fimgr€ondition and Results of Operations contaiaseshents that constitute forward:
looking information within the meaning of the Pries&Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. IngiManagemens’ Discussion and Analy:
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsr¢hare statements concerning our future operatisigits and future financial performar
Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “believe&gstimates,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “paential,” “continue,” “intends,” “plans”
and similar words and terms used in the discussiofuture operating results and future financiatfpenance identify forwardeoking
statements. You are cautioned that any such forleaidng statements are not guarantees of futuropeance or results and involve risks
uncertainties and that actual results or developsneray differ materially from the forwalddoking statements as a result of various fac
Factors that may cause such differences to occluda, but are not limited to:

” o " o

* the level of our revenues;
* market demand for new programming services;
« demand for advertising inventory;

« the demand for our programming among cable and atluétichannel video programming distributors anal ability to maintain ar
renew affiliation agreements with multichannel vaggogramming distributors;

« the cost of, and our ability to obtain or produgesirable programming content for our networks finddistribution businesse

« market demand for our services internationally &rdour film distribution business, and our ability profitably provide thos
services;

» the security of our program rights and otHecteonic data;

» the loss of any of our key personnel and tiztialent;

« the highly competitive nature of the cablegreomming industry;

« changes in both domestic and foreign lawsgulations under which we operate;

» the outcome of litigation and other proceedingsluding the matters described in Note 11, Commitsiand Contingencies in |
accompanying consolidated financial statements;

* general economic conditions in the areas iitivive operate;

« our substantial debt and high leverage;

» reduced access to capital markets or sigmifizacreases in costs to borrow;

« the level of our expenses;

» the level of our capital expenditures;

« future acquisitions and dispositions of assets

» whether pending uncompleted transactionm)yf are completed on the terms and at the timefogét(if at all);
« other risks and uncertainties inherent in gnagramming businesses;

» financial community and rating agency perceptioh®wr business, operations, financial condition &mel industry i
which we operate, and the additional factors dbsdrherein,

« timing and amount of the allocation of the prd® from the settlement with DISH Network L.L.CD{SH Network”),as describe
in Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies in tlmapanying consolidated financial statements; and

« the factors described under Item 1A, “Risk Fagtam this Annual Report.



We disclaim any obligation to update or revise thewarddooking statements contained herein, except asrwibe required b
applicable federal securities laws.

All dollar amounts and subscriber data included inthe following Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditic
and Results of Operations are presented in thousasd
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Introduction

Managemens discussion and analysis, or MD&A, of our resolt®@perations and financial condition is providedsasupplement to, a
should be read in conjunction with, the accompagyionsolidated financial statements and notes tinémeluded elsewhere herein to enh
the understanding of our financial condition, chesan financial condition and results of our opierat. Our MD&A is organized as follows:

Business OverviewThis section provides a general description oflmusiness and our reportable segments, as wethas matters th
we believe are important in understanding our tesafloperations and financial condition and ini@pating future trends.

Consolidated Results of OperatianBhis section provides an analysis of our resafiigperations for the years ended December 31, 201
2011 and 2010 Our discussion is presented on both a consotidatel segment basis. Our two segments are: (iphitiNetworks ar
(i) International and Other.

Liquidity and Capital ResourcesThis section provides a discussion of our finahcbndition as of December 31, 2042 well as &
analysis of our cash flows for the years ended Bee 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 he discussion of our financial condition andulidjty
includes summaries of (i) our primary sources @dilility and (ii) our contractual obligations and b&lance sheet arrangements that exist
December 31, 2012 .

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimate$his section provides a discussion of our acdagrolicies considered to be important tc
understanding of our financial condition and reswf operations, and which require significant judmt and estimates on the par
management in their application.

Business Overview
We manage our business through the following tvpomable segments:

» National Networks:ncludes four nationally distributed programmingtvmerks: AMC, WE tv, IFC and Sundance Channel. T
programming networks are distributed throughoutnéed States via multichannel video programmiiggributors;

» International and OtherPrincipally includes AMC/Sundance Channel Global;, imternational programming business; IFC Filmsg
independent film distribution business; and AMC Watks Broadcasting & Technology, our network techhiservices busine:
which primarily services the programming networKstlte Company. AMC and Sundance Channel are diggibin Canada a
Sundance Channel and WE tv are distributed in atbentries throughout Europe and Asia. The Intéonat and Other reportat
segment also includes VOOM HD, which we are windilogvn, and which continues to sell certain limiggdounts of programmii
through program license agreements.

The tables presented below set forth our conseiaévenues, net, operating income (loss) and AQEfined below, for the perio
indicated.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Revenues, net

National Networks $ 1,254,18 % 1,082,350 $ 994,57.
International and Other 114,54: 125,57: 104,49¢
Inter-segment eliminations (16,150 (20,190 (20,777)
Consolidated revenues, net $ 135257 $ 1,187,714  $ 1,078,30!
Operating income (loss)

National Networks $ 408,11° $ 349,27. $ 312,52!
International and Other (48,607 (21,890 (29,607)
Inter-segment eliminations 3,32¢ (86€) (3,08¢)
Consolidated operating income $ 362,83t $ 326,51t $ 279,83t
AOCEF (deficit)

National Networks $ 492,12¢ % 44755! % 419,05:
International and Other (30,040 (4,976 (14,68¢)
Inter-segment eliminations 3,32¢ (86€) (3,08¢)

Consolidated AOCF $ 465,41 $ 441,710 $ 401,27!
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We evaluate segment performance based on sevetailsaof which the primary financial measure isihass segment AOCF. We de
AOCF, which is a financial measure that is not glted in accordance with generally accepted adamyprinciples (“GAAP”),as operatin
income (loss) before depreciation and amortizabaye-based compensation expense or benefit simdateiring expense or credit.

We believe that AOCF is an appropriate measurevatuating the operating performance on both anlessi segment and consolid:
basis. AOCF and similar measures with similar gittre common performance measures used by investuaysts and peers to comg
performance in the industry.

Internally, we use revenues, net and AOCF measasethe most important indicators of our businesfopmance, and evalu:
managemens' effectiveness with specific reference to theskcators. AOCF should be viewed as a supplemermintb not a substitute 1
operating income (loss), net income (loss), caslvdlfrom operating activities and other measurgseoformance and/or liquidity presente:
accordance with GAAP. Since AOCF is not a measudr@esformance calculated in accordance with GAAMS tmeasure may not
comparable to similar measures with similar titieed by other companies.

The following is a reconciliation of consolidatepepating income to AOCF for the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Operating income $ 362,83¢ $ 326,51¢ $ 279,83t
Share-based compensation expense 17,20: 15,58¢ 17,20¢
Restructuring credit (©)] (240 (2,219
Depreciation and amortization 85,38( 99,84¢ 106,45!
AOCF $ 465,41 $ 441,71 % 401,27!

National Networks

In our National Networks segment, which accounwad93% of our consolidated revenues for the yealedrDecember 31, 2012wve
earn revenue principally from the distribution afr grogramming and the sale of advertising. Distitn revenue primarily includes affiliati
fees paid by distributors to carry our programmiegworks and the licensing of original programmifog digital, foreign and home vid
distribution. Affiliation fees paid by distributonepresents the largest component of distributewemnue. Our affiliation fee revenues
generally based on a per subscriber fee under-yedti contracts, commonly referred to as “affibatagreementsyvhich generally provide fi
annual affiliation rate increases. The specifidiaffon fee revenues we earn vary from period éoiqd, distributor to distributor and also v
among our networks, but are generally based upemtimber of each distributsr'subscribers who receive our programming, refetoeak
“viewing subscribers.The terms of certain other affiliation agreementsvigle that the affiliation fee revenues we eam arfixed contractu
monthly fee, which could be adjusted for acquisigi@nd dispositions of multichannel video prograngrsystems by the distributor. Reve
from the licensing of original programming for daiand foreign distribution is recognized uponitlity and distribution by the licensee.

Under affiliation agreements with our distributonge have the right to sell a specified amount dfomal advertising time on certain
our programming networks. Our advertising reveraresmore variable than affiliation fee revenuesabse the majority of our advertising
sold on a short-term basis, not under lo@ign contracts. Our advertising arrangements wdilegtisers provide for a set number of adverti
units to air over a specific period of time at goated price per unit. In certain advertisingesahrrangements, our programming netw
guarantee specified viewer ratings for their pragrang. If these guaranteed viewer ratings are nett me are generally required to pro\
additional advertising units to the advertiser ataharge. For these types of arrangements, a poofithe related revenue is deferred if
guaranteed viewer ratings are not met and is sulesgly recognized either when we provide the regliadditional advertising time, 1
guarantee obligation contractually expires or pannce requirements become remote. Most of ourrtising revenues vary based upon
popularity of our programming as measured by Nrelda 2012, our national programming networks had approxitgate000 advertise
representing companies in a broad range of seatatading the health, insurance, food, automotind retail industries. Our AMC, WE tv ¢
IFC programming networks use a traditional adviergisales model, while Sundance Channel princigadlis sponsorships. Prior to Decen
2010, IFC principally sold sponsorships.

Changes in revenue are primaridgrived from changes in contractual affiliationesatharged for our services, changes in the nuof
subscribers, changes in the prices and level otriiding on our networks and changes in the tinofidicensing fees earned from
distribution of our original programming. We seekgrow our revenues by increasing the number ofivig subscribers of the distributors 1
carry our services. We refer to this as our “peatEtn.” AMC, which is widely distributed, has a more linttability to increase its penetrat
than WE tv, IFC and Sundance Channel. To the extenalready carried on more widely penetratediseriters, WE tv, IFC and Sundai
Channel, although carried by all of the largerriisitors, have higher growth opportunities dueheirt current penetration levels with th
distributors. WE tv and IFC are currently carriedeither
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expanded basic or digital tiers, while Sundancen@bhis currently carried primarily on digital teerTherefore, WE tv, IFC and Sunda
Channel penetration rates may increase as ancetextient distributors are successful in convertiregr analog subscribers to digital tier:
service that include those networks. Our revenuag aiso increase over time through contractual irateeases stipulated in most of
affiliation agreements. In negotiating for increds® extended carriage, we have in some instaneeke mpfront payments in exchange
additional subscribers or extended carriage, whiehrecord as deferred carriage fees and whichraostezed as a reduction to revenue ove
period of the related affiliation agreements, oreag to waive for a specified period or accept loper subscriber fees if certain additic
subscribers are provided. We also may help fundlisgeibutors’efforts to market our channels. We believe thase¢hteansactions general
positive return on investment over the contractqueWe seek to increase our advertising revenydadreasing the rates we charge for ¢
advertising, which is directly related to the owkedistribution of our programming, penetration aiir services and the popularity (includ
within desirable demographic groups) of our seiwiae measured by Nielsen. Distribution and othezmees in each quarter also vary base
the timing of availability of our programming tostlibutors.

Our principal goal is to increase our revenuesnoydasing distribution and penetration of our sgwj and increasing our ratings. Tc
this, we must continue to contract for and proda@h-quality, attractive programming. As competition forogramming increases ¢
alternative distribution technologies continue noeege and develop in the industry, costs for cdraequisition and original programming n
increase. There is a concentration of subscrilvetkdé hands of a few distributors, which could teeadisparate bargaining power betweer
largest distributors and us by giving those disttalos greater leverage in negotiating the priceahdr terms of affiliation agreements.

Programming expense, included in technical andatjpey expense, represents the largest expense dfdtional Networks segment ¢
primarily consists of amortization and impairmeatswrite-offs of programming rights, such as those for o@djiprogramming, feature filr
and licensed series. The other components of teehand operating expense primarily include pgséition and residual costs, distribution
production related costs and program operatingscesth as origination, transmission, uplinking andryption.

To an increasing extent, the success of our busidepends on original programming, both scripted amscripted, across all of ¢
networks. In recent years, we have introduced abmunof scripted original series, primarily on AM@e majority of which have be
commercially successful. These successful series fesulted in higher audience ratings for our oeka. Historically, in periods when we
original programming, our ratings have increasedkify 2012, AMC aired five scripted original seri@his resulted in higher audience rati
for AMC. Among other things, higher audience rasigive increased revenues through higher advwegtistvenues. The timing of exhibiti
and distribution of original programming variesrrgeriod to period, which results in greater valtighin our revenues, earnings and ¢
flows from operating activities. During 2013, AM@peects to air six scripted original series.

Scripted original series require us to makefrgmt investments, which are often significant amisu Not all of our programming effo
are commercially successful, which could resulaimrite-off of program rights. If it is determined that gramming rights have no futt
programming usefulness based on actual demand rieet@onditions, a writeff of the unamortized cost is recorded in techindcal operatin
expense.

See “— Critical Accounting Policies and Estimatés”a discussion of the amortization and write-affprogram rights.
DISH Network

Effective May 20, 2012 with regard to Sundance Qghrand July 1, 2012 with regard to AMC, WE tv aiC, DISH Networl
terminated carriage of our national networks. A¢ time of the termination, DISH Network's termioatireduced the Company's t
subscribers under affiliation agreements by appnaxely 13%. This termination did not have a maténgact on revenues, net for the y
ended December 31, 2012. However, the terminatidrhdve a material impact on the Company's and\taonal Network's AOCF ai
operating income for the year ended December 312.20

On October 21, 2012, DISH Network, VOOM HD, and {eatsion entered into a confidential settlementeagnent and release (
“Settlement Agreement™o settle litigation between VOOM HD and DISH Netwadnvolving various claims arising out of a joiménture
between the parties. See Note 11, Commitments amtir@encies in the accompanying consolidated firrstatements for a descriptior
the principal terms of this settlement agreemeimuaneously with the execution of the Settlem&gteement, DISH Network entered int
longterm affiliation agreement with AMC Network Entartanent LLC, WE: Women's Entertainment LLC, The Ipdedent Film Chann
LLC, Sundance Channel L.L.C. and Fuse Network LaGubsidiary of The Madison Square Garden Comgzetyprovided for resumption
carriage of all the networks by no later than Nokentl, 2012.
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Cablevision and the Company entered into an agnee(ttee “VOOM Litigation Agreement”which provides that Cablevision and
Company will share equally in the proceeds (inalgdin the value of any notash consideration) of any settlement of the litggawith DISH
Network.

The allocation of the settlement proceeds betwdenAMC Parties and CSC Holdings will be determineasuant to the VOO
Litigation Agreement. The AMC Parties and CSC Hodli agreed that, pending a determination of trexation of the settlement procee
$350,000 of the cash proceeds would be distribtiedach of the Company and Cablevision. Accordingiy portion disbursed to |
Company is included in cash and cash equivalentiseirconsolidated balance sheet at December 32, 2Bk final amount to be allocatec
the Company is yet to be determined and may béfisigmtly less than $350,000.

As the Settlement Agreement and the long-termiatifin agreement entered into on October 21, 2@2esent a multiplelemen
arrangement that includes elements other than ueyeand there is vendor-specific objective evideot¢he fair value of the lonterr
affiliation agreement, which is the only undelivérelement of the arrangement, the Company detedmihat the residual method
accounting is the most appropriate method to aéothe consideration among the disparate elemdntiseoarrangement. Accordingly,
October 21, 2012, the fair value of the affiliatiagreement must be deferred and recognized asue\es the programming services
provided.

Based on the Company's fair value assessment d@ffiiation agreement, the affiliation fees payalbly DISH Network to the Compa
from the effective date of the affiliation agreerheh October 21, 2012 through December 31, 2013batew fair value by approximate
$31,000 and the affiliation fees payable by DISHv{gk over the remaining term of the affiliationragment represent fair value. As a re
the Company recorded the $31,000 excess of therdhie of the affiliation agreement over the coctinal affiliation fees as deferred reve
on October 21, 2012, of which approximately $5,02% recognized as revenue during 2012 as the pnogirag services were provided. 1
remaining $26,000 is included in deferred revemuthe December 31, 2012 consolidated balance simeketvill be recognized ratably o
2013 as the programming services are provided.

Deferred litigation settlement proceeds of apprately $308,000 is recorded in the consolidatedrz@esheet at December 31, 2(
which is the result of the $350,000 temporary a@tmn of proceeds, less the $31,000 of deferredme® and less an $11,000 receivable re
to VOOM HD'’s previous affiliation agreement with DISH NetwoAt. December 31, 2012, there is no minimum amotisettlement procee
that the Company is guaranteed. As a result, igation settlement gain, if any, was recognize@@i2 and such gain, if any, which coulc
material, will not be recognized until realizedlfoving the final resolution of the allocation oftkettlement proceeds.

International and Other

Our International and Other segment primarily idels the operations of AMC/Sundance Channel Gldb&l, Films, AMC Network
Broadcasting & Technology and VOOM HD.

VOOM HD historically offered a suite of channelsioguced exclusively in HD and marketed for disttibn to DBS and oth:
multichannel video programming distributors. Thrbug008, VOOM was available in the U.S. only on ttable television systems
Cablevision and on the satellite delivered programgnof DISH Network. VOOM HD, which we are windirdpwn, continues to sell cert;
limited amounts of programming through programrige agreements. See also Item 3, “Legal ProceediDySH Network Contract Dispute”
in this Annual Report.

Although we view our international expansion asirmportant longterm strategy, our international operations areeculy expected |
represent only a small percentage of our projeoteztall financial results over the next five yeatawever, international expansion cc
provide a benefit to our financial results if wereeble to grow this portion of our business fasiemn expected. Similar to our dome
businesses, the most significant business chakengeexpect to encounter in our international essninclude programming competit
(from both foreign and domestic programmers), kdithannel capacity on distributomatforms, the growth of subscribers on those piatf
and economic pressures on affiliation fees. Othgnificant business challenges unique to intermatioexpansion include increa:
programming costs for international rights and station (i.e. dubbing and subtitling), a lack of availability ioternational rights for a portic
of our domestic programming content, increasedibigion costs for cable, satellite or fiber feeatsd a limited physical presence in €
territory.
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Spin-off from Cablevision

On June 30, 2011, Cablevision spaffithe Company (the "Distribution") and we becaameindependent public company. In connec
with the Distribution, Cablevision contributed afithe membership interests of RMH to us. RMH owrdickectly or indirectly, the busines:
included in Cablevision’'s Rainbow Media segment. @ime 30, 2011, Cablevision effected the Distrdoutdf all of AMC Networks’
outstanding common stock. In the Distribution, eholder of Cablevision NY Group (“*CNYG'¢lass A Common Stock of record on June
2011 received one share of AMC Networks Class A @om Stock for every four shares of CNYG Class A Gam Stock held on the rect
date, which resulted in the issuance of approxilyei&,813,000 shares of Class A Common Stock. Eacbrd holder of CNYG Class
Common Stock received one share of AMC Networks€B Common Stock for every four shares of CNYGs€BR Common Stock held
the record date, which resulted in the issuancapgroximately 13,534,000 shares of Class B CommtoekS Immediately prior to tt
Distribution, we were an indirect whollywned subsidiary of Cablevision. Both Cablevision #&AMC Networks continue to be controlled
the Dolan Family.

As part of the Distribution, the Company incurrezbtiof $2,425,000 ("Distribution Debt"), consistin§$1,725,000 aggregate princi
amount of senior secured term loans and $700,090eggte principal amount of senior unsecured nfstes Note 6 in the accompany
consolidated financial statements). Approximately0$3,000 of the proceeds of the Distribution Dels used to repay all pigistributior
outstanding debt (excluding capital leases), indgdprincipal and accrued and unpaid interest ® diate of repayment, and, as pa
consideration for Cablevisios’'contribution of the membership interests in RMHIS, $1,250,000, net of discount, of DistributDebt wa:
issued to CSC Holdings, a wholbwned subsidiary of Cablevision, which is reflectesla deemed capital distribution in the consatic
statement of stockholderdgficiency for the year ended December 31, 201 &8ldings used such Distribution Debt to satigig aischarg
outstanding CSC Holdings debt, which ultimatelyulesdd in such Distribution Debt being held by thiparty investors.

2010 Transactions

On December 31, 2010, RMH transferred its membprshierests in News 12 (regional news programmiegvises), Rainbo
Advertising Sales Corporation (“RASCQ”) (a cabléetésion advertising company), and certain othegitesses to whollgwned subsidiari¢
of Cablevision in contemplation of the Distributiofhe operating results of these transferred estitirough the date of transfer have |
presented in discontinued operations for the yedeé December 31, 2010 in the accompanying coraetidinancial statements.

Corporate Expenses

Our historical results of operations reflected ur @onsolidated financial statements, for periodsrpto the Distribution, incluc
management fee charges and the allocation of egpaatated to certain corporate functions histdlyigaovided by Cablevision. Our results
operations after the Distribution reflect certaéwenues and expenses related to transactions mithaoges from related parties as describ
Note 14 in the accompanying consolidated finansiatements. As a separate, s-alone public company, we have expanded our fing
administrative and other staff to support the sdlahew requirements. In addition, we continue td agstems to replace those Cablevi
systems we currently rely on. However, our corpoi@erating costs as a separate company subsequir Distribution, including tho
associated with being a publidsaded company, through December 31, 2012 have lbagn than the historical allocation of expensaater
to certain corporate functions (including managenfea charges). Pursuant to a consulting agreemiémtCablevision, until the Distributic
date the Company paid a management fee calculasedbon certain of our subsidiaries' gross revefagslefined under the terms of
consulting agreement) on a monthly basis. We teataththe consulting agreement on the Distributiate @nd did not replace it.

We allocate corporate overhead to each segment hgsen their proportionate estimated usage of sesviThe segment financ
information set forth below, including the discussirelated to individual line items, does not refléntersegment eliminations unle
specifically indicated.

Cautionary Note Concerning Historical Financial Staments

As noted above, our consolidated financial statésnéor periods prior to the Distribution have beserived from the consolidat
financial statements and accounting records of &adibn and reflect certain assumptions and allonat Our preDistribution results ¢
operations and cash flows could differ from tholsat tmight have resulted had we operated autonomaushs an entity independent
Cablevision.

Our capital structure after the Distribution isfeient from the capital structure presented in ligtorical consolidated financ
statements for periods prior to the Distributior aaccordingly, our interest expense in periodsraftine 30, 2011 as a separate indepe
entity is, and we expect will continue to be, matgr higher than the interest expense reflectecbum historical consolidated financ
statements in periods prior to June 30, 2011.
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Impact of Economic Conditions

Our future performance is dependent, to a largentxon general economic conditions including tin@act of direct competition, ¢
ability to manage our businesses effectively, amdrelative strength and leverage in the marketglaoth with suppliers and customers.

Additional capital and credit market disruptionsiltbcause economic downturns, which may lead tefademand for our products, s
as lower demand for television advertising and arelse in the number of subscribers receiving sogramming networks from o
distributors. We have experienced some of the &ffeicthe economic downturn. Continuation of evesuish as these may adversely impac
results of operations, cash flows and financialtjms
Consolidated Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2011

The following table sets forth our consolidateduitssof operations for the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011
% of % of
Revenues, Revenues, %
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $ 1,352,557 100.(% $ 1,187,74. 100.(% $ 164,83 13.¢%
Operating expenses:
Technical and operating (excluding
depreciation and amortization) 507,43t 37.k 425,96: 35.¢ 81,47: 19.1
Selling, general and administrative 396,92¢ 29.2 335,65t 28.2 61,27( 18.2
Restructuring credit 3 — (240 — 237 (98.¢)
Depreciation and amortization 85,38( 6.3 99,84¢ 8.4 (14,469 (14.5)
Total operating expenses 989,73 73.2 861,22! 72.5 128,51 14.¢
Operating income 362,83 26.¢ 326,51t 27.5 36,32: 11.1
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net (127,276 (9.9 (94,796 (8.0 (32,48() 34.:
Write-off of deferred financing costs (1,862) (0.2) (6,247 (0.5 4,38¢ (70.2)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (10,779 (0.9 (14,72¢) (1.2 3,952 (26.9)
Miscellaneous, net (652) — (137) — (51%) 375.¢
Total other income (expense) (140,569 (10.9 (115,909) (9.9 (24,659 21.2
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes 222,27 16.4 210,61( 17.7 11,66¢ 5.k
Income tax expense (86,05%) (6.4) (84,249 (7. (1,810 2.1
Income from continuing operations 136,21¢ 10.1 126,36: 10.€ 9,854 7.8
Income from discontinued operations,
of income taxes 314 — 92 — 22z 241.:
Net Income $ 136,53l 10.1% $ 126,45 10€6% $ 10,07¢ 8.C %
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The following is a reconciliation of our consoliddtoperating income to AOCF:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 $ change % change
Operating income $ 362,83t $ 326,51t $ 36,32: 11.1%
Share-based compensation expense 17,20: 15,58¢ 1,61z 10.:
Restructuring credit 3 (240) 237 (98.9)
Depreciation and amortization 85,38( 99,84¢ (14,469 (14.5)
AOCF $ 465,417 $ 441,710 $ 23,70¢ 5.4%
National Networks Segment Results
The following table sets forth our National Netwedegment results for the periods indicated.
Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011
% of % of
Revenues, Revenues, %
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $ 1,254,18 100.(% $ 1,082,35! 100.% $  171,82¢ 15.€ %
Operating expenses:
Technical and operating
(excluding depreciation and
amortization) 450,12: 35.¢ 366,99¢ 33.¢ 83,12¢ 22.7
Selling, general and administrative 325,50¢ 26.C 280,38" 25.¢ 45,12: 16.1
Depreciation and amortization 70,43¢ 5.€ 85,70 7.8 (15,26%) 17.¢)
Operating income $ 408,11 32.5% $ 349,27 32.% $ 58,84: 16.€ %
Share-based compensation expense 13,57¢ 1.1 12,58: 1.2 994 7.¢
Depreciation and amortization 70,43¢ 5.€ 85,70 7.6 (15,26%) (17.9)
AOCF $ 492,12 39.20% $  447,55! 41799 $ 44,57 10.C %
International and Other Segment Results
The following table sets forth our Internationatia®ther segment results for the periods indicated.
Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011
% of % of
Revenues, Revenues, %
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $ 114,54 100.(% $ 125,57: 100.(% $ (11,03 (8.8)%
Operating expenses:
Technical and operating (excludi
depreciation and amortization) 76,46¢ 66.¢ 77,48t 61.7 (2,01%) 1.3
Selling, general and administrative 71,73¢ 62.€ 56,07: 447 15,66¢ 27.¢
Restructuring credit 3 — (240) (0.2 237 (98.9)
Depreciation and amortization 14,94« 13.C 14,147 112 797 5.€
Operating loss $ (48,60) (42.9% $ (21,890 17.9% $ (26,71) 122.1%
Share-based compensation expense 3,62¢ 3.2 3,007 2.4 61¢ 20.€
Restructuring credit 3 — (240) (0.2 237 (98.9)
Depreciation and amortization 14,94 13.C 14,147 112 797 5.€
AOCF deficit $ (30,040 (2629% $ (4,976 4.0% $ (25069 503.7%
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Revenues, net

Revenues, net increased $164,836 to $1,352,57téoyear ended December 31, 2012 as compared tgetireendedecember 3:

2011 . The net change by segment was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of %
2012 total 2011 total $ change change
National Networks $ 1,254,18 92.7% $ 1,082,35! 91.1% $ 171,82 15.€%
International and Other 114,54: 8.5 125,57: 10.€ (11,037 (8.9
Inter-segment eliminations (16,150 (1.2 (20,190 (2.7) 4,04( (20.0)
Consolidated revenues, net $ 1,352,57 100.(% $ 1,187,74 100.(% $ 164,83 13.C %
National Networks
The increase in National Networks revenues, nattigoutable to the following:
Years Ended December 31,
% of % of %
2012 total 2011 total $ change change
Advertising $ 522,91 41.7% $ 447,44¢ 41.5% $ 75,46¢ 16.9%
Distribution and other 731,26 58.< 634,90¢ 58.7 96,36( 15.2
$ 1,254,18! 100.(% $ 1,082,35: 100.(% $ 171,82 15.%

Advertising revenues increased $75,468ulting from higher pricing per unit sold due @n increased demand for

programming by advertisers, primarily at AMC andiaereased number of original programming seriesdabn AMC durin
2012 as compared to 2011. These increases weliallpaoffset by decreases in advertising revenuesoeiated with tf
temporary DISH Network carriage termination of @flour networks for approximately four months in120 As previousl
discussed, most of our advertising revenues vasgdan the timing of our original programming sead the popularity
our programming as measured by Nielsen. Due teetfators, we expect advertising revenues to vam fquarter to quarte
and

Distribution and other revenues increased $3bp8narily due to an increase of $65,918 from digtiaensing, internation
and home video distribution revenues derived fram Mational Networks original programming, primgrdt AMC and a
increase in affiliation fee revenues primarily igttitable to an increase in rates, including thedotf lower amortization

deferred carriage fees. These increases were Ipadifset by a decrease associated with the tearyobISH Networ!
carriage termination and a contractual adjustmemh fa distributor that increased revenue in 2014 pfeviously discusse
distribution revenues vary based on the timingwafilability of our programming to distributors. Baese of these factors,

expect distribution revenues to vary from quarteqtarter.

The following table presents certain subscribewrimiation at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011

Estimated Domestic
Subscribers

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

National Programming Networks:

AMC(1)
WE tv(1)
IFC(1)

Sundance Channel(2)

98,90( 96,30(
81,50( 76,10(
69,60( 65,30(
50,20( 42,10(

(1) Estimated U.S. subscribers as measured by Ni
(2) Subscriber counts are based on internal manageworts and represent viewing subscrit
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The increase in subscribers reflects the repoditippf our networks carriage with certain operatimrsnore widely distributed tiers
service. Additionally, the number of reported AMEE tv, and IFC subscribers may be impacted by chaungthe Nielsen sample.

International and Other

The decrease in International and Other revenwess rttributable to the following:

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of %
2012 total 2011 total $ change change
Advertising $ 147 0.1% $ 177 0.1% $ (30 (16.9%
Distribution and other 114,39 99.¢ 125,39t 99.¢ (11,000 (8.9
$ 114,54 100.% $ 125,57: 100.% $ (11,03) (8.8%

Distribution and other revenues decreased primamdiated to $14,525 of decreased transmission tevesmt AMC Network
Broadcasting & Technology due to the expiratiorceftain agreements and a net decrease in revenB€ &ilms due to lower performar
for several theatrical titles and lower televisi@ensing revenue. In addition, revenue at VOOM Hé&creased primarily related to lo\
distribution revenue. These decreases were pgriidfset by increased foreign affiliation fee reues of $5,005 from our internatio
distribution of Sundance Channel and WE tv chandeésto expanded distribution in Asia and Europe.

Technical and operating expense (excluding depredian and amortization)

The components of technical and operating expensgaply include the amortization and impairmentsvarite-offs of program right:
such as those for original programming, featunadiland licensed series, participation and residasts, distribution and production rele
costs and program operating costs, such as origmatansmission, uplinking and encryption.

Technical and operating expense (excluding depfeniand amortization) increased $81,475 to $50 {68 2012 as compared to 2011
The net change by segment was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 $ change % change
National Networks $ 450,12: % 366,99¢ % 83,12¢ 22.1%
International and Other 76,46¢ 77,48t (1,019 1.3
Inter-segment eliminations (29,15¢) (18,527 (634) 3.4
Total $ 507,43t $ 42596: % 81,47¢ 19.1%
Percentage of revenues, net 37.5% 35.%

National Networks

The increasén the National Networks segment is attributablenicreased amortization of program rights of $78,8¥imarily at AMC
and WE tv, which includes a writef of $9,990 based on management's assessmergrimming usefulness and increased participatia
residual costs at AMC, and an increase of $3,25@fogramming related costs. There may be sigmfichanges in the level of our techn
and operating expenses due to content acquisitidfoaoriginal programming costs and/or the impHananagemens’ periodic assessmen
programming usefulness. Such costs will also flatdwith the level of revenues derived from ownddioal programming in each period.
additional competition for programming increased atiernate distribution technologies continue ¢vedop in the industry, costs for cont
acquisition and original programming may increa&s.we continue to increase our investment in odbiprogramming, we expect
amortization of program rights to increase in 2048r the prior year comparable period.

International and Other

The International and Other segment (excluding VOBD) decreasegrimarily due to; (i) a decrease of $4,621 in traission expens:
at AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology due teeduction in transmission agreements and (ii) aedee of $5,096 primarily relatec
lower content acquisition costs at IFC Films. Thdsereases were partially offset by; (i) an inceeas AMC/Sundance Channel Globa
$6,261 primarily related to programming costs, &ii) increase of $2,238 in transmission and progriammelated expenses due to increi
distribution in Asia and Europe and (iii) an incseaf $2,817 in programming expenses for our dgwedpbusinesses. Technical and oper:
expenses in the International and Other segmeantd@lsreased because programming costs at VOOM Idigzaked $2,574 resulting prima
from ceasing distribution of the Rush HD channdturope in April 2011.
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Selling, general and administrative expense

The components of selling, general and adminisgagkpense primarily include sales, marketing ahe#dising expenses, administra
costs and costs of facilities.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine@&61,270 to $396,926 for 2012 as compared to 20h#& net change by segment
as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 $ change % change
National Networks $ 325,50¢ $ 280,38 % 45,12 16.1%
International and Other 71,73¢ 56,07: 15,66¢ 27.¢
Inter-segment eliminations (322 (802) 48( (59.9)
Total $ 396,92t $ 335,65t % 61,27( 18.2%
Percentage of revenues, net 29.2% 28.2%

National Networks

The increasén the National Networks segment primarily consigta $52,676 increase for sales and marketingresqzeprincipally du
to the airing of a higher number of original pragraing series during 2012 as compared to 2011 arréased costs for subscriber reter
marketing efforts associated with the temporaryHDgetwork carriage termination. Additionally, thesas a net decrease in other genera
administrative costs of $7,741 primarily due toeauction of corporate allocations from Cablevisfoitowing the Distribution (includin
management fees), partially offset by higher emgédoselated expenses incurred in connection witbréty a stand-alone public company.

Prior to the Distribution, pursuant to a consultigreement with Cablevision, we paid a managenmemtchlculated based on cer
subsidiaries’gross revenues (as defined under the terms of ahsutting agreement) on a monthly basis. We tertathahe consultir
agreement on the Distribution date and did nota@plt.

There may be significant changes in the level ofsmiling, general and administrative expense fouarter to quarter and year to y
due to the timing of promotion and marketing ofjaral programming series and subscriber retentiarkating efforts.

International and Other

The increasen the International and Other segment (excludifgOM HD) primarily consists of an increase of $6,448 selling
marketing and advertising costs primarily at IF@rsiand AMC/Sundance Channel Global due to incaeapending on titles being distribu
at IFC Films and increased distribution in Europel &sia and a net increase of $2,617 for generdl aaministrative costs due to hig
employee related expenses and costs incurred inection with becoming a staradlene public company, net of a reduction of corfs
allocations from Cablevision following the Distrifian. Selling, general and administrative experrststed to VOOM HD were $10,971
2012, an increase of $5,668 as compared to 20Kl talhigher legal fees and other related costseapenses in connection with the DI
Network contract dispute

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization decreased $14,4&8%380 for 2012 as compared to 2011 . The netgeghby segment was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 $ change % change
National Networks $ 70,43t $ 85,70. % (15,26%) (17.9%
International and Other 14,94 14,147 797 5.€
$ 85,38( $ 99,84¢ $ (14,469 (14.5%

The decreasén depreciation and amortization expense in theiddat Networks segment is primarily attributable godecrease
amortization expense of $14,620 at Sundance ChamEIAMC as certain intangible assets became fuitprtized in the second and tt
quarters of 2012.
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AOCF

AOCF increased $23,704 to $465,417 for 2012 as eoedto 2011. The net change by segment was asvioll

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 $ change % change
National Networks $ 492,12¢ $ 447,55 $ 44,57 10.C %
International and Other (30,040 (4,97¢) (25,069 503.7
Inter-segment eliminations 3,32¢ (86€) 4,19¢ (484.9)
AOCF $ 46541 $ 441,710 $ 23,70¢ 5.4%

National Networks AOCF increased due to an incrégasevenues, net of $171,828d a decrease in management fees, partially dff
an increase in technical and operating expensedtingsprimarily from an increase in amortizatiohprogram rights expense which inclu
program rights writesffs of $9,990 and marketing expense due to theease in the number of original programming preesiend subscrib
retention marketing efforts associated with thegerary DISH Network carriage termination.

International and Other AOCF deficit increased prily due a decrease in revenues, net of $11,@8Rincrease in selling, general
administrative expenses and programming and trazssoni related costs and selling costs at AMC/Sucel@hannel Global and an increas
legal fees and other costs in connection with tH&HDNetwork contract dispute.

Interest expense, net

The increase in interest expense, net of $32,480 #011 to 2012 is attributable to the following:

Indebtedness incurred in connection with the Dosition $ 49,32¢

Repayment of the Rainbow National Services LLC (SR)\senior notes in May 2011 and the RNS creditifa@and the

RNS senior subordinated notes in June 2011 (31,03¢)

Interest rate swap contracts (a) 13,74:

Decrease in interest income 572

Other (128¢)
$ 32,48(

(a) During 2012, in connection with the repaymefhe outstanding principal amount under the tevamlB facility, we recorded an unreali.
loss of $8,725 included in interest expense, on the relatedésterate swap contracts previously designatedsis #tow hedges of a portion
the term loan B facility as the related interest wap contracts no longer qualified for hedg@anting.

Write-off of deferred financing costs

The write-off of deferred financing costs of $1,8®82 the year ended December 31, 2012 represent 8Pfeferred financing co:
written off in connection with the $150,000 of votary prepayments of the term loan A facility dgrin012 and $898 of deferred financ
costs written off in connection with the repaymehthe outstanding amount of the term loan B facilsee below) in December 2012.

The write-off of deferred financing costs of $6,24v the year ended December 31, 2011 represent8&hf deferred financing co
written off in connection with the redemption oetlRNS 8 3/4% senior notes in May 2011, $2,062 ahd56 of deferred financing co
written off in connection with the repayment of tbatstanding borrowings under the RNS credit faciind the RNS 10 3/8% ser
subordinated notes, respectively, in June 201Jlommection with the Distribution and $544 of defdrfenancing costs written off associa
with the $100,000 of voluntary prepayments of gmentloan A facility during 2011.

Loss on extinguishment of debt

In December 2012, we issued $600,000 aggregateifpsinamount of 4.75% senior notes due December20@32. We used the t
proceeds from the issuance of the notes to repaytitstanding amount under the term loan B facdityapproximately $587,600, with 1
remaining proceeds used for general corporate pegadn connection with this repayment, we recoraéass on extinguishment of deb
$10,774 for the year ended December 31, 2012 reptieg the excess of the principal amount repagt thve carrying value of the term loa
facility.
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The loss on extinguishment of debt of $14,726 lieryear ended December 31, 2011 represents $1#58% excess of the redempt
price, premium paid and related fees along withret@n to principal amount over the carrying vabfehe $325,000 principal amount of
RNS 10 3/8% senior subordinated notes redeemed3yn2011 associated with the tender offer whichuoed in connection with tl
Distribution and $191 associated with the $100,00@oluntary prepayments of the term loan A fagitiuring 2011.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense attributable to continuing dpmra was $86,058 for the year ended December(@IL2,2epresenting an effective
rate of 39%. The effective tax rate differs frore federal statutory rate of 35% due primarily tesincome tax expense of $4,970, tax exf
of $4,685 related to uncertain tax positions, idolg accrued interest and a tax benefit of $2,3Bulting from a decrease in the valua
allowance relating primarily to certain local incertax credit carryorwards. We expect our effective tax rate to bgragximately 38% in futu
periods.

Income tax expense attributable to continuing ap@ra was $84,248 for the year ended December(@®ll Zrepresenting an effective
rate of 40%. The effective tax rate differs frore federal statutory rate of 35% due primarily tesincome tax expense of $8,020, tax exf
of $3,300 related to uncertain tax positions, idolg accrued interest and a tax benefit of $2,32ilting from a decrease in the valua
allowance with regard to certain local income teedd carry forwards.
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Consolidated Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2010

The following table sets forth our consolidateduitssof operations for the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
% of % of
Revenues, Revenues, %
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $ 1,187,74. 100.(% $ 1,078,30 100.(% $ 109,44: 10.1%
Operating expenses:
Technical and operating (excluding
depreciation and amortization) 425,96: 35.¢ 366,09: 34.C 59,86¢ 16.4
Selling, general and administrative 335,65t 28.2 328,13: 30.4 7,522 2.2
Restructuring credit (240 — (2,21¢) (0.2 1,97¢ (89.2)
Depreciation and amortization 99,84¢ 8.4 106,45! 9.9 (6,607 (6.2
Total operating expenses 861,22! 72.5 798,46 74.C 62,76 7.6
Operating income 326,51t 27.5 279,83t 26.C 46,68( 16.7
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net (94,796 (8.0 (73,419 (6.9 (21,389 29.1
Write-off of deferred financing costs (6,247 (0.5 — — (6,247%) —
Loss on extinguishment of debt (14,726 (1.2 — — (14,726 —
Miscellaneous, net (137) — (162) — 25 (15.9)
Total other income (expense) (115,906 (9.9 (73,579 (6.9 (42,339 57.t
Income from continuing operations befo
income taxes 210,61( 17.7 206,26: 19.1 4,34¢ 2.1
Income tax expense (84,249 (7.2) (88,079) (8.2 3,82¢ (4.3
Income from continuing operations 126,36. 10.€ 118,18¢ 11.C 8,17: 6.S
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income taxes 92 — (38,090 (3.5 38,18: (200.2)
Net Income $ 126,45 10.6% $ 80,09¢ 749% $ 46,35! 57.C%
The following is a reconciliation of our consoliddtoperating income to AOCF:
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 $ change % change
Operating income $ 326,51t $ 279,83t $ 46,68( 16.7%
Share-based compensation expense 15,58¢ 17,20¢ (1,619 (9.9
Restructuring credit (240) (2,219 1,97¢ (89.2)
Depreciation and amortization 99,84¢ 106,45! (6,607) (6.2)
AOCF $ 441,710 $ 401,27¢ $ 40,43« 10.1%
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National Networks Segment Results

The following table sets forth our National Netwsdegment results for the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
% of % of
Revenues, Revenues, %
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $ 1,082,35 100.% $ 994,57: 100.% $ 87,78! 8.8%
Operating expenses:
Technical and operating (excludin
depreciation and amortization) 366,99¢ 33.¢ 317,81¢ 32.C 49,17¢ 15.t
Selling, general and administrative 280,38 25.¢ 271,49: 27.% 8,89: 3.3
Depreciation and amortization 85,70: 7.¢ 92,73t 9.3 (7,039 (7.€)
Operating income $ 349,27 32.2% $ 312,52 31.4% $ 36,74 11.6%
Share-based compensation expense 12,58: 1.2 13,79: 1.4 (1,209 (8.8
Depreciation and amortization 85,70 7.6 92,73t 9.3 (7,039 (7.€)
AOCF $  447,55! 41799 $  419,05: 2.1% $ 28,50 6.8 %
International and Other Segment Results
The following table sets forth our Internationatiadther segment results for the periods indicated.
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010
% of % of
Revenues, Revenues, %
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $ 12557 100.C% $ 104,49 100.C% $ 21,07 20.2%
Operating expenses:
Technical and operating (excluding
depreciation and amortization) 77,48t 61.7 65,63t 62.¢ 11,85( 18.1%
Selling, general and administrative 56,07: 447 56,96¢ 54.t (899 (1.6)%
Restructuring credit (240 (0.2 (2,21¢) (2.7 1,97¢ (89.29%
Depreciation and amortization 14,147 11.: 13,7 13.1 427 3.1%
Operating loss $ (21,890 A7.9% $ (29,609 (28.9% $ 7,718 (26.1)%
Share-based compensation expense 3,001 2.4 3,41¢ 3.3 (408) (11.9
Restructuring credit (240 (0.2 (2,219 (2. 1,97¢ (89.2)
Depreciation and amortization 14,147 11.2 13,72 13.1 427 3.1
AOCF deficit $  (4,97¢ 4.0% $ (14,680 (14.0% $ 9,71( (66.1)%

45




Revenues, net

Revenues, net increased $109,441 to $1,187,74théoyear ended December 31, 2011 as compared tgetireendedecember 3:
2010 . The net change by segment was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of %
2011 total 2010 total $ change change
National Networks $ 1,082,35: 91.1% $ 994,57: 92.2% $ 87,78" 8.£%
International and Other 125,57: 10.€ 104,49¢ 9.7 21,07« 20.z
Inter-segment eliminations (20,190 2.7 (20,772) (1.9 582 (2.9
Consolidated revenues, net $ 1,187,74 100.(% $ 1,078,30 100.(% $ 109,44 10.1%

National Networks

The increase in National Networks revenues, nattigoutable to the following:

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of %
2011 total 2010 total $ change change
Advertising $ 447,44 41.% $ 397,61 40.% $ 49,83( 12.5%
Distribution and other 634,90! 58.7 596,95¢ 60.C 37,95¢ 6.4
$ 1,082,35i 100.(% $ 994,57 100.% $ 87,78¢ 8.8%
. Advertising revenues increased $49,88inarily at AMC resulting from higher ratings ah@yher pricing per unit sold due to

increased demand for our programming by advertiserd to a lesser extent increases in advertigagnue at IFC and WE
Prior to December 2010, IFC principally sold spasbs, but since then it migrated to a traditicadtertising sales model; and

. Distribution and other revenues increased $& @&marily due to an increase in affiliation fee eeues 0f$26,247, whi
includes a contractual adjustment from a distribuémd an increase of $11,708 due primarily toeased digital distributic
revenues derived from licensing our programming.

The following table presents certain subscribeorimfation at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

Estimated Domestic
Subscribers

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

National Programming Networks:
AMC(21) 96,30( 96,40(
WE tv(1) 76,10( 76,80(
IFC(1) 65,30( 62,70(
Sundance Channel(2) 42,10( 39,90(

(1) Estimated U.S. subscribers as measured by Ni
(2) Subscriber counts are based on internal manageworts and represent viewing subscrit

We believe that the decline in the number of AM@ &YE tv subscribers shown as of December 31, 281dompared to December
2010 may reflect the impact of changes in the Mielsample and the decline in the Nielsen totalamsi estimate, as AMC and WE tv did
have any significant negative tiering changes se lany significant affiliate relationships duriing trelevant periods.
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International and Other

The increase in International and Other revenuetsisrattributable to the following:

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of %
2011 total 2010 total $ change change
Advertising $ 177 0.1% $ 384 0.4% $ (207) (53.9%
Distribution and other 125,39t 99.¢ 104,11! 99.€ 21,28 20.4
$ 125,57 100.(% $ 104,49 100.(% $  21,07¢ 20.2%

Distribution and other revenues increased $21,2Bdapily due to increased foreign affiliation feevenues from the AMC Canadian
distributors and our other internationally distitidi channels due to increased distribution in Beirapreased digital distribution and theati
revenue at IFC Films, and to a lesser extent, asze origination fee revenue at AMC Networks Braating & Technology, partially offs

by lower foreign affiliation fee revenues of $933\WWDOM HD due to cessation of distribution of thedR HD channel in Europe in Af
2011.

Technical and operating expense (excluding depredian and amortization)

Technical and operating expense (excluding depfesiand amortization) increased $59,868 to $42bf86 2011 as compared to 2010
The net change by segment was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 $ change % change
National Networks $ 366,99¢ % 317,81¢ % 49,17¢ 15.5%
International and Other 77,48t 65,63 11,85( 18.1
Inter-segment eliminations (18,527 (17,367 (1,167 6.7
Total $ 42596: $ 366,090 % 59,86¢ 16.%%
Percentage of revenues, net 35.€% 34.(%

National Networks

The increasén the National Networks segment is attributabléntveased amortization of program rights and seti@/elopment/origin
programming costs of $44,597 and $4,582 for progmamg related costs. The increase in amortizationpafgram rights and ser
development/original programming costs for 201t@spared to 2010 is due primarily to increased &zaion of program rights at AMC a
WE tv and program rights write-offs of $18,059 paiity at AMC based on managementissessment of programming usefulness, pa
offset by a decrease in development costs at AM& decreased amortization of program rights at Sueela&Channel. The increase
programming related costs resulted principally fioereased editing and formatting/commercial ineartelated costs.

International and Other

The increasean the International and Other segment (excludin@OM HD) consists of $10,455 related to programmaugts o
AMC/Sundance Channel Global services and contequisition and participation costs at IFC Films. &ddition, transmission a
programming related expenses increased $2,840 mpiimet AMC/Sundance Channel Global due to increaskstribution in Europ

Programming costs at VOOM HD decreased $1,445 tiegubrimarily from ceasing distribution of the RusiD channel in Europe in Ap
2011.
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Selling, general and administrative expense

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&7,522 to $335,656 for 2011 as compared to 208 net change by segment
as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 $ change % change
National Networks $ 280,38 $ 271,49: % 8,89: 3.5%
International and Other 56,07 56,96¢ (8949) (1.6
Inter-segment eliminations (802) (325) (477 146.¢
Total $ 335,65¢ % 328,13« % 7,522 2.5%
Percentage of revenues, net 28.2% 30.4%

National Networks

The increasén the National Networks segment consists of $1J @8sales and marketing expenses related to @hmgmber of origini
programming premieres during 2011, increased salased costs at IFC following the migration to adlvertising sales model in Decenr
2010 as well as a net increase in other generahdndnistrative costs of $9,537 primarily due topdogee related expenses and costs inci
with becoming a stand-alone public company. Theseeases were partially offset by a decrease df745jn shardsased compensati
expense and expenses relating to ltarga incentive plans as well as a reduction of omfe allocations from Cablevision, includin
reduction of $12,553 in management fees paid patdoaa consulting agreement that was terminatetthemistribution date.

International and Other

The decrease in the International and Other sego@rtists of a decrease of $6,441 related to VOQMdde primarily to lower leg
fees and other related costs and expenses in doiomedgth the DISH Network contract dispute andexiase in shateased compensati
expense and expenses relating to lerga incentive compensation of $1,262. Such deesegre partially offset by an increase of $4,58
selling, marketing and advertising costs primaailyFC Films due to increased spending on titleésdodistributed and a net increase of $2
for general and administrative costs incurred imnextion with becoming a stamdbne public company. The increase in general
administrative costs is net of a reduction of coap® allocations from Cablevision following the filsution.

Restructuring credit

The restructuring credit of $240 for 2011 and $8,dr 2010represents primarily the negotiated reductionsooitract termination cos
originally recorded in 2008 following the Compangscision to discontinue funding the domestic progming of VOOM.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization decreased $6,60P%:8%8 for 2011 as compared to 2010 . The net eéhbpgegment was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 $ change % change
National Networks $ 85,70 $ 92,73t % (7,039 (7.6)%
International and Other 14,14° 13,72( 427 3.1
$ 99,84¢ $ 106,45 $ (6,607 (6.29%

Amortization expense decreased $7,541 in 2011 mpaced to 2010which was partially offset by an increase in degation expense
$934. The decrease in amortization expense wastaudke decrease at the National Networks segmentaply resulting from certa
identifiable intangible assets of Sundance Chabeebming fully amortized in the fourth quarter 6f1D.
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AOCF

AOCF increased $40,434 for 2011 as compared to 20h@ net change by segment was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 $ change % change
National Networks $ 44755 $ 419,05. $ 28,50« 6.€ %
International and Other (4,976 (14,68¢) 9,71( (66.1)
Inter-segment eliminations (86€) (3,086 2,22 (71.9)
AOCF $ 441,710 $ 401,27¢  $ 40,43 10.1%

National Networks AOCF increaséde to an increase in revenues, net of $87,78%ared decrease in selling, general and adminis¢
expenses primarily from a decrease in managemest fartially offset by an increase in technical aperating expenses resulting prime
from an increase in amortization of program rigitpense and program rights wria#fs, marketing expense due to the increase imtimebe
of original programming premieres and advertisides related costs at IFC, excluding sHassed compensation, and depreciation
amortization expense, as discussed above.

International and Other AOCF deficit decreasle@ primarily to an increase in revenues, net df&24 and a decrease in legal fees
other costs in connection with the DISH Network tcact dispute, partially offset by an increase pemting expenses due primarily
increased content costs at AMC/Sundance ChannddaGland IFC Films, the launch of certain serviaesEurope and increased selli
marketing and advertising costs primarily at IF@QTS;, excluding sharbased compensation, and depreciation and amootizatipense, .
discussed above.

Interest expense, net

The net increase in interest expense, net from 202011 is attributable to the following:

Indebtedness incurred in connection with the Dhsition $ 48,23(

Repayment of the RNS senior notes in May 2011 hadRiNS credit facility and the RNS senior subortéidanotes in June

2011 (33,579

Interest rate swap contracts 4,62¢

Decrease in interest income 1,314

Other 79C
$ 21,38«

Write-off of deferred financing costs

The write-off of deferred financing costs of $6,24r the year ended December 31, 20&firesents $1,186 of deferred financing ¢
written off in connection with the redemption oetlRNS 8 3/4% senior notes in May 2011, $2,062 a@hd56 of deferred financing co
written off in connection with the repayment of tbatstanding borrowings under the RNS credit faciaind the RNS 10 3/8% ser
subordinated notes, respectively, in June 201Jlommection with the Distribution and $544 of defdrfenancing costs written off associa
with the $100,000 of voluntary prepayments of gmentloan A facility during 2011.

Loss on extinguishment of debt

The loss on extinguishment of debt of $14,726 lieryear ended December 31, 20&fresents $14,535 for the excess of the reden
price, premium paid and related fees along witlret@n to principal amount over the carrying vabfehe $325,000 principal amount of
RNS 10 3/8% senior subordinated notes redeemed3Mn2011 associated with the tender offer whichuo®d in connection with tl
Distribution and $191 associated with the $100,60@luntary prepayments of the term loan A fagitiuring 2011.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense attributable to continuing dpera was $84,248 for the year ended December@11 Zepresenting an effective
rate of 40%. The effective tax rate differs frore federal statutory rate of 35% due primarily ttesincome tax expense of $8,020, tax exf.
of $3,300 related to uncertain tax positions, idalg accrued interest and a tax benefit of $2,22lting from a decrease in the valua
allowance with regard to certain local income teedd carry forwards.

Income tax expense attributable to continuing apera was $88,073 for the year ended December@l) Zrepresenting an effective
rate of 43%. The effective tax rate differs frone thederal statutory rate of 35% due primarily tatstincome tax expense of $10,937,



expense of $1,398 resulting from an increase irvéthgation allowance with regard to certain locelame
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tax credit carry forwards, tax expense of $1,236tlie impact of a change in the state rate usedeasure deferred taxes and tax expen
$1,890 related to uncertain tax positions, inclgdisecrued interest.

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nehobme taxes, for the years ended December 31, 20d201Qeflects the followin
items, net of related income taxes:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Net operating results of News 12, RASCO and othéties transferred to Cablevision on December
2010, net of income taxes $ — ¢ (38,559
Other, net of income taxes 92 46E
$ 92 % (38,090

On December 31, 2010, RMH transferred its membpritierests in News 12 (regional news programmenyises), RASCO (a cat
television advertising company), and certain oth#sinesses to whollgwned subsidiaries of Cablevision in contemplatibthe Distribution
The operating results of these transferred entikiesugh the date of transfer have been presentdiscontinued operations for the year er
December 31, 2010 in the accompanying consolid&iadcial statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

Our operations have historically generated positieecash flow from operating activities. Howewaich of our programming busines
has substantial programming acquisition and pradnexpenditure requirements.

Sources of cash primarily include cash flow froneigtions, amounts available under our revolvinglitracility (as described belo
and access to capital markets. Although we currébtlieve that amounts available under our revghdredit facility will be available whe
and if needed, we can provide no assurance thasado such funds will not be impacted by advecsalitions in the financial markets. 1
obligations of the financial institutions under aawolving credit facility are several and not joand, as a result, a funding default by or
more institutions does not need to be made up éythers. As a public company, we may have accesther sources of capital such as
public bond markets. On December 10, 2012, we fldRlegistration Statement on Forn8 $-Shelf Registration") with the SEC in which
registered debt securities.

Our principal uses of cash include the acquisitind production of programming, our debt servicewaidntary prepayments of debt. '
continue to increase our investment in originalgoamming, the funding of which generally occurs &xnine months in advance o
program’s airing. We expect this increased investnte continue in 2013 Historically, our businesses have not requirgphificant capite
expenditures. However, since the Distribution, ascantinue to invest in infrastructure, we expéet tur capital expenditures may be hig
in future periods. In 2012, we voluntarily prep&t50,000 of the outstanding balance of the term Wdacility. The next required quarte
installment under the term loan A facility will loieie on December 31, 2014 in the amount of $4,280D&cember 17, 2012, we issued unc
Shelf Registration $600,008ggregate principal amount of 4.75% senior notes Diecember 15, 2022 (see below). We used the neegd
from the offering to repay the outstanding amourdar the term loan B facility of approximately $58J0, with the remaining proceeds u
for general corporate purposes.

We believe that a combination of cashftand, cash generated from operating activitiesaaadlability under our revolving credit facil
will provide sufficient liquidity to service the ipicipal and interest payments on our indebtedredssg with our other funding and investrr
requirements over the next twelve months and dveddnger term. However, we do not expect to geaeafficient cash from operations
repay at maturity the entirety of the then outstiagdbalances of our debt. As a result, we will thendependent upon our ability to acces:
capital and credit markets in order to repay omegfce the outstanding balances of our indebtedfeskire to raise significant amounts
funding to repay these obligations at maturity wioaidlversely affect our business. In such a circantst, we would need to take other acl
including selling assets, seeking strategic investisifrom third parties or reducing other discirdiy uses of cash.

Our level of debt could have important consequencesur business including, but not limited to,re&sing our vulnerability to gene
adverse economic and industry conditions, limitihg availability of our cash flow to fund future ggramming investments, cap
expenditures, working capital, business activiéind other general corporate requirements and tightur flexibility in planning for, or reactil
to, changes in our business and the industry ichvivie operate.

In addition, economic or market disruptions cowdd to lower demand for our services, such as Itevels of advertising. These eve



would adversely impact our results of operatioashcflows and financial position.
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Cash Flow Discussion

The following table is a summary of cash flows pded by (used in) continuing operations and disomtd operations for the peric
indicated:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Continuing operations:

Cash flow provided by operating activities $ 569,13. $ 255,230 $ 265,99
Cash flow used in investing activities (19,397 (15,69) (17,159
Cash flow used in financing activities (155,08) (104,05) (148,81
Net increase in cash from continuing operations 394,65: 135,48! 100,02:
Discontinued operations:

Net increase (decrease) in cash flow from discaetihoperations $ 481 $ 391 $ (49,890

Continuing Operations
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities amournite#569,132 for the year ended December 31, 20k®mpared to $255,238r the
year endecDecember 31, 2011 . The December 31, 2012 cashdeby operating activities resulted from $536,@2et income befo
depreciation and amortization and other non-cashst an increase in deferred revenue and defetigatibn settlement proceeds $837,20
primarily related to the temporary allocation oé tfOOM HD lawsuit settlement proceeds, see lterfL8gal Proceedings-BISH Networl
Contract Dispute” in this Annual Report, for furthdiscussion, an increase in income taxes paydfd16,740and an increase of other
liabilities of $7,247 . These increases were pilyt@fset by payments for program rights of $41%34 an increase in accounts receivable, 1
of $11,717 and deferred carriage fee payments G80#3,

Net cash provided by operating activities amounm¢e$i255,233 for the year ended December 31, 20ftpaced to $265,99%r the yea
ended December 31, 2010 . The December 31, 2011 mawided by operating activities resulted fromd$®55 of net income befo
depreciation and amortization and other wash items and a decrease of other net assetd @92 partially offset by payments for progi
rights of $358,929 , an increase in accounts retddy trade totaling $44,750 and deferred carrfaggayments of $3,640 .

Net cash provided by operating activities amourtte$265,995 for the year ended December 31, 20fe. 2010cash provided k
operating activities resulted from $571,984 of inebme before depreciation and amortization anérotioneash items, a decrease in pre
expenses and other assets of $3,962 and an indreasé other liabilities totaling $17,8artially offset by payments for program right:
$288,319, an increase in accounts receivableg tiatdling $36,422 and deferred carriage fee pajsme$3,031 .

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the yeamsled December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 was $.9,$35,691 and $17,157
respectively, which consisted primarily of capiapenditures of $18,557 , $15,371, and $17,24&hyears ended December 31, 202Q1,1
and 2010, respectively. In 2012, capital expenditures atiengrily for the purchase of information technologgrdware and software
transmission related equipment.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities amounted 654087 for the year ended December 31, 2012 apaed to $104,05%r the yea
ended December 31, 2011 . In 2012 , financing #iesvconsisted of repayments of indebtedness underCredit Facility of $742,025
treasury stock acquired from the acquisition ofrreted shares of $15,989 , principal payments apital leases of $1,418nd payments fi
financing costs of $1,421 , partially offset by thet proceeds from the issuance of 4.75% seni@smuft$589,500 proceeds from stock opti
exercises of $8,777 and the excess tax benefiis $lmre-based compensation arrangements of $7,484 .

Net cash used in financing activities amounted 164%057 for the year ended December 31, 2011 cadpar $148,8160r the yea
ended December 31, 2010 . In 2011 , financing iesvconsisted of proceeds from credit facilithtlef $1,442,364nd proceeds from stc
option exercises of $3,622 , which was more thésebby the repayment of credit facility debt off$®75, payments for the redemption of
RNS senior notes and senior subordinated notdsidimg tender premiums and fees of
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$638,365 , deferred financing costs of $27,414ncgwal payments on capital leases of $4,6h8 treasury stock acquired from the acquis
of restricted shares of $1,677 .

Net cash used in financing activities amounted148$816 for the year ended December 31, 2010 010 2financing activities consist
of capital contributions from Cablevision of $20480, repayment of a note payable to an affiliateCablevision of $190,000 capita
distributions to Cablevision of $53,754 , repaym&iRNS credit facility debt of $105,000 and primeli payments on capital leases of $4,080 .

Discontinued Operations

The net effect of discontinued operations on caghash equivalents amounted to a cash inflow 88.%hd $39%¥or the years end:
December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively andraaafiow of $49,890 for the year ended Decembe2B10.

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities of discorgthwperations amounted to $82 and $359 for thesyemded December 31, 20&8c
2011, respectively, resulting from an increasedhassets.

Net cash used in operating activities of discorgthoperations amounted to $30,870 for the yearceBdeember 31, 2010 . Tia91(
cash used in operating activities resulted from,&52 of loss excluding depreciation and amortizatiad other nowash items and a decre
in accounts payable and other liabilities of $9,428tially offset by an increase in cash resulfiogn a decrease in current and other ass:
$30,840.

Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities of disiiomed operations for the years ended Decembe2(12 and 2011 was $563 and $750
respectively, which consisted of proceeds fromsthle of affiliate interests.

Net cash used in investing activities of discorgthwperations for the year ended December 31, 2@50$10,183 which consisted 1
capital expenditures of $10,744, partially offsetdooceeds from the sale of affiliate interests atier net cash receipts of $561.

Debt Financing Agreements
Senior Secured Credit Facility

On June 30, 2011 (the “Closing DateAMC Networks, as Borrower, and substantially allitsf subsidiaries, as restricted subsidia
entered into a credit agreement. Under the termsuohh credit agreement, AMC Networks was providéith wenior secured credit faciliti
consisting of a $1,130,000 term loan A facility$%05,000 term loan B facility and a $500,000 rewawcredit facility (collectively, the "Crec
Facility"). The term loan A facility and the terradn B facility were discounted $5,650 and $12,986pectively, upon original issuance. '
revolving credit facility matures on June 30, 2(dd the term loan A facility matures June 30, 200#.the Closing Date, approximat
$577,000 of the Credit Facility debt was issuedC®C Holdings as partial consideration for the tianso AMC Networks of the RM
businesses on June 6, 2011 in connection with theeifution of AMC Networks from Cablevision, whietias consummated on June 30, 2
The issuance of debt to CSC Holdings is reflected deemed capital distribution in the accompangorgsolidated statement of stockholders
deficiency for the year ended December 31, 201 &8ldings used such debt to satisfy and dischanggtanding CSC Holdings debt.

On December 17, 2012, AMC Networks issued $600j808ggregate principal amount of 4.75% Notes (ssglewt) and used the r
proceeds of the offering to repay the outstandmgunt under the term loan B facility.

The revolving credit facility was not drawn upon tire Closing Date and remains undrawn at Decenthe2@12. Total undraw
revolver commitments are available to be drawrofargeneral corporate purposes.

In connection with the Credit Facility, AMC Netwarkncurred deferred financing costs of $26,30ich are being amortized to intel
expense, utilizing the effective interest methodkbrahe term of each respective component of tleaiCFacility.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interast floating rate, which at the option of AMC Netks may be either (a) a base
plus an additional rate ranging from 0.50% to 1.2%6 annum (determined based on a Cash Flow Rigfayed below), or (b) a Eurodol
rate plus an additional rate ranging from 1.509226% per annum (determined based on a Cash Fldio)RAt December 31, 2012, t
interest rate on the term loan A facility was 1.96éflecting a Eurodollar rate plus the additioredk as described herein.

All obligations under the Credit Facility are guateed jointly and severally by substantially allA¥C Networks’ existing and futur
domestic restricted subsidiaries as primary ob$ignraccordance with the Credit Facility. All oldigpns under the Credit Facility, including
guarantees of those obligations, are secured statially all of the assets of AMC Networks andgt subsidiaries.
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Borrowings under the term loan A facility and thevalving credit facility may be voluntarily prepaidthout premiums and penalty
any time (see below for a discussion of voluntargppyments of the term loan A facility). The CreBécility also provides for vario
mandatory prepayments, including with the procdeat® certain dispositions of property and borroveinghe term loan A facility is requir
to be repaid in quarterly installments of $14,125nf September 30, 2012 through June 30, 2013, $@&2ginning September 30, 2!
through June 30, 2014, $42,375 beginning SepteBMeR014 through June 30, 2015, $56,500 beginniagtesnber 30, 2015 throu
March 31, 2017 and $395,500 on June 30, 2017,eme bban A facility maturity date. Any amounts datsling under the revolving cre
facility are due at maturity on June 30, 2016.

From inception through December 31, 2Q2&e voluntarily prepaid $250,000 of the outstagdiralance under the term loan A fac
($150,000 of which was prepaid in 2012), which w&pplied to the earliest required quarterly instalits due. As a result, as of Decembe
2012, the next required quarterly installment Wil due on December 31, 2014 in the amount of $4@B0quarterly installments due un
the term loan A facility subsequent to DecemberZi114 remaining unchanged. We recorded a writesbffeferred financing costs $06<
associated with the voluntary prepayments that weade in 2012 in the consolidated statement ofnrecdor the year ended December
2012.

The Credit Facility contains certain affirmativedanegative covenants and also requires AMC Netwtyksomply with the followin
financial covenants: (i) a maximum ratio of net tiebannual operating cash flow, each as defindterCredit Facility (“Cash Flow Ratiotf
(a) 6.50:1 as of December 31, 2012 and decreasifg0:1 for the period beginning January 1, 20i@ ending December 31, 2014 and
5.50:1 thereafter and (ii) a ratio of annual ogatatash flow to annual total interest expenseheecdefined in the Credit Facilitylfteres
Coverage Ratio”) of (a) 2.50:1 through December281,3 and (b) 2.75:1 thereafter.

AMC Networks was in compliance with all of its caamnts under its Credit Facility as of December2R1L,2 .

The Credit Facility requires AMC Networks to pag@nmitment fee of between 0.25% and 0.50% (detexdthbased on the Cash FI
Ratio) in respect of the average daily unused cdmaenits under the revolving credit facility. AMC Metrks is also required to pay custorr
letter of credit fees, as well as fronting feeshamks that issue letters of credit pursuant tareait Facility.

We may request an increase in the term loan Aifac@hd/or the revolving credit facility by an aggate amount not exceeding
greater of $400,000 and an amount, which aftengieffect to such increase, would not cause theseacured leverage ratio of the Comg
to exceed 4.75:1. As of December 31, 2012 , thefamy does not have any commitments for an increathéantility.

7.75% Senior Notes due 2021

On June 30, 2011, AMC Networks issued $700,00@gregate principal amount of 7.75% senior notesphan original issue discot
of $14,000, due July 15, 2021 (the “7.75% Notde"CSC Holdings, as partial consideration for tlnsfer to AMC Networks of the RNV
businesses on June 6, 2011, which is reflected deemed capital distribution in the accompanyingsotidated statement of stockholders
deficiency for the year ended December 31, 2011C E8ldings used the Compasy7.75% Notes to satisfy and discharge outstanGiag
Holdings debt. The recipients of the 7.75% Notetheir affiliates then offered the 7.75% Notesnweeistors, through an offering memoranc
dated June 22, 2011, which ultimately resultedhent.75% Notes being held by third party investors.

The 7.75% Notes were issued under an indenturel datef June 30, 2011 (the “7.75% Notes Indenture”)

In connection with the issuance of the 7.75% Nof&dC Networks incurred deferred financing costs&df,533, which are bein
amortized, using the effective interest methodnterest expense over the term of the 7.75% Notes.

Interest on the 7.75% Notes accrues at the rafe7&% per annum and is payable semiually in arrears on January 15 and July :
each year.

The 7.75% Notes may be redeemed, in whole or ity paany time on or after July 15, 2016, at a negkion price equal to 103.875%
the principal amount thereof (plus accrued and ishipgerest thereon, if any, to the date of suaenaption), declining annually tt00% of th
principal amount thereof (plus accrued and unpaierést thereon, if any, to the date of such rediempbeginning on July 15, 2019.

In addition, if AMC Networks experiences a Chan§€ontrol (as defined in the 7.75% Notes Indentutled holders of the 7.75% No
may require AMC Networks to repurchase for castoiall portion of their 7.75% Notes at a price eqad01% of the principal amount ther
(plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if tnthe date of such repurchase).

AMC Networks is a holding company and has no opematof its own. The 7.75% Notes are guaranteed sanior unsecured basis

certain of AMC Networks’ existing and future domiestestricted subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary Guaoesi), in accordance with the 7.7:
Notes Indenture. The guarantees under the 7.75%sNwé full and unconditional and joint and sevt
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The 7.75% Notes Indenture contains certain affiveaind negative covenants applicable to AMC Nekwsoand its Subsidia
Guarantors including restrictions on their abilityincur additional indebtedness, consummate cedssets sales, make investments in er
that are not “Restricted Subsidiariesis(defined in the 7.75% Notes Indenture), creatnslion their assets, enter into certain affi
transactions and make certain restricted paymémtkjding restrictions on AMC Networksibility to pay dividends on, or repurchase
common stock.

AMC Networks was in compliance with all of its caamts under its 7.75% Notes Indenture as of DeceBhe2012 .
4.75% Senior Notes due 2022

On December 17, 2012, AMC Networks issued $600j808ggregate principal amount of its 4.75% seniotes, net of an issuar
discount of $10,500 , due December 15, 2022 (th&5% Notes”).AMC Networks used the net proceeds of this offerdngrepay th
outstanding amount under its term loan B facilifyapproximately $587,600, with the remaining prateased for general corporate purpc
In connection with the repayment of the term loafa8ility, the Company recorded a writdf of the related unamortized deferred finan
costs and a loss on extinguishment of debt of $&98 $10,774 respectively, in the consolidated statement obine for the year end
December 31, 2012. Additionally, the Company reedrdn unrealized loss of $8,725 the related interest rate swap contracts previ
designated as cash flow hedges of a portion ofettra loan B facility which is included in interestpense in the accompanying consolid
statement of income for the year ended Decembe2(BI12, .

The 4.75% Notes were issued pursuant to an indentated as of December 17, 2012 (the “Base Indgfitaind together with the Fil
Supplemental Indenture, the “4.75% Notes Indenjure”

In connection with the issuance of the 4.75% Nof&C Networks incurred deferred financing costs&df,393, which are bein
amortized, using the effective interest methodnterest expense over the term of the 4.75% Notes.

Interest on the 4.75% Notes accrues at the raer6P6 per annum and is payable semiually in arrears on June 15 and December
each year, commencing on June 15, 2013.

The 4.75% Notes may be redeemed, in whole or ity parany time on or after December 15, 2017, atdemption price equal
102.375% of the principal amount thereof (plus medrand unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the déatsuch redemption), declining annu
to 100% of the principal amount thereof (plus aedriand unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the ddéteuch redemption) beginning
December 15, 2020.

In addition, if AMC Networks experiences a Chan§€ontrol (as defined in the 4.75% Notes Indentutted holders of the 4.75% No
may require AMC Networks to repurchase for casload portion of their 4.75% Notes at a price eqad01% of the principal amount ther
(plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if tmthe date of such repurchase).

Since AMC Networks is a holding company and hagperations of its own, the 4.75% Notes are guaeaht® a senior unsecured b
by the Subsidiary Guarantors in accordance with4tii&% Notes Indenture. The guarantees under ##@#Notes are full and unconditio
and joint and several.

The 4.75% Notes Indenture contains certain affiveaind negative covenants applicable to AMC Neksoand its Subsidia
Guarantors including restrictions on their abilidyincur additional indebtedness, consummate cedssets sales, make investments in er
that are not “Restricted Subsidiariesis(defined in the 4.75% Notes Indenture), creatnslion their assets, enter into certain affi
transactions and make certain restricted paymémtkjding restrictions on AMC Networksbility to pay dividends on, or repurchase
common stock.

AMC Networks was in compliance with all of its coants under its 4.75% Notes Indenture as of DeceBhe2012 .
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Contractual Obligations and Off Balance Sheet Arragements

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 20&2summarized in the following table:

Payments due by period

Less than 1 1-3 3-5 More than
Total Year Years Years 5 years
Debt obligations:
Principal payments $ 2,180,000 $ — $ 202,000 $ 678,000 $ 1,300,00
Interest payments (1) 876,41 110,09 214,62¢ 192,19« 359,50(
Program rights obligations 548,29¢ 157,58« 267,41( 107,71 15,58¢
Purchase obligations (2) 246,02¢ 188,61 52,81¢ 4,59t —
Operating lease obligations 87,15« 16,06¢ 32,49¢ 26,45¢ 12,13¢
Guarantees (3) 72,62¢ 71,48 1,14¢ — —
Contract obligations (4) 48,47¢ 23,46: 22,78( 2,23: —
Capital lease obligations (5) 22,11 3,03¢ 6,07z 6,072 6,931
Total $ 4,081,111 $ 570,33¢ $ 799,34t $ 1,017,26! $ 1,694,15

(1) Interest on variable rate debt and the variableigrorof interest rate swap contracts is estimatasetd on a LIBOR yield curve as
December 31, 2012.

(2) Purchase obligation amounts not reflected on th@nba sheet consist primarily of program rightsgdiions that have not yet met
criteria to be recorded in the balance sheet.

(3) Consists primarily of a guarantee of payments pooaluction service company for certain productielated cost
(4) Represents primarily participation obligations aeflerred carriage fees payable to distribu
(5) Capital lease obligation amounts include imputderist

The contractual obligations table above does ratidle any liabilities for uncertain income tax pimsis due to the fact that we are uni
to reasonably predict the ultimate amount or tinofigettlement of our liabilities for uncertain ome tax positions. At December 31, 2Q1Re
liability for uncertain tax positions was $16,72éxcluding the related accrued interest liabitify$3,201 and deferred tax assets of $7,041
Note 10 to the accompanying consolidated finarstatements for further discussion of the Com|'s income taxes.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no material off-balance sheet arrangentastdefined in Iltem 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K).

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In preparing our financial statements, we are meguio make certain estimates, judgments and asgmapthat affect the report
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date effithancial statements and the reported amountsw@nues and expenses during the pe
presented. These judgments can be subjective angler and, consequently, actual results could diffaterially from those estimates
assumptions. We base our estimates on historigaresnce and various other assumptions believdx taeasonable under the circumstar
the results of which form the basis for making jondgnts about the carrying values of assets andiliebithat are not readily apparent fr
other sources. As with any set of assumptions atithates, there is a range of reasonably likelywartwothat may be reported.

The following critical accounting policies have badentified as those that affect the more sigaifiudgments and estimates used i
preparation of the consolidated financial statesient

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Asset
Our long-lived and indefinite-lived assets at Debem31, 2012 include property and equipment, néi7@,890, amortizable intangib

assets, net of $221,283 , identifiable indefinited intangible assets, which consist of Sundaritan@el trademarks of $19,9@0d goodwil
of $79,305 . These assets accounted for approxiynEié6 of our consolidated total assets as of Déxer81, 2012 .
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We review longlived assets (property and equipment and intangiisleets subject to amortization that arose fronuiaitipns) fo
impairment whenever events or circumstances inglittadt the carrying amount of an asset may notbeverable. If the sum of the exper
cash flows, undiscounted and without interestess Ithan the carrying amount of the asset, an impat loss is recognized as the amour
which the carrying amount of the asset exceedsiitvalue.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets éested annually for impairment during the firsager (“annual impairment test dafe”
and upon the occurrence of certain events or satdgtachanges in circumstances.

In accordance with the accounting guidance adoptedanuary 1, 2012, the annual goodwill impairniest allows for the option to fii
assess qualitative factors to determine whethiemitore likely than not that the fair value of @aging unit is less than its carrying amount.
entity may choose to perform the qualitative asses$ on none, some or all of its reporting unitsaorentity may bypass the qualita
assessment for any reporting unit and proceed tiiréz step one of the quantitative impairment .td&tit is determined, on the basis
qualitative factors, that the fair value of a rdjpa unit is, more likely than not, less than itgrying value, the quantitative impairment te:
required. The quantitative impairment test is a-st&p process. The first step compares the cargingunt of a reporting unit, includi
goodwill, with its fair value utilizing an entergevalue based approach. If the carrying amount afponting unit exceeds its fair value,
second step of the goodwill impairment test is gened to measure the amount of the goodwill impairtrioss, if any. The second <
compares the implied fair value of the reportingt'sngoodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwif the carrying amount of tl
reporting units goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of thabdwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an anteequal to that excess. 7
implied fair value of goodwill is determined in tsame manner as the amount of goodwill that woeldesognized in a business combina
For the purpose of evaluating goodwill impairmentree annual impairment test date, we had five ntépp units, which recognized goodw
These reporting units are AMC, WE tv, IFC and Sumd@aChannel, which are included in the NationaMeks reportable segment and Al
Networks Broadcasting & Technology, which is inaddn the International and Other reportable segn

The carrying amount of goodwill, by reporting uaitd reportable segment is as follows:

December 31, 2012

Reporting Unit and Segment

AMC $ 34,25
WE tv 5,21¢

IFC 13,58:
Sundance Channel 25,06:
Total National Networks 78,10¢
AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology 1,19¢
Total International and Other 1,19¢
$ 79,30t

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill andeotlonglived assets, the Company must make assumptioasdiag estimated futu
cash flows and other factors to determine thevigiue of the respective assets. These estimateassdhptions could have a significant im
on whether an impairment charge is recognized &sulthe magnitude of any such charge. Fair valtimates are made at a specific poir
time, based on relevant information. These estisnate subjective in nature and involve uncertasraied matters of significant judgments
therefore cannot be determined with precision. @ranin assumptions could significantly affect tistineates. Estimates of fair value
primarily determined using discounted cash flows eamparable market transactions. These valuatimbased on estimates and assumg
including projected future cash flows, discounteraind determination of appropriate market compasabhd determination of whethe
premium or discount should be applied to comparsblféese valuations also include assumptions feewals of affiliation agreements,
projected number of subscribers and the projectetage rates per basic and viewing subscribersgaodth in fixed price contractL
arrangements used to determine affiliation fee maee access to program rights and the cost of pumyram rights, amount of programm
time that is advertiser supported, number of aésieg spots available and the sell through rateshiose spots, average fee per advertising
and operating margins, among other assumptionle#fe estimates or material related assumptionggehia the future, we may be require
record impairment charges related to our long-ligssets.

The impairment test for identifiable indefiniiged intangible assets consists of a comparisamefestimated fair value of the intang
asset with its carrying value. If the carrying \alexceeds its fair value, an impairment loss i®sgaized in an amount equal to that exc
Significant judgments inherent in a valuation imtgithe selection of appropriate discount and rgyaltes, estimating the amount and timin
estimated future cash flows and identification g@priate continuing growth rate
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assumptions. The discount rates used in the asaysiintended to reflect the risk inherent inghgected future cash flows generated by
respective intangible assets.

Based on the Company’s annual impairment test dodgill and identifiable indefinitéived intangible assets as of the end of Febi
2012, no impairment charge was required for anthefreporting units. The Company performed a cpialt assessment for the AMC, WE
IFC and AMC Networks Broadcasting and Technologyoréng units, which included, but was not limiter] consideration of the historis
significant excesses of the estimated fair valueeafh reporting unit over its respective carryirgjue (including allocated goodwil
macroeconomic conditions, industry and market asrsitions, cost factors and historical and progectesh flows. The Company performe
guantitative assessment for the Sundance Charputirey unit. Based on the quantitative assessnifahg fair value of the Sundance Chat
reporting unit decreased by 11% , the Company wbaldequired to perform step-two of the quantim&gsessment.

The Company’s indefinite-lived trademark intangillesets relate to Sundance Channel trademarkshwigoe valued using a relief-
from-royalty method in which the expected benefits adeied by discounting estimated royalty revenue gvejected revenues covered by
trademarks. In order to evaluate the sensitivitjheffair value calculations for the Company’s iifgble indefinitelived intangible assets, t
Company applied a hypothetical 20% decrease tedtimated fair value of the identifiable indefiniiged intangible assets. This hypothet
decrease in estimated fair value would not resugtn impairment.

Useful Lives of Finite-Lived Intangible Assets
We have recognized intangible assets for affiliattgreements and affiliate relationships, advertisitionships and other intangi

assets as a result of our accounting for busineggigitions. We have determined that such intaegéssets have finite lives. The estim
useful lives and net carrying values of these igitale assets at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Estimated
Net Carrying Value at, Useful Lives
December 31, 2012 in Years
Affiliation agreements and affiliate relationships $ 217,13¢ 10 to 25 year
Advertiser relationships 4,022 10 year:
Other amortizable intangible assets 12t 4 to 10 year

$ 221,28:

The useful lives for the affiliation agreements affiliate relationships were determined based upomnalysis of the weighted aver
remaining terms of existing agreements we had aeelwith our major customers at the time that pasehaccounting was applied, plus
estimate for renewals of such agreements. We haea buccessful in renewing our major affiliatiorresggnents and maintaining custo
relationships in the past and believe we will beedb renew our major affiliation agreements andmaén those customer relationships in
future. However, it is possible that we will notcsassfully renew such agreements as they expitieabif we do, the net revenue earned
not equal or exceed the net revenue currently bedmged, which could have a significant adverseithpn our business.

There have been periods when an existing affileagreement has expired and the parties have malizitd negotiations of eithe
renewal of that agreement or a new agreement ftaingoeriods of time. In substantially all theestances, the affiliates continued to carry
pay for the service under oral or written interigr@ements until execution of definitive replacemagrteements or renewals. If an affiliate v
to cease carrying a service on an other than teempbasis, we would record an impairment chargeéhferthen remaining carrying value of 1
affiliation agreement intangible asset. If we wireenew an affiliation agreement at rates thatipced materially less net revenue compar
the net revenue produced under the previous agrdemve would evaluate the impact on our cash fland, if necessary, would furtt
evaluate such indication of potential impairmenfdijowing the policy described above under “Impaént of Long-Lived and Indefiniteived
Assets”for the asset group containing that intangible &% also would evaluate whether the remainindulisiée of the affiliate relationshi
intangible asset remained appropriate. Based oerleer 31, 2012arrying values, if the estimated remaining lifeatifaffiliation agreemen
and affiliate relationships were shortened by 1686, effect on amortization for the year ending Delser 31, 2013 would be to increase
annual amortization expense by approximately $1,083

Program Rights

Rights to programming, including feature films amsodic series, acquired under license agreenaeaitstated at the lower of amorti
cost or net realizable value. Such licensed righiag with the related obligations are recordethatcontract value when a license agreemi
executed, unless there is uncertainty with respeatither cost, acceptability or availability. Iich uncertainty exists, those rights
obligations are recorded at the earlier of whenutheertainty is resolved or when the license pebiegins. Costs are amortized to technica
operating expense on a straight-line basis overiagnot to exceed the respective license periods.
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Our owned original programming is primarily prodddey independent production companies, with theaiader produced by us. Owr
original programming costs, including estimatecdtipgration and residual costs, qualifying for capi#tation as program rights are amortize
technical and operating expense over their estonaseful lives, commencing upon the first airingséd on attributable revenue for airing
date as a percentage of total projected attribatagenue, or ultimate revenue (film-forecestnputation method). Projected attribut:
revenue is based on previously generated reveouaiilar content in established markets, prinyacdnsisting of distribution and advertis
revenues. Projected program usage is based onidfweital usage of similar content. Estimated hitttéble revenue can change based
programming market acceptance, levels of distrdyutind advertising revenue and program usage. Tdaselations require managemen
make assumptions and to apply judgment regardingniee and planned usage. We periodically reviewmeg estimates and planned u:
and revise our assumptions if necessary, whichdceither accelerate or delay the timing of amotitwaexpense or result in a writwn o
the program right to net realizable value. We belithe most sensitive factor affecting our estimaftelltimate revenues is the program’
audience ratings. A program'strong performance could result in increased aisagl increased revenues in a particular periodti@s in
accelerated amortization of production costs i flegiod. Poor ratings may result in the reductiérplanned usage or the abandonment
program, which would require a writdf of any unamortized production costs. A faildceadjust for a downward change in estimate
ultimate revenues could result in the understatémiprogram rights amortization expense for theque Historically, actual ultimate rever
amounts have not significantly differed from outimates of ultimate revenue.

We periodically review the programming usefulne$owr licensed and owned original program rightsdzhon a series of factc
including expected future revenue generation frarnmgs on our networks and other exploitation oppoities, ratings, type and quality
program material, standards and practices andsfitfier exhibition through various forms of distiiiom. If it is determined that film or oth
program rights have no future programming usefidri®ssed on actual demand or market conditions,ita-eff of the unamortized cost
recorded in technical and operating expense. Pmogights write-offs of $9,990 , $18,332 and $1,22@re recorded for the years en
December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 .

Income Taxes

Judgment is required in determining the provisionificome taxes and related accruals, deferredgagts and liabilities. Consequer
changes in our estimates with regard to uncergairpositions and the realization of deferred tesetswill impact our results of operations
financial position. Deferred tax assets are evaltlguarterly for expected future realization ardliced by a valuation allowance to the e»
management believes it is more likely than not #agiortion will not be realized. At December 31120 we had a valuation allowance
$6,064, primarily for certain local income tax dtezhrry forwards.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting StandaBdard ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Upda#sU”) No. 201302,
Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of AmtewReclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehenincome (ASU 20182).
The amendments in ASU 20D02- do not change the current requirements for tepnet income or other comprehensive incomernaritia
statements. However, ASU 2002- requires an entity to provide information abdle amounts reclassified out of accumulated
comprehensive income by component. In additionemtity is required to present, either on the fat¢he statement where net incom
presented or in the notes, significant amountsassified out of accumulated other comprehensiventecby the respective line items of
income but only if the amount reclassified is regdiunder GAAP to be reclassified to net incomésrentirety in the same reporting per
For other amounts that are not required under G#ABe reclassified in their entirety to net incoran,entity is required to crossference t
other disclosures required under GAAP that prowdditional detail about those amounts. ASU 2023s effective in the first quarter of 2(
and is not expected to have a material effect erconsolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02, ngthles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): TestimgdéfiniteLived Intangible
Assets for Impairment (ASU 2012-02), to allow d@ettto use a qualitative approach to test indefinred intangible assets for impairme
ASU 201202 permits an entity to first perform a qualitatimesessment to determine whether the existenceearitse and circumstanc
indicates that it is more likely than not that thdefinitedived intangible asset is impaired. If it is coradd that this is the case, an entil
required to determine the fair value of the indiédhtived intangible asset and perform the quantitatiapairment test by comparing the
value with the carrying amount in accordance withbtBpic 35030. Otherwise, the quantitative impairment testn@ required. Th
authoritative guidance will be effective for ourl@annual impairment test and earlier adoptioneisnitted. We will evaluate performing
qualitative assessment in 2013.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure Albut Market Risk.
Fair Value of Debt

Based on the level of interest rates prevailinBetember 31, 2012 , the fair value of our fixe@ mébt of $1,404,508as more than i
carrying value of $1,276,957 by $127,54Bhe fair value of these financial instrumentestmated based on reference to quoted markets
for these or comparable securities. A hypothetl€l basis point decrease in interest rates pragadi December 31, 203ould increase tt
estimated fair value of our fixed rate debt by appnately $66,900 to approximately $1,471,400 .

Managing our Interest Rate Risk

To manage interest rate risk, we enter into intaes swap contracts from time to time to adjhstamount of total debt that is subjec
variable interest rates. Such contracts effectifi@lyhe borrowing rates on floating rate debtitoit the exposure against the risk of rising r¢
We do not enter into interest rate swap contramtsspeculative or trading purposes and we onlyrante interest rate swap contracts v
financial institutions that we believe are creditthy counterparties. We monitor the financial ingtons that are counterparties to our inte
rate swap contracts and to the extent possiblersifyeour swap contracts among various counterpantd mitigate exposure to any sir
financial institution.

As of December 31, 2012 , we have $2,153,315 of detstanding (excluding capital leases), of wHk@76,358o0utstanding under tl
Credit Facility is subject to variable interestestA hypothetical 100 basis point increase inr@gerates prevailing at December 31, 264alc
increase our annual interest expense approxim&gg0o0 .

During 2012, in connection with the repayment of thutstanding principal amount under the term IBafacility, we recorded ¢
unrealized loss of $8,725ncluded in interest expense, on the relatedestaate swap contracts previously designate@sts ftow hedges ol
portion of our term loan B facility.

As of December 31, 2012 , we have interest ratepsseatracts outstanding with notional amounts agafieg $838,813 The aggrega
fair values of interest rate swap contracts at bdusr 31, 2012 was a liability of $22,18ncluded in other liabilities). As a result of 8t
transactions, the interest rate paid on approxim#&8% of our debt (excluding capital leases) aPetember 31, 201B effectively fixet
( 59% being fixed rate obligations and 3%ffectively fixed through utilization of these inést rate swap contracts). Accumulated ¢
comprehensive loss consists of $8,446 of cumulativeealized losses, net of tax, on the portion loating-tofixed interest rate swa
designated as cash flow hedges. At December 32, ,201r interest rate swap contracts designatedsisftav hedges were highly effective
all material respects.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Financial Statements required by this Item 8eap beginning on page 67 of this Annual Repord, @ incorporated by referel
herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountasion Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceates

An evaluation was carried out under the supervisiad with the participation of the Compasynanagement, including our Ct
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, dfet effectiveness of the design and operation ofdisalosure controls and procedures
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 158(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended). Based upon that evaluation ¢
December 31, 2012 , the Company’s Chief Executiffee€ and Chief Financial Officer concluded thaetCompanys disclosure controls a
procedures are effective.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg effective internal control over financiaporting, as such term is defit
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 1I54#)y. The Company's internal control over finaheeporting includes those policies
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenanceobnds that, in reasonable detail, accurately amty freflect the transactions and dispositi
of the assets of the Company; (ii) provide reastenabsurance that transactions are recorded assaggdao permit preparation of finan
statements in accordance with generally accepteauating principles, and that receipts and expeneft of the Company are being made
in accordance with authorizations of managementdarettors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasue assurance regarding preventic
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,disposition of the Company's assets that coaleha material effect on the finan



statements.
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Internal control over financial reporting is desiginto provide reasonable assurance regarding libiligy of financial reporting and tt
preparation of financial statements prepared foereal purposes in accordance with generally aeceptcounting principles. Because o
inherent limitations, internal control over finaatreporting may not prevent or detect misstatemefitso, projections of any evaluation
effectiveness to future periods are subject taiiethat controls may become inadequate becauskanfges in conditions, or that the degre
compliance with the policies or procedures may ritatate.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomm@nagement, including the Company's Chief Exeeudificer and Chief Financi
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemti@ss of our internal control over financial rejpgrtbased on the framework in Intet
Control —Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissicsesl on our evaluati
under the framework in Internal Control rtegrated Framework, our management concludedotimainternal control over financial report
was effective as of December 31, 2012 .

The attestation report of the independent regidterlic accounting firm on the Compasyihternal control over financial reporting
included in this report appearing on page F-1.

(c) Attestation Report of Independent Registere®@ublic Accounting Firm

The effectiveness of the Company's internal cordvel financial reporting as of December 31, 2848 been audited by KPMG LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their attestation report appearing on gade

(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the three months ended December 31, 2(H&re twere no changes in the Compargternal control over financial reporting t
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company’s internal cohtyeer financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

Part 1l
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

Information relating to our directors, executivdiadrs and corporate governance will be includedun definitive Proxy Statement -
our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which vioi filed within 120 days of the year ended Deceamfie 2012 (the “ 201%roxy
Statement”), which is incorporated herein by refes
Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information relating to executive compensation Wwélincluded in the 2013 Proxy Statement, whidhdsrporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet

Information relating to the beneficial ownershipoofr common stock will be included in the 2xy Statement, which is incorpora
herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence.

Information relating to certain relationships arelated transactions and director independence heillincluded in the 201®roxy
Statement, which is incorporated herein by refezenc

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information relating to principal accounting feexaservices will be included in the 20P8oxy Statement, which is incorporated he
by reference.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) Documents filed as part of the Form 10-K:
The following items are filed as part of this Anh&eeport:
(1) The financial statements as indicated in the irsbxorth on page €
(2) Financial statement schedt
Schedule [I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules other than that listed above have beettedmsince they are either not applicable, nafuneed or the information is includ
elsewhere herein.

(3) Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying Exhibitdrdare filed or incorporated by reference as pittie Annual Report.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit
2.1 Distribution Agreement between Cablevision Syst€ugporation and AMC Networks Inc. (incorporatedrbference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Amendment No. 6 to Begtion Statement on Form 10 filed on June 10,120
3.1() Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioAMC Networks Inc. (incorporated by reference tchibit 99.4 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Jujy2011).
3.1(ii) Amended and Restated By-Laws of AMC Networks Iimcdrporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to thenpany’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 1, 2011).
4.1 Form of Registration Rights Agreement between AM&wWorks Inc. and The Charles F. Dolan Children &r(iscorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to the Company’s AmerdirNo. 5 to Registration Statement on Form 1@ fde June 6, 2011).
4.2 Form of Registration Rights Agreement between AM@&wbrks Inc. and The Dolan Family Affiliates (inporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.6 to the Company’s Amendnidmt5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 filadlone 6, 2011).
4.3 Indenture dated as of June 30, 2011, by and amdhg Networks Inc., as Issuer, each of the guaramtarsy thereto and
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, retptimthe AMC Networks Inc. 7.75% Senior Notes duly 15, 2021
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to tlerpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Ju/y2@11).
4.4 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Jun@@01, among AMC Networks Inc., the subsidiary ga#ors named
therein, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Imporated and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as reptatiees of the several
initial purchasers (incorporated by reference thikix 99.2 to the Company’s Current Report on F@&nk filed on July 1,
2011).
4.5 Indenture by and among AMC Networks Inc., as Isseich of the guarantors party thereto and U.Sk B&ional
Association, as Trustee (incorporated by referéodexhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Stagatron Form S-3 filed
on December 10, 2012).
4.6 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of Decembge2d12, by and among AMC Networks Inc., as Isse&ch of the
guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank Nationabgission, as Trustee, relating to the AMC Netwadrks 4.75% Senior
Notes due December 15, 2022 (incorporated by ne¢erto Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Reporform 8-K filed
on December 17, 2012).
10.1 Form of Transition Services Agreement between Géditen Systems Corporation and AMC Networks Inacfrporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Amendinim 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 fdedJune 6, 2011).
10.2 Form of Tax Disaffiliation Agreement between Caligén Systems Corporation and AMC Networks Inccgirporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Amendinim 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 fdedlune 6, 2011).
10.3 Form of Employee Matters Agreement between CalitaviSystems Corporation and AMC Networks Inc. (mpovated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Amendinim 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 fdedlune 6, 2011).
104 Form of Equity Administration Agreement between Thadison Square Garden Company and AMC Networks Inc
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to tlerpany’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Stateroarftorm 10 filed on
June 6, 2011).
10.5 Form of Standstill Agreement by and among AMC Netgdnc. and The Dolan Family Group (incorporatgddference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Amendment No. 5 tgiRation Statement on Form 10 filed on June 6,120
10.6 AMC Networks Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Empd®ck Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibii to the
Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertpraended June 30, 2012).
10.7 AMC Networks Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Stdak fr Non-Employee Directors (incorporated byerefice to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrk 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012).



10.8 AMC Networks Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Caséritive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibBi® to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertgraended June 30, 2012).
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Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

10.9 Form of Time Sharing Agreement between Rainbow lsléthldings LLC and CSC Transport, Inc. (incorpodétg
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Amendnidm 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 fdedJune 6, 2011).

10.10 Form of Time Sharing Agreement between Rainbow eéthldings LLC and Dolan Family Office, LLC (incanated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Amendindp. 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 fdadJune 6, 2011).

10.11 Form of Aircraft Dry Lease Agreement between Raimthdedia Holdings LLC and New York Aircam Corp. (orporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Admaent No. 5 to Registration Statement on Form [&d fn June 6,
2011).

10.12 Form of Aircraft Management Agreement between RawmbMedia Holdings LLC and CSC Transport, Inc. (irparated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Ameniindp. 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 fdadJune 6, 2011).

10.13 Form of Employment Agreement by and between AMCAeks Inc. and Charles F. Dolan (incorporated lfgrence to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Amendment No. 5 égRRtration Statement on Form 10 filed on Juned&,1}.

10.14 Form of Employment Agreement by and between AMOaeks Inc. and Joshua W. Sapan (incorporated ®reate to
Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Amendment No. 5 &gRRtration Statement on Form 10 filed on Juned&,1?

10.15 Employment Agreement by and between Rainbow Mediargrises, Inc. and Edward A. Carroll (incorpoddby reference
to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Amendment Noo Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on Jyr0é1).

10.16 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Option Agreement in respef Cablevision Options granted on and prior tov/&imber 8, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to@wmmpany’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Staternarfform 10 filed
on June 6, 2011).

10.17 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Rights Agreement (incorgied by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Compsiiyhendment
No. 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 filedlone 6, 2011).

10.18 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Option Agreement in respef Vested Cablevision Options granted on Jur086 and
October 19, 2006 (incorporated by reference to lEkiAD.19 to the Company’s Amendment No. 5 to Regfion Statement
on Form 10 filed on June 6, 2011).

10.19 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Option Agreement in respef Cablevision Options granted on January 2092@hcorporate:
by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Admaent No. 5 to Registration Statement on Form [&d fon June 6,
2011).

10.20 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Option Agreement in respef Cablevision Options granted on March 5, 2(@8orporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Adrmaent No. 5 to Registration Statement on Form [&@ fon June 6,
2011).

10.21 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Non-Employee Director AsdaAgreement (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi22 to the
Company’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Staternarfform 10 filed on June 6, 2011).

10.22 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Restricted Shares Agreetfmcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23ie Company’s
Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fddrfiléd on June 6, 2011).

10.23 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Performance Award Agreen@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24hte €Company’s

Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fdrfiléd on June 6, 2011).
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Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

10.24 Form of Letter Agreement from CSC Holdings, LLCANIC Networks Inc. regarding VOOM Litigation (incaspated by
reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s AmendinMdo. 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 fdedJune 6, 2011).

10.25 Form of Termination Agreement among CSC HoldindsC] American Movie Classics Company LLC and WE: Wors
Entertainment LLC (incorporated by reference toigiH.0.26 to the Compang’Amendment No. 5 to Registration Staten
on Form 10 filed on June 6, 2011).

10.26 Credit Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2011, arAdhg Networks Inc., as the borrower, certain sulzsiigis of AMC
Networks Inc., as restricted subsidiaries, J.P.ddnrChase Bank, National Association, as admitiigéragent, collateral
agent and letter of credit issuer, J.P. Morgan &@esiLL C, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smithdorporated, as joint le:
arrangers and joint bookrunners, BNP Paribas, GipQNorth America, Inc. and The Bank of Nova Scasgoint
bookrunners and co-documentation agents, Bank afrf, N.A., as syndication agent and the lendarsgs thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to tlmrpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Ju\2Q11).

10.27 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Non-Employee Director Agiment (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endlate 30, 2012).

10.28 Form of Executive Officer Restricted Shares Agreeinfimcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te @ompany’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enSepgtember 30, 2011).

10.29 Form of Performance Award Agreement under the Z044h Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencextalit 99.1 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Ma6;t2012).

10.30 Form of Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement urttle 2011 Employee Stock Plan (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit
99.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8kdfion March 6, 2012).

10.31 Form of Cablevision Amended and Restated Performamneard Agreement (incorporated by reference toiliikh0.32 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31, 2011).

*10.32 Confidential Settlement Agreement and Release deten October 21, 2012 by and between VOOM HD I#oisl LLC,
CSC Holdings, LLC, DISH Network L.L.C., and for t&n limited purposes, MSG Holdings, L.P., The M Square
Garden Company and EchoStar Corporation (incorpdray reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’su@rly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012)

12 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chighancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of tlaelfBines-Oxley Act of
2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
*101.INS XBRL Instance Document.
**101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
*101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documte



**101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase.
*101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

*101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted anddféeparately with the Securities and Exchange Casiari in accordance with a requ
for confidential treatment pursuant to Rule 24baBler the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amiknde

**  Pursuant to Rule 406T of RegulationT$these interactive data files are deemed nat filepart of a registration statement or prospe
for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securhietsof 1933, are deemed not filed for purposeseaftion 18 of the Securities Exchal
Act of 1934, and otherwise are not subject to ligbinder those sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causisd¢port to be signed on their bel
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

AMC Networks Inc.

Date: February 26, 2013 By: /s/ Sean S. Sullivan
Sean S. Sullivan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personos# signature appears below constitutes and agpdoshua W. Sap
and Sean S. Sullivan, and each of them, his trdelamful attorneys-irfact and agents, with full power of substitutiordaesubstitution, fc
him in his name, place and stead, in any and phcities, to sign this report, and file the samigh all exhibits thereto, and other documen
connection therewith, with the Securities and ExgfgaCommission, granting unto said attorneyfaut-and agents, full power and authorit
do and perform each and every act and thing requasid necessary to be done as fully to all intants purposes as he might or could ¢
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all thaidsattorneys-infact and agents or any of them may lawfully do ause to be done by virt
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on bel
of the Registrant and in the capacities and orlétes indicated.

Name Title Date

President and Chief Executive Officer

/sl Joshua W. Sapan February 26, 2013
Joshua W. Sapan (Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Sean S. Sullivan Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office February 26, 2013
Sean S. Sullivan (Principal Financial Officer)

/sl John P. Giraldo Chief Accounting Officer February 26, 2013
John P. Giraldo (Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl Charles F. Dolan Chairman of the Board of Directors February 26, 2013

Charles F. Dolan

/sl Neil Ashe Director February 26, 2013
Neil Ashe

/s/ William J. Bell Director February 26, 2013
William J. Bell

/sl James L. Dolan Director February 26, 2013

James L. Dolan

/sl Kristin A. Dolan Director February 26, 2013
Kristin A. Dolan
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Name

/sl Marianne Dolan Weber

Marianne Dolan Weber

/sl Patrick F. Dolan

Patrick F. Dolan

/s/ Thomas C. Dolan

Thomas C. Dolan

/sl Alan D. Schwartz

Alan D. Schwartz

/sl Brian G. Sweeney

Brian G. Sweeney

/s/ Leonard Tow

Leonard Tow

/s/ Robert Wright

Robert Wright

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

=
5}

Date

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013

February 26, 2013




AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31012 and 2011 and for the years ended December, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfiing E1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012011 E-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@iecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 F-4
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Schedule Il—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S1
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
AMC Networks Inc.:

We have audited AMC Networks Inc. and subsidiaffib&€ Company) internal control over financial repw as of December 31, 20
based on criteria established in Internal Contilotegrated Framework issued by the Committee @hSpring Organizations of the Tread\
Commission (COSO). AMC Networks Inc.'s managemsnesponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting ai
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intecoaltrol over financial reporting, included in thecompanying Management's Repor
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting in Item.90ur responsibility is to express an opinion twe Company's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadw of the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigffeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operafifectiveness of internal control basec
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfagrauch other procedures as we considered neceaastmy circumstances. We believe
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed to provide reasonableassuregarding the reliability
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princi
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures thapéitpin to the maintenance of records
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbet transactions and dispositions of the assetseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtrver financial reporting may not prevent or dtt@isstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaibject to the risk that controls may becomedénaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, AMC Networks Inc. and subsidiariaintained, in all material respects, effectiveinl control over financial reporti
as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria estedali$n Internal Control - Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BogUnited States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of AMC Networks Ind. subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 20ML{tenrelated consolidated statem
of income, comprehensive income, stockholders'i¢aeicy) equity, and cash flows for each of thergem the thregrear period ende
December 31, 2012, and our report dated Februgr@@3 expressed an unqualified opinion on thossa@aated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP
New York, New York

February 26, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
AMC Networks Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balatheets of AMC Networks Inc. and subsidiarie®e (@ompany) as
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related coiasedl statements of income, comprehensive incaimeklelders’ (eficiency) equity ar
cash flows for each of the years in the thyear period ended December 31, 2012. In connegtitinour audits of the consolidated finan
statements, we also have audited the related fiaastatement schedule as listed in the index émnI15. These consolidated finan
statements and financial statement schedule anespensibility of the Company’'management. Our responsibility is to expresspaman or
these consolidated financial statements and fimastatement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaglo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidngcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on & besis, evidence supporting the amounts and disds in the financial stateme!
assessing the accounting principles used and gignifestimates made by management, as well asagiaj the overall financial statem
presentation. We believe that our audits providessonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of Al
Networks Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 8122nd 2011, and the results of their operatiodistiaeir cash flows for each of the yeai
the threeyear period ended December 31, 2012, in conformith U.S. generally accepted accounting principiiso, in our opinion, th
related financial statement schedule referred mv@bwhen considered in relation to the basic cichsted financial statements taken ¢
whole, presents fairly, in all material respedtg, information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boddnited States), AM
Networks Inc. and subsidiaries' internal controkemfinancial reporting as of December 31, 2012eHasn criteria established Internal
Control - Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSQO), and our r¢
dated February 26, 2013 expressed an unqualifisdompon the effectiveness of the Company's intiecoatrol over financial reporting.

/s KPMG LLP
New York, New York

February 26, 2013
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, trade (less allowance for dfaliaccounts of $1,378 and $3,092)

Amounts due from related parties, net
Current portion of program rights, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred tax asset, net
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Program rights, net
Amounts due from related parties, net
Deferred carriage fees, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:
Interest
Employee related costs
Income taxes payable
Other accrued expenses
Amounts due to related parties, net
Program rights obligations
Deferred litigation settlement proceeds
Deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Total current liabilities
Program rights obligations
Long-term debt
Capital lease obligations
Deferred tax liability, net
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ deficiency:

Class A Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 360,000sb@@es authorized, 6247,043 and
58,628,764 shares issued and 60 ,591,030 and&g8p¥3shares outstanding, respectively

Class B Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 90,000,8860es authorized, 11,784,408 and

13,534,408 shares issued and outstanding, respkgctiv
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 45,000,000 start®rized; none issued

Paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit

Treasury stock, at cost (656 ,013 and 194,06(kshalass A Common Stock, respectively)

Acciimiilated nther comnrehencive |

2012 2011
610,97( 215,83
299,79; 286,81

7,68¢ 5,54(
289,64« 288,86t
17,03: 13,67:
121,40: 59,27:
1,346,52 869,99
70,89( 63,81
751,11¢ 765,60
3,19- 3,214
64,00t 47,30
241,18 305,67:
79,308 83,17:
62,54 45,14¢
2,618,85 2,183,93.
59,07 61,608
28,25( 31,25¢
75,62 57,16(
116, 74( —
21,48¢ 11,38t
1,11( 5,33¢
157,58 146,33
307,94« —
53,11¢ 23,85:
— 5,95(

1,55¢ 1,31¢
822,48 344,19
390,71 472,69
2,153,31! 2,285,33
14,10¢ 14,36:
29,14 51,90
91,44t 52,44
3,501,20 3,220,92"
612 58€

11¢ 13¢
36,45¢ 5,947

(893,42 (1,029,95)
(17,666 (1,677

(R 44FA (12 N2\



Total stockholders’ deficiency (882,35)) (1,036,99)

Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficiency $ 261885 $ 2,183,93

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#stents.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues, net (including revenues, net from relpseties of $32,195 ,
$31,885 and $29,203, respectively)

Operating expenses:

Technical and operating (excluding depreciation amartization
shown below and including charges from relatedigauxf $620 ,
$5,040 and $3,971, respectively)

Selling, general and administrative (including dfesr (credits) from
related parties of $(206) , $57,004 and $100,23pectively)

Restructuring credit
Depreciation and amortization

Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Interest income
Write-off of deferred financing costs
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Miscellaneous, net

Income from continuing operations before incometax
Income tax expense

Income from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nehcdme taxes

Net income

Basic net income (loss) per share:

Income from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Net income

Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Net income

Weighted average common shares:
Basic weighted average common shares
Diluted weighted average common shares

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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2012 2011 2010
$ 1,35257 $  1,187,74 $  1,078,30
507,43 425,96: 366,00:
396,92 335,65t 328,13
©) (240) (2,219
85,38( 99,84¢ 106,45!
989,73 861,22 798,46
362,83t 326,51 279,83
(127,779 (95,870) (75,800)
502 1,074 2,38¢
(1,867) (6,247 —
(10,779 (14,726 —
(652) (137) (162)
(140,56 (115,90¢) (73,57
222,27 210,61( 206,26
(86,05¢) (84,24%) (88,079)
136,21 126,36: 118,18¢
314 92 (38,090)
$ 136,53 $ 126,45 $ 80,00¢
$ 194 $ 182 $ 1.71
$ — % — 8 (0.5%)
$ 194 $ 1.8: $ 1.1€
$ 1.8¢ $ 1.7¢ $ 1.71
$ — 3 — 3 (0.55)
$ 1.8¢ $ 1.7¢ $ 1.1€
70,37+ 69,28: 69,16
72,23¢ 70,73: 69,16




AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in thousands)

2012 2011 2010

Net income $ 136,53( $ 126,45: $ 80,09¢
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps 5,69: (19,09) —

Other comprehensive income (loss), before incomesta 5,69: (29,09 —

Income tax (expense) benefit (2,112 7,06¢ —

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of incorresta 3,581 (12,029 —

Comprehensive income $ 140,11 $ 114,42 $ 80,09¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIENC Y) EQUITY

Balance, January 1, 2010

Net Income

Cash capital contributions from Cablevision
Cash capital distributions to Cablevision

Non-cash capital contribution related to the wilian of
Cablevision tax losses

Distribution of net assets to Cablevision (see Ndfe
Non-cash capital contribution related to the altmeaof
Cablevision share-based compensation expense
Other non-cash capital distributions, net

Balance, December 31, 2010

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Cash capital contributions from Cablevision
Cash capital distributions to Cablevision

Non-cash capital distribution to Cablevision retbte
employee benefit plans as a result of the Distidioutsee
Note 15)

Non-cash capital distribution associated with suance
of debt to Cablevision (see Note 1)

Non-cash capital contribution, net related to atifents
to the liability for uncertain tax positions and deferred
tax assets as a result of the Distribution

Non-cash capital contribution related to the waifian of
Cablevision tax losses

Non-cash capital distribution related to tax crediilized
by Cablevision

Non-cash capital distribution of a promissory note
receivable to Cablevision (see Note 15)

Non-cash capital contribution related to the altmraof
Cablevision share-based compensation expense

Reclassification of common stock in connection fitl
Distribution

Years Ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

Accumulated

Share-based compensation expense subsequent to the

Distribution
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options

Treasury stock acquired from forfeitures and adtjois
of restricted shares

Other non-cash capital contributions, net
Balance, December 31, 2011

Net Income

Other comprehensive income

Non-cash capital distribution, net related to amiients to
liability for uncertain tax positions and net deéet tax
assets as a result of the Distribution (see N@t¢ 1

Non-cash capital distribution related to the ugition of
Cablevision tax losses (see Note 10)

Share-based compensation expense
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options

Treasury stock acquired from forfeitures and adtjors
of restricted shares (see Note 12)

Conversion of Class B to Class A common stock

Excess tax benefits on share-based awards

Balance, December 31, 2012

Class A Class B Other
Common Common Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Stock Capital Deficit Stock Loss Total
$ — 3 — 3 — % (236,99) $ — 3 — $ (236,99)
— — — 80,09¢ — — 80,09¢
— — 204,01¢ — — — 204,01
— — (53,759 — — — (53,759
— — 52,82« — — — 52,82:
- — (41,279 — — — (41,277
— — 20,55¢ — — — 20,55¢
— — (650) — — — (650)
— — 181,72 (156,89 — — 24,83:
— — — 126,45: — — 126,45«
— — — — — (12,027 (12,02
— — 20,81: — — — 20,81
— — (20,817 — — — (20,81))
— — (6,319 — — — (6,319
— — (250,48)) (999,51} — — (1,250,00)
— — 44,59¢ — — — 44,59¢
— — 36,86 — — — 36,86
— — (2,58¢) — — — (2,58¢)
— — (17,11 — — — (17,119
— — 8,34: — — — 8,34:
57¢ 13t (713) — — — —
— — 7,66¢ — — — 7,66¢
8 — 3,61« — — — 3,62
— — — — (1,679 — (1,679
— — 337 — — — 337
58€ 13t 5,94 (1,029,95) (1,677 (12,027) (1,036,99)
— — — 136,53( — — 136,53
— — — — — 3,581 3,581
— — (1,149 — — — (1,149
— — (1,799 — — — (1,799
— — 17,20: — — — 17,20:
9 — 8,76¢ — — — 8,77
— — — — (15,989 — (15,989
17 (¢W) — — — — —
— — 7,48¢ — — — 7,48¢
$ 61z % 11€  $ 3645 % (893,429 $ (17,660 $ (8,44¢) $ (882,35)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@gdsients.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in thousands)

2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities:
Income from continuing operations $ 136,21« $ 126,36: $ 118,18
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing r@iens to net cash provided by operating actisitie
Depreciation and amortization 85,38( 99,84¢ 106,45
Share-based compensation expense related to etpssified awards 17,20: 16,012 16,267
Amortization and write-off of program rights 355,47 278,72¢ 219,85¢
Amortization of deferred carriage fees 9,211 23,96 25,21
Unrealized loss on derivative contracts, net 8.73¢ . .
Amortization and write-off of deferred financingste and discounts on indebtedness 10,40¢ 12,15¢ 3,77:
Loss on extinguishment of debt 10,77« 14,72¢ —
(Recovery of) provision for doubtful accounts (1,26%) 33¢ 1,484
Deferred income taxes (88,519 69,16( 80,74«
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensatiangements (7,484 — —
Other, net (200 (240 —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, trade (12,717 (44,75() (36,42
Amounts due from/to related parties, net (6,007) (9,602 5,04¢
Prepaid expenses and other assets (24,84 (3,439 3,962
Program rights and obligations, net (412,49) (358,929 (288,319
Income taxes payable 116,74( (52 (1649)
Deferred revenue and deferred litigation settlenpeoteeds 337,20 6,03¢ 1,631
Deferred carriage fees and deferred carriage fegshpe, net (3,899 (3,640 (3,03))
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedbil 38,09( 28,551 11,30¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 569,13: 255,23¢ 265,99!
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (18,557 (15,37) (17,249
Acquisition of investment securities (750 — —
Payment for acquisition of a business (185) (320 (320
Proceeds from sale of equipment, net of costsapfodial 10C — 40€
Net cash used in investing activities (29,399 (15,69) (17,159
Cash flows from financing activities:
Capital contributions from Cablevision — 20,81: 204,01¢
Capital distributions to Cablevision — (20,81) (53,759
Repayment of credit facility debt (742,02 (877,97 (205,001)
Redemption of senior notes — (300,001) —
Redemption of senior subordinated notes, inclutingler premium and fees — (338,36%) —
Payments for financing costs (1,427 (27,419 —
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt 589,50( 1,442,36: —
Purchase of treasury stock (15,989 (1,677 —
Proceeds from stock option exercises 8,771 3,622 —
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensatiamngements 7,48¢ — —
Repayment of note payable to related party — — (290,001)
Principal payments on capital lease obligations (1,419 (4,612 (4,080
Net cash used in financing activities (155,08 (104,05) (148,81¢)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents fronimreong) operations 394,65: 135,48! 100,02:
Cash flows from discontinued operations:
Net cash used in operating activities (82 (359 (30,870
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 568 75C (10,189

Fffart nf rhanne in rach ralated tn nat accatdhligbd tn Cahlavicin — — (] RN



Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisditent discontinued operations 481 391 (49,890

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 215,83t 79,96( 29,82¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 610,97( $ 21583t $ 79,96(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@tdsients.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Note 1. Description of Business and Basis of Pregation
Description of Business

AMC Networks Inc. (“AMC Networks”) and collectivelyith its subsidiaries (the “Companydvn and operate entertainment busine
and assets. The Company is comprised of two regersegments:

. National NetworksIncludes fournationally distributed programming networks: AMC BEWv, IFC and Sundance Chan
These programming networks are distributed throughioe United States (“U.S.¥ia cable and other multichannel vic
programming distribution platforms, including ditedbroadcast satellite (“DBS")and platforms operated
telecommunications providers (we refer collectivieythese cable and other multichannel video prograng distributors ¢
“multichannel video programming distributors” oristtibutors”); and

. International and OtherPrincipally includes AMC/Sundance Channel Globhke Companys international programmii
business; IFC Films, the Compasyhdependent film distribution business; and AM&wbrks Broadcasting & Technolo
the Companys network technical services business, which pilynaervices the programming networks of the Cony:
AMC and Sundance Channel are distributed in CamadhSundance Channel and WE tv are distributedhiaracountrie
throughout Europe and Asia. The International antie©reportable segment also includes VOOM HD Hujdi LLC
(“VOOM HD”), which the Company is winding down, and which comtis to sell certain limited amounts of programr
through program license agreements.

On June 30, 2011, Cablevision Systems Corporati©ablevision Systems Corporation and its subsidiadee referred to
“Cablevision”) spun off the Company (the “Distriut”) and the Company became an independent public comparonnection with tt
Distribution, Cablevision contributed all of the mieership interests of Rainbow Media Holdings LL&NIH") to the Company. RMH owne
directly or indirectly, the businesses includeablevisions Rainbow Media segment. On June 30, 2011, Caeviffected the Distributic
of all of AMC Networks’ outstanding common stock. the Distribution, each holder of Cablevision NYoGp (“CNYG”) Class A Comma
Stock of record on June 16, 2011 received one sba®®MC Networks Class A Common Stock for every fahares of CNYG Class
Common Stock held on the record date, which redufiethe issuance of approximately 57,813,80@res of Class A Common Stock. E
record holder of CNYG Class B Common Stock receivee share of AMC Networks Class B Common Stockefary fourshares of CNY!
Class B Common Stock held on the record date, wigishlted in the issuance of approximately 13,533ghares of Class B Common Stc
Immediately prior to the Distribution, the Compamas an indirect whollypwned subsidiary of Cablevision. Both Cablevisiord s&AMC
Networks continue to be controlled by Charles FlaRp certain members of his immediate family andtade family related entitie
(collectively the “Dolan Family”).

As part of the Distribution, the Company incurre?, 425,000 of debt (the “Distribution Debt”), consig of $1,725,000aggregat
principal amount of senior secured term loans af@®00aggregate principal amount of senior unsecuredsn@ee Note 6). Approximate
$1,063,000 of the proceeds of the Distribution Deas used to repay all peistribution outstanding Company debt (excludingita leases
including principal and accrued and unpaid inteteghe date of repayment, and, as partial consiaber for Cablevisiors contribution of th
membership interests in RMH to the Company, $1@8D,, net of discount, of Distribution Debt wasuisd to CSC Holdings, LLC CSC
Holdings”), a whollyewned subsidiary of Cablevision, which is refleckesi a deemed capital distribution in the consddidattatement
stockholdersdeficiency for the year ended December 31, 201 @8ldings used such Distribution Debt to satisfig alischarge outstandi
CSC Holdings debt, which ultimately resulted intsiistribution Debt being held by third party int@s.

Basis of Presentation
Principles of Consolidatio

The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants of AMC Networks and its whollywned subsidiaries. All intercompe
transactions and balances are eliminated in categadn.

The Companys consolidated financial statements for periodsrpo the Distribution have been derived from tlh@solidated financi
statements and accounting records of Cablevisidrreftect certain assumptions and allocations. fEselts of operations and cash flows of
Company for those periods could differ from thokat tmight have resulted had the Company been @ukaitonomously or as an er
independent of Cablevision. The Compangonsolidated financial statements after the Distion reflect certain revenues and expenseset
to transactions with or charges from Cablevisiod &he Madison Square Garden Company and its sabisigi(“MSG”")as described in Nc
14,






AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Use of Estimates

These consolidated financial statements have bespaped in accordance with U.S. generally acceptedunting principles (“GAAB
The preparation of financial statements in conftymwith GAAP requires management to make estimata$ assumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andakisce of contingent liabilities at the date of firencial statements and the reported amc
of revenues and expenses during the reported petical results could differ from those estimat8gnificant estimates and judgme
inherent in the preparation of the consolidatedriirial statements include the determination omate revenues as it relates to accountin
amortization and assessing recoverability of owoeginal programming costs, valuation and recoviditgtof long-lived assets, income ta
and contingencies and litigation matters.

Reclassification:

Certain reclassifications have been made to thd 20 2010 amounts to conform to the 2012 presenta$pecifically, the preps
portion of program rights of $53,6®reviously included in "prepaid expenses and otherent assets" has been reclassified to "progigints
net" within current assets in the consolidated fi@dasheet at December 31, 2011. Similar reclaasifics were made from "prepaid expel
and other assets" to "program rights and obligatioret” of $27,491 and $13,426 in the consolidatatements of cash flows for the ye
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Discontinued Operation

On December 31, 2010, RMH transferred its membprshierests in News 12 (regional news programmiegvises), Rainbo
Advertising Sales Corporation (a cable televisialveatising company) and certain other businessesvhiolly-owned subsidiaries
Cablevision in contemplation of the Distributionhel net assets distributed amounted to $41&7Y® were recorded as a deemed ce
distribution in the consolidated statement of stmillers’ equity at December 31, 2010. §ln or loss was recognized in connection with
distribution between entities under common conffble operating results of these transferred estitieough the date of the transfer have
presented in the consolidated statement of incosndiscontinued operations for the year ended DeeeBib 2010. Additionally, the r
operating results following the sale of our own@rsinterests in the Lifeskool and Sportskool videsdemand services in September
October 2008, respectively, which were recordedeure installment sales method, have been cledsifs discontinued operations for
periods presented.

Operating results of discontinued operations feryiars ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 20Hdiemarized below:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Revenues, net $ — % — 3 79,76¢
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 496 % 82z $ (63,31))
Income tax (expense) benefit (189 (730) 25,22:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, néhcdme taxes $ 314 % 922 3 (38,090

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidencesalea arrangement exists, delivery occurs or aeswvare rendered, the sales prir
fixed or determinable and collectability is readuljaassured. Revenue recognition for each sourdbeofCompanys revenue is based on
following policies:

Distribution

The Company recognizes revenue from distributasdhrry the Company’s programming services unddtityear contracts, commor
referred to as “affiliation agreementsThe programming services are delivered throughbetterms of the agreements and the Com
recognizes revenue as programming is provided. mRevérom the licensing of original programming fitigital and foreign distribution
recognized upon availability for distribution byetHicensee. Revenue from video-on-demand and sirpidg-perview arrangements
recognized as programming is exhibited based orcastbmer purchases as reported by the distributor.






AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Advertising

Advertising revenues are recognized when commereid aired. In certain advertising sales arrang&néhe Compang’ programmin
businesses guarantee specified viewer ratingh®&r programming. For these types of transactiarmrtion of such revenue is deferred if
guaranteed viewer ratings are not met and is sulesgly recognized either when the Company provittesrequired additional advertis
time, the guarantee obligation contractually expoeperformance requirements become remote.

Other Revenue
Revenue derived from other sources is recognizeshvdelivery occurs or the services are rendered.
Multiple-Element Transactions

For multipledeliverable revenue arrangements, the Company theesrelative selling price method to allocate theamsgemer
consideration. Under the relative selling price moet the Company determines its best estimatellzig@rice in a manner consistent with t
used to determine the price to sell the deliverallex stand-alone basis. For multiplement deliverable arrangements that include ai&
other than revenue, if there is objective and bidizevidence of fair value for all elements of aguing, the arrangement consideratio
allocated to the separate elements of accountisgdban relative fair values. There may be caseshich there is objective and relia
evidence of fair value of undelivered items in araagement but no such evidence for the delivelsdd. In those cases, the total fair valt
the undelivered elements, as indicated by vesgecific objective evidence, is deferred and theaiader of the arrangement consideratic
allocated to the delivered elements.

Technical and Operating Expenses

Costs of revenues, including but not limited togresnming expense, primarily consisting of amort@atnd impairments or writeffs
of programming rights, such as those for originagoamming, feature films and licensed series,igp#tion and residual costs, distribut
and production related costs and program operatists, such as origination, transmission, uplinlind encryption, are classified as techi
and operating expenses in the consolidated statsroéimcome.

Advertising and Distribution Expenses

Advertising costs are charged to expense when reduand are recorded to selling, general and adirdétive expenses in t
consolidated statements of income. Advertisingogre $154,371 , $105,068 and $92,184 for thesyeradied December 31, 2012 , 20&hc
2010, respectively. Marketing, distribution and genexatl administrative costs related to the explaitatif owned original programming
expensed as incurred and are recorded to sellangrgl and administrative expenses in the congetidstatements of income.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company measures the cost of employee semgcessed in exchange for an award of eqibiggged instruments based on the ¢
date fair value of the portion of awards that dtenately expected to vest. The cost is recognireglarnings over the period during whict
employee is required to provide service in exchafiogeghe award using a straiglihe amortization method, except for restrictedcktanits
granted to non-employee directors which vest 100&hd are expensed, at the date of grant. For sippkeciation rights (“SARs”)the
Company recognizes expense based on the estinzte@liie at each reporting period using the Bl&ckoles valuation model.

For periods prior to the Distribution date, Cabswn charged the Company its proportionate sharexpénses or benefits relatec
Cablevision’s employee stock plans and Cablevisidohg-term incentive plans (see Note 14). Stesed compensation expense is incl
in selling, general and administrative expenseaheénconsolidated statements of income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Companys cash investments are placed with money marketsfamd financial institutions that are investmeradg as rated |
Standard & Poor’'s and Moody'Investors Service. The Company selects moneyeahéukds that predominantly invest in marketablesa
obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. gomemt or its agencies, commercial paper, fully ¢etalized repurchase agreeme
certificates of deposit, and time deposits.

The Company considers the balance of its investrimefitnds that substantially hold securities thattume within three months or ¢
from the date the fund purchases these securitibs tash equivalents. The carrying amount of eashcash equivalents either approxim
fair value due to the short-term maturity of thestruments or are at fair value.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Accounts Receivable, Trade

The Company periodically assesses the adequacyalofition allowances for uncollectible accounts nedgle by evaluating tt
collectability of outstanding receivables and gehéactors such as length of time individual reebies are past due, historical collec
experience, and the economic and competitive enriemt. As of December 31, 2012, the Company hag@88bf accounts receivable due
excess of one-year, which are included in othestasa the consolidated balance sheet.

Program Rights

Rights to programming, including feature films apsodic series, acquired under license agreermeatstated at the lower of amorti
cost or net realizable value. Such licensed righing with the related obligations are recordethatcontract value when a license agreem
executed, unless there is uncertainty with respeotither cost, acceptability or availability. lich uncertainty exists, those rights
obligations are recorded at the earlier of whenuheertainty is resolved or the license period h&gCosts are amortized to technical
operating expense on a straight-line basis overiagnot to exceed the respective license periods.

The Companys owned original programming is primarily produdsdindependent production companies, with the radexi produce
by the Company. Owned original programming cosis|uiding estimated participation and residual cogtslifying for capitalization
program rights are amortized to technical and dpeyraxpense over their estimated useful lives, memcing upon the first airing, based
attributable revenue for airings to date as a peacge of total projected attributable revenue, limate revenue (film-forecastemputatiol
method). Projected attributable revenue is basedrewiously generated revenues for similar contenestablished markets, prima
consisting of distribution and advertising revenuesojected program usage is based on the histargzge of similar content. Estima
attributable revenue can change based upon prograjmmarket acceptance, levels of distribution addeatising revenue and program us
These calculations require management to make gégums and to apply judgment regarding revenue @adned usage. Accordingly, -
Company periodically reviews revenue estimatesadned usage and revises its assumptions if remgesshich could impact the timing
amortization expense or result in a write-downebnealizable value.

The Company periodically reviews the programmingfulsiess of its licensed and owned original prograghts based on a series
factors, including expected future revenue genamgtiom airings on the Company's networks and ogixetoitation opportunities, ratings, ty
and quality of program material, standards andtjmes, and fithess for exhibition through varioosnfis of distribution. If it is determined tl
film or other program rights have no future prognaimgy usefulness based on actual demand or markeditmms, a writesff of the
unamortized cost is recorded in technical and dpgy@xpense. See Note 3 for further discussioandigg program rights write-offs.

Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Assets

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Equipmeder capital leases is recorded at the prasdue of the total minimum lea
payments. Depreciation is calculated on a strdigktbasis over the estimated useful lives of theets or, with respect to equipment ui
capital leases and leasehold improvements, amdrtzer the shorter of the lease term or the asaseful lives and reported in deprecia
and amortization in the consolidated statemenisaame.

Intangible assets established in connection wisinass acquisitions primarily consist of affiliatiagreements and affiliate relationsk
advertiser relationships, trademarks and goodwithortizable intangible assets are amortized onraigittline basis over their respect
estimated useful lives. Goodwill and identifialiaingible assets that have indefinite useful lss@snot amortized.

Impairment of Lon-Lived and Indefinite Lived Assets

The Company’s long-lived and indefinite-lived assat December 31, 2012 include property and equipmet of $70,890 amortizabl
intangible assets, net of $221,283 , identifiabigefinite-lived intangible assets, which consistSaindance Channel trademarks of $19,90(
and goodwill of $79,305 . These assets accounteapforoximately 15% of the Company’s consolidatgdltassets as of December 31, 2012 .

The Company reviews its lorfiyed assets (property and equipment, and intaagéssets subject to amortization that arose
acquisitions) for impairment whenever events ocuinstances indicate that the carrying amount aisset may not be recoverable. If the
of the expected cash flows, undiscounted and withtdarest, is less than the carrying amount ofabset, an impairment loss is recognize
the amount by which the carrying amount of the esseeeds its fair value.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets s&sted annually for impairment during the firsager (“annual impairment test da}e”
and upon the occurrence of certain events or sotdgtachanges in circumstances.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Deferred Carriage Fees

Deferred carriage fees represent amounts pringifelld or payable to multichannel video distribstéo obtain additional subscrib
and/or guarantee carriage of certain programmingices and are amortized as a reduction of revewee the period of the related guara
arrangement (up to 13 years).

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Companys derivative financial instruments are recordeeit®er assets or liabilities in the consolidatethbee sheet based on tl
fair values. The Company’embedded derivative financial instruments ararbteand closely related to the host contractsretioee, suc
derivative financial instruments are not accounfi@don a standdone basis. Changes in the fair values are rgpadntesarnings or oth
comprehensive income depending on the use of thieatige and whether it qualifies for hedge accanmt Derivative instruments &
designated and accounted for as either a hedgeesfognized asset or liability (fair value hedgepdedge of a forecasted transaction (
flow hedge). For derivatives not designated as éedghanges in fair values are recognized in egsnémd included in interest expense.
derivatives designated as effective cash flow hedgeanges in fair values are recognized in otbemprehensive income (loss). Changes ir
values related to fair value hedges as well asniiective portion of cash flow hedges are recmgdiin earnings. Changes in the fair valu
the underlying hedged item of a fair value hedgeadso recognized in earnings. See Note 8 fortadudiscussion of the Compasyderivativi
financial instruments.

Income Taxes

The Companys provision for income taxes is based on curreribdéncome, changes in deferred tax assets ahities and estimat:
with regard to the liability for unrecognized tagrefits resulting from uncertain tax positions. &efd tax assets are evaluated quarter!
expected future realization and reduced by a vi@oallowance to the extent management believissnitore likely than not that a portion v
not be realized. The Company provides deferredstéoethe outside basis difference for its investtrie partnerships. Interest and penaltie
any, associated with uncertain tax positions atkided in income tax expense.

Commitments and Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising fromiots, assessments, litigation, fines and penaltielsather sources are recorded when
probable that a liability has been incurred andatm@unt of the contingency can be reasonably esgina

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to a concentration of credit risk consignhprily of cash and cash equivale
and trade accounts receivable. Cash is investetbimrey market funds and bank time deposits. The @oammonitors the financial institutic
and money market funds where it invests its cashaash equivalents with diversification among ceyparties to mitigate exposure to
single financial institution. The Compasyémphasis is primarily on safety of principal #igdidity and secondarily on maximizing the yield
its investments.

Net Income per Share

The consolidated statements of income present lzaicdiluted net income per share (“EP®asic EPS is based upon net inci
divided by the weightedverage number of common shares outstanding dtimmgeriod. Diluted EPS reflects the dilutive effeof AMC
Networks stock options (including those held byediors and employees of related parties of the @oyjpand AMC Networks restrict
shares/units (including those held by employeeglated parties of the Company).

The following is a reconciliation between basic aiiidted weighted average shares outstanding:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 70,374,00 69,283,00 69,161,00
Effect of dilution:
Stock options 783,00( 510,00( —
Restricted shares/units 1,079,00! 938,00( —

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 72,236,00 70,731,00 69,161,00
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , approxiyn&@r restricted shares/units have been excluded frootedil weighted avera
common shares outstanding since they would have det-dilutive.

The number of shares used to compute basic antedilEPS for the year ended December 31, 2010 afrippately 69,161,000
represents the number of shares of AMC Networksnsomstock issued to Cablevision shareholders orDik&ibution date, and excluc
unvested outstanding restricted shares, baseddistrébution ratio of one share of AMC Networks amon stock for every foushares ¢
Cablevision common stock outstanding. The dilutafeect of the Company’s shatesed awards that were issued in connection wi
adjustment or conversion of Cablevision’s shiaased awards upon the Distribution (including Cablen stock options and restricted st
awards granted prior to the Distribution) and sgos&it Company grants, are included in the commutadf diluted EPS in periods subseq
to the Distribution.

Common Stock of AMC Networks

Each holder of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock bae vote per share while holders of AMC NetwdCksss B Common Sto
have ten votes per share. AMC Networks Class Beshaan be converted to AMC Networks Class A Comi8totk at anytime with
conversion ratio of one AMC Networks Class A comnstiare for one AMC Networks Class B common shahne. AMC Networks Class
stockholders are entitled to elect 25% of the CamfsaBoard of Directors. AMC Networks Class B stocklevs have the right to elect
remaining members of the CompasBoard of Directors. In addition, AMC Networks €$aB stockholders are parties to an agreement
has the effect of causing the voting power of thelgkC Networks Class B stockholders to be cast bwek.

Shares Outstanding

Class A Class B

Common Stock Common Stock
Balance at June 30, 2011 (date of Distribution) 57,813,26 13,534,40
Employee and non-employee director stock transagtio 621,43 —
Balance at December 31, 2011 58,434,70 13,534,40
Conversion of Class B common stock to Class A comsiock 1,750,00! (1,750,001
Employee and non-employee director stock transagtio 406,32t —
Balance at December 31, 2012 60,591,03 11,784,40

*Primarily includes issuances of common stock imreection with employee stock option exercises agtricted shares/units grantec
employees, partially offset by shares acquired ey @ompany in connection with the fulfillment of ployees’statutory tax withholdin
obligations for applicable income and other emplegirtaxes and forfeited employee restricted shares.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2012, the Financial Accounting StandaBdsird (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Updé#SU”) No. 201207,
Accounting for Fair Value Information That Arisees the Measurement Date and Its Inclusion inlthpairment Analysis of Unamortiz
Film Costs (ASU 2012-07), which eliminates the rddoie presumption that the conditions leadinghi® writeoff of unamortized film cos
after the balance sheet date existed as of thadmkheet date. ASU 20027-also eliminates the requirement that an entitpiiporate into fa
value measurements used in the impairment tesisftbets of any changes in estimates resulting fiteenconsideration of subsequent evids
if the information would not have been considergdrarket participants at the measurement date. 281207 does not change an enti
responsibility to analyze and consider any relewatisequent events and information to assess whbthdair value measurement reflect:
relevant information and assumptions that marketigypants would have considered under the curcentitions at the measurement date.
Company adopted ASU 201 effective December 31, 2012. The adoption of thithoritative guidance did not have any impacthe
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011ixi8ngibles -Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Goodwill fimpairmen
(ASU 2011-08), which allows entities to use a cpasilte approach to test goodwill for impairment. A201108 permits an entity to fir
perform a qualitative assessment to determine vehnéthis more likely than not that the fair valukaoreporting unit is less than its carry
value. If it is concluded that this is the caseés ihecessary to perform the prescribed two-steplgdl impairment test. Otherwise, the tvetef
goodwill impairment test is not required. The Compadopted ASU 2011-08 effective January 1, 201Rapplied it to the Comparg’annue
impairment test as of the end of February 2012.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2@El-Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): PresentaifoBomprehensive Income (A
2011-05). The provisions of ASU 20DE provide that an entity that reports items ofeotbomprehensive income has the option to pr



comprehensive income as (i) a single statemenptiesents the components of net income and total ne
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income, the components of other comprehensive iecand total other comprehensive income and afatalomprehensive income or (ii) it
two-statement approach, whereby an entity must prédbentomponents of net income and total net incomthe first statement and t
statement is immediately followed by a financiatsiment that presents the components of other edrmapsive income, a total for ot
comprehensive income and a total for comprehenigsivgeme. The previous option under GAAP that pewditthe presentation of ofl
comprehensive income in the statement of stockngldguity has been eliminated. In December 2044 ,RASB issued ASU No. 20112,
Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments te tAresentation of Reclassification of Items OutAotumulated Other Comprehens
Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-ASU 2011-12). ASU 2011-12 defers the requiremenABlU 201105 to presel
reclassification adjustments for each componerdaaumulated other comprehensive income (“AO@"poth other comprehensive inca
and net income on the face of the financial statesy@nd the presentation of reclassification adjasts is not required in interim periods.
Company adopted ASU 2011-05 and ASU 2011-12 effecianuary 1, 2012 and presents comprehensive eeming the twatatemer
approach.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2004 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmeémtdchieve Common Fair Vali
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in GAAPIBR&s (ASU 2011-04). ASU 20104 provides amendments to Topic 820 that ch
the wording used to describe many of the requiresnén GAAP for measuring fair value and for disatgsinformation about fair valt
measurements. The Company adopted ASU IRl gffective January 1, 2012. The adoption of #uthoritative guidance did not have
impact on the Company’s consolidated financialestegnts.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reportind\mfounts Reclassified Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (ASU 201)3-UBe amendments in ASU 2002- do not change the current requirement
reporting net income or other comprehensive incomancial statements. However, ASU 2003+equires an entity to provide informai
about the amounts reclassified out of accumulatiedra@omprehensive income by component. In addiiorentity is required to present, ei
on the face of the statement where net income ésemted or in the notes, significant amounts reifled out of accumulated ott
comprehensive income by the respective line itehmebincome but only if the amount reclassifiedgquired under GAAP to be reclassifier
net income in its entirety in the same reportingqeke For other amounts that are not required u@kAP to be reclassified in their entirety
net income, an entity is required to crosference to other disclosures required under G#&aP provide additional detail about those amo
ASU 201302 is effective in the first quarter of 2013 andhit expected to have a material effect on the Gmyg consolidated financ
statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02, ngihles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): TestimgéfiniteLived Intangible
Assets for Impairment (ASU 2012-02), to allow dastto use a qualitative approach to test indefiiied intangible assets for impairme
ASU 201202 permits an entity to first perform a qualitatimesessment to determine whether the existencearite and circumstanc
indicates that it is more likely than not that ihdefinitedived intangible asset is impaired. If it is coradal that this is the case, an entil
required to determine the fair value of the indiéditived intangible asset and perform the quantitatimpairment test by comparing the
value with the carrying amount in accordance withbtSpic 35030. Otherwise, the quantitative impairment tesinet required. Th
authoritative guidance will be effective for the @manys 2013 annual impairment test and earlier adopgtguermitted. The Company w
evaluate performing a qualitative assessment 13201

Note 3. Program Rights and Obligations
Program Rights

Owned original program rights, net of $80,826 at®waber 31, 2012 is included as a component of teng-program rights, net in t
consolidated balance sheet. The Company estimbatsapproximately 94%of unamortized owned original programming costs, of
December 31, 2012 , will be amortized within thatrtbree years. The Company expects to amortize284®f unamortized owned origir

programming costs, during the next twelve monthegfam rights write-offs of $9,990 , $18,332 an¢g2®2were recorded for the years en
December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.
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Program Rights Obligation

Amounts payable subsequent to December 31, Bflaged to program rights obligations includedhia tonsolidated balance sheet ai
follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2013 $ 157,58«
2014 141,27t
2015 126,13:
2016 82,37¢
2017 25,33¢
Thereafter 15,58¢

$ 548,29¢

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment (including equipment undgital leases) consists of the following:

December 31,

Estimated
2012 2011 Useful Lives
Program, service and test equipment $ 103,16¢ $ 92,08( 2 to 5 year
Satellite equipment 16,58( 15,53( 13 year:
Furniture and fixtures 15,38¢ 14,28¢ 5to 8 year
Transmission equipment 37,51¢ 34,44 5 year:
Leasehold improvements 45,32 40,22: Term of leas
217,97: 196,55¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (147,089 (132,745
$ 70,89( $ 63,81«

During 2012, the Company retired $6,332 of fullpriated assets that were no longer in use.

Depreciation and amortization expense on propertyegjuipment (including capital leases) amounte®2@®891 , $20,739 and $19,805
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 22021 and 2010 .

At December 31, 2012 and 201the gross amount of equipment and related acatetibmortization recorded under capital leases
as follows:

December 31,

2012 2011
Satellite equipment $ 16,58( $ 15,53(
Less accumulated amortization (7,479 (6,227
$ 9,10¢ $ 9,30¢
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Note 5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of goodwill, by reporting uaitd reportable segment is as follows:

Reporting Unit and Segment

AMC

WE tv

IFC

Sundance Channel
Total National Networks

AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology
Total International and Other

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

$ 34,25 $ 34,25
5,21¢ 5,21«

13,58: 13,58:

25,06: 28,93(

78,10¢ 81,97"

1,19¢ 1,19¢

1,19¢ 1,19¢

$ 79,30¢ $ 83,17:

The reduction of $3,86& the carrying amount of goodwill for Sundance @i is due to the realization of a tax benefit fioe
amortization of "second component" goodwill. Secanchponent goodwill is the amount of tax deductidpd@dwill in excess of goodwill fi
financial reporting purposes. In accordance with @luthoritative guidance at the time of the SundaBbannel acquisition, the tax bene
associated with this excess are applied to fidtice the amount of goodwill, and then other inthlggassets for financial reporting purpose
and when such tax benefits are realized in the @Goiylp tax returns.

There were no accumulated impairment losses retatgdodwill for any periods as of December 31,201

The following table summarizes information relatbloghe Company’s identifiable intangible assets:

Amortizable intangible assets:
Affiliation agreements and affiliate relationships
Advertiser relationships
Other amortizable intangible assets
Total amortizable intangible assets
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks
Total intangible assets

Amortizable intangible assets:
Affiliation agreements and affiliate relationships
Advertiser relationships
Other amortizable intangible assets
Total amortizable intangible assets
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks
Total intangible assets

December 31, 2012

Accumulated Estimated
Gross Amortization Net Useful Lives
$ 840,75 $ (623,62) $ 217,13t 10 to 25 years
74,24¢ (70,226 4,02: 10 years
644 (519 12t 4 to 10 years
915,64 (694,36¢) 221,28
19,90( — 19,90(
$ 935,54¢ % (694,360 $ 241,18:
December 31, 2011
Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net
$ 911,35 % (637,399 $ 273,96
103,72: (92,166€) 11,557
644 (397 252
1,015,72. (729,95) 285,77
19,90( — 19,90(
$ 1,035,62. % (729,95) $ 305,67

During 2012 , the Company retired $70,600 and $29.df fully amortized affiliation agreements and adigmr relationship

respectively.
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Aggregate amortization expense for amortizablenigitale assets for the years ended December 31, 20124 and 2010 was $64,489
$79,109 and $86,650respectively. Estimated future aggregate amdiimeexpense for existing intangible assets sulipemortization fc
each of the next five years is as follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2013 $ 31,63:
2014 9,75¢
2015 9,74¢
2016 9,74¢
2017 9,74¢

Impairment of Goodwill and Indefin-Lived Intangible Assets

In accordance with the accounting guidance adoptedanuary 1, 2012, the annual goodwill impairmest allows for the option to fii
assess qualitative factors to determine whethismitore likely than not that the fair value of @@ging unit is less than its carrying amount.
entity may choose to perform the qualitative assess on none, some or all of its reporting unitsanrentity may bypass the qualita
assessment for any reporting unit and proceed tiiréx step one of the quantitative impairment .téktit is determined, on the basis
qualitative factors, that the fair value of a repay unit is, more likely than not, less than itarying value, the quantitative impairment te:
required. The quantitative impairment test is a-st&p process. The first step compares the cargingunt of a reporting unit, includi
goodwill, with its fair value utilizing an entergevalue based approach. If the carrying amount afpmnting unit exceeds its fair value,
second step of the goodwill impairment test is ganed to measure the amount of the goodwill impairrioss, if any. The second ¢
compares the implied fair value of the reportingt'sngoodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwif the carrying amount of ti
reporting units goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of thabdwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an anteequal to that excess. 1
implied fair value of goodwill is determined in teame manner as the amount of goodwill that woaldelsognized in a business combination.

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill andeifinitedived intangible assets, the Company must makengsons regarding estimat
future cash flows and other factors to determimef#tir value of the respective assets. These esiand assumptions could have a signif
impact on whether an impairment charge is recogh@® also the magnitude of any such charge. Bhirevestimates are made at a spe
point in time, based on relevant information. Theséimates are subjective in nature and involveettatities and matters of signific
judgments and therefore cannot be determined wehigion. Changes in assumptions could signifigaatiect the estimates. Estimates of
value are primarily determined using discountechdémnvs and comparable market transactions. Thasgations are based on estimates
assumptions including projected future cash flodiscount rate and determination of appropriate etadomparables and determinatior
whether a premium or discount should be appliecdmparables. These valuations also include assangpfior renewals of affiliatic
agreements, the projected number of subscriberghangrojected average rates per basic and vieauhgcribers and growth in fixed pr
contractual arrangements used to determine aifiliafiee revenue, access to program rights and dke af such program rights, amoun
programming time that is advertiser supported, remab advertising spots available and the sellublorates for those spots, average fe:
advertising spot and operating margins, among aikeumptions. If these estimates or material mtlatsumptions change in the future,
Company may be required to record impairment clsarglated to our long-lived assets.

The impairment test for identifiable indefiniiged intangible assets consists of a comparisamefestimated fair value of the intang
asset with its carrying value. If the carrying \alexceeds its fair value, an impairment loss isgaized in an amount equal to that exc
Significant judgments inherent in a valuation imtgithe selection of appropriate discount and rgyaltes, estimating the amount and timin
estimated future cash flows and identification ppmpriate continuing growth rate assumptions. d@iseount rates used in the analysis
intended to reflect the risk inherent in the prtgelcfuture cash flows generated by the respeatitaamgible assets.
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Based on the Company’s annual impairment test dodgill and identifiable indefinitéived intangible assets as of the end of Febi
2012, nompairment charge was required for any of the répgmunits. The Company performed a qualitativeeassent for the AMC, WE 1
IFC and AMC Networks Broadcasting and Technologyoréng units, which included, but was not limiter] consideration of the historis
significant excesses of the estimated fair valueeafh reporting unit over its respective carryirgjue (including allocated goodwil
macroeconomic conditions, industry and market asrsitions, cost factors and historical and progectesh flows. The Company performe
guantitative assessment for the Sundance Charputirey unit. Based on the quantitative assessnifahg fair value of the Sundance Chat
reporting unit decreased by 11% , the Company wbaldequired to perform step-two of the quantim&gsessment.

The Company’s indefinite-lived trademark intangillesets relate to Sundance Channel trademarkshwigoe valued using a relief-
from-royalty method in which the expected benefits adeied by discounting estimated royalty revenue gvejected revenues covered by
trademarks. In order to evaluate the sensitivitjheffair value calculations for the Company’s iifgble indefinitelived intangible assets, t
Company applied a hypothetical 20% decrease tedtimated fair value of the identifiable indefiniiged intangible assets. This hypothet
decrease in estimated fair value would not resugtn impairment.

Note 6. Debt

Long-term debt consists of:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Senior Secured Credit Facility:

Term loan A facility $ 880,00( $ 1,030,001

Term loan B facility — 592,02!
Senior Notes:

7.75% Notes due July 2021 700,00( 700,00

4.75% Notes due December 2022 600,00( —
Total long-term debt 2,180,00! 2,322,02
Unamortized discount (26,685 (30,74Y
Long-term debt, net 2,153,31! 2,291,28
Current portion of long-term debt — 5,95(
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt $ 2,153,31! $ 2,285,33

Senior Secured Credit Facility

On June 30, 2011 (the “Closing DateAMC Networks, as Borrower, and substantially allitsf subsidiaries, as restricted subsidia
entered into a credit agreement. Under the termsuoh credit agreement, AMC Networks was providéith wenior secured credit faciliti
consisting of a $1,130,000 term loan A faciliy$%05,000 term loan B facility and a $500,36800lving credit facility (collectively, the "Crei
Facility"). The term loan A facility and the terman B facility were discounted $5,650 and $12,988&spectively, upon original issuance.
revolving credit facility matures on June 30, 2C4@& the term loan A facility matures June 30, 2000n the Closing Date, approximat
$577,0000f the Credit Facility debt was issued to CSC Huldi as partial consideration for the transfer to @\Metworks of the RMI
businesses on June 6, 2011 in connection with theiflution of AMC Networks from Cablevision, whietias consummated on June 30, 2
The issuance of debt to CSC Holdings is refleced deemed capital distribution in the consolidatatement of stockholderdgficiency fo
the year ended December 31, 2011. CSC Holdingsaisgddebt to satisfy and discharge outstanding B&l@ings debt.

On December 17, 2012, AMC Networks issued $600j00fygregate principal amount of its 4.75% Note= (selow) and used the
proceeds of the offering to repay the outstandimgunt under the term loan B facility.

The revolving credit facility was not drawn upon tire Closing Date and remains undrawn at DecentheP@12. Total undraw
revolver commitments are available to be drawrofargeneral corporate purposes.

In connection with the Credit Facility, AMC Netwarkncurred deferred financing costs of $26,30fich are being amortized to intel
expense, utilizing the effective interest methogerahe term of each respective component of tlegliCFacility.
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Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interasa floating rate, which at the option of AMC Netks may be either (a) a base
plus an additional rate ranging from 0.50% to 1.2%%r annum (determined based on a cash flow ratiofb) a Eurodollar rate plus
additional rate ranging from 1.50% to 2.258€r annum (determined based on a cash flow raidpecember 31, 2012, the interest rate ol
term loan A facility was 1.96% , reflecting a Euodldr rate plus the additional rate as describedihe

All obligations under the Credit Facility are guateed jointly and severally by substantially allAIC Networks’ existing and futut
domestic restricted subsidiaries as primary obfigoraccordance with the Credit Facility. All oldigpns under the Credit Facility, including
guarantees of those obligations, are secured Istantially all of the assets of AMC Networks andgé subsidiaries.

Borrowings under the term loan A facility and tlevalving credit facility may be voluntarily prepaidthout premiums and penalty
any time (see below for a discussion of voluntargppyments of the term loan A facility). The CreBdcility also provides for vario
mandatory prepayments, including with the procdeat® certain dispositions of property and borroveinghe term loan A facility is requir
to be repaid in quarterly installments of $14,125nf September 30, 2012 through June 30, 2013, $@&&ginning September 30, 2(
through June 30, 2014, $42,375 beginning SepteBMmeR014 through June 30, 2015, $56,98¢pinning September 30, 2015 thro
March 31, 2017 and $395,5@» June 30, 2017, the term loan A facility matudite. Any amounts outstanding under the revoliregli
facility are due at maturity on June 30, 2016.

The Credit Facility requires AMC Networks to pag@nmitment fee of between 0.25% and 0.5@%termined based on the Cash F
Ratio, defined below) in respect of the averagéydaiused commitments under the revolving creditlity. AMC Networks is also required
pay customary letter of credit fees, as well astimy fees, to banks that issue letters of credgispant to the Credit Facility.

The Company may request an increase in the termAdacility and/or the revolving credit facilityyban aggregate amount not excee
the greater of $400,000 and an amount, which afténg effect to such increase, would not causesteior secureteverage ratio of tt
Company to exceed 4.75 :1. As of December 31, 282 Company does not have any commitments fan@amental facility.

The Credit Facility contains certain affirmativedanegative covenants and also requires AMC Netwtrksomply with the followin
financial covenants: (i) a maximum ratio of net tiebannual operating cash flow, each as defindtlenCredit Facility (“Cash Flow Ratiotf
(a) 6.50 :1 at December 31, 2012 and decreasig0®:1 for the period beginning January 1, 2013 andren®ecember 31, 2014 and
5.50:1 thereafter and (ii) a minimum ratio of annuakmying cash flow to annual total interest expemsedefined in the Credit Facil
(“Interest Coverage Ratio”) of (a) 2.50 :1 througbcember 31, 2013 and (b) 2.75 :1 thereatfter.

AMC Networks was in compliance with all financiawenants under the Credit Facility as of Decemiie£812 .

From inception through December 31, 2012 , the Gomvoluntarily prepaid $250,0@8 the outstanding balance under the term lo
facility ( $150,0000f which was paid in 2012), which was applied te #arliest required quarterly installments due.aAgesult, as ¢
December 31, 2012, the next required quarterlyailment will be due on December 31, 2014 in the amoof $4,250with quarterh
installments due under the term loan A facility sedpuent to December 31, 2014 remaining unchandesl Cbmpany recorded a writéf of
deferred financing costs of $964 and $%%$ociated with the voluntary prepayments that weade in 2012 and 2011, respectively, in
consolidated statements of income.

7.75% Senior Notes due 2021

On June 30, 2011, AMC Networks issued $700,000ggregate principal amount of its 7.758énior notes, net of an original is
discount of $14,000 , due July 15, 2021 (the “7.788tes”)to CSC Holdings, as partial consideration for tlamsfer to AMC Networks of ti
RMH businesses on June 6, 2011, which is refleated deemed capital distribution in the consoldiatatement of stockholderdéficiency
for the year ended December 31, 2011. CSC Holdusgsl the Company’'7.75% Notes to satisfy and discharge outstan@i®&g Holding
debt. The recipients of the 7.75% Notes or thditiaks then offered the 7.75% Notes to investtiispugh an offering memorandum de
June 22, 2011, which ultimately resulted in the&s%MNotes being held by third party investors.

The 7.75% Notes were issued under an indenturel éatef June 30, 2011 (the “7.75% Notes Indenture”)

In connection with the issuance of the 7.75% Nof&C Networks incurred deferred financing costs$df,533, which are bein
amortized, using the effective interest methodnterest expense over the term of the 7.75% Notes.

Interest on the 7.75% Notes accrues at the rafe7& per annum and is payable semiually in arrears on January 15 and July :
each year.
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The 7.75% Notes may be redeemed, in whole or ity paany time on or after July 15, 2016 , at aeregtion price equal to 103.8756h
the principal amount thereof (plus accrued and ighipgerest thereon, if any, to the date of suaenaption), declining annually to 10086 the
principal amount thereof (plus accrued and unpaierést thereon, if any, to the date of such rediempbeginning on July 15, 2019 .

In addition, if AMC Networks experiences a Chan§€ontrol (as defined in the 7.75% Notes Indentutled holders of the 7.75% No
may require AMC Networks to repurchase for castoiall portion of their 7.75% Notes at a price eqad01%of the principal amount there
(plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if tmnthe date of such repurchase).

The 7.75% Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsebass by certain of AMC Network®xisting and future domestic restric
subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary Guarantorsiy),accordance with the 7.75% Notes Indenture. Tuerantees under the 7.75% Notes are ful
unconditional and joint and several.

AMC Networks is a holding company and has no indepat assets or operations of its own, the guazaniader the 7.75% Notes
full and unconditional and joint and several, angt aubsidiaries of AMC Networks other than the $dibsy Guarantors are minor. There
no restrictions on the ability of AMC Networks arnyeof the Subsidiary Guarantors to obtain fundsfits subsidiaries by dividend or loan.

The 7.75% Notes Indenture contains certain affiveatind negative covenants applicable to AMC Neksoand its Subsidia
Guarantors including restrictions on their abilidyincur additional indebtedness, consummate cedssets sales, make investments in er
that are not “Restricted Subsidiariesis(defined in the 7.75% Notes Indenture), creatnslion their assets, enter into certain affi
transactions and make certain restricted paymémtkjding restrictions on AMC Networksbility to pay dividends on, or repurchase
common stock.

AMC Networks entered into a registration rightsesgnent, dated as of June 30, 2011 (the “Registr&ights Agreement”)amon
AMC Networks, the Subsidiary Guarantors and thgahpurchasers of the 7.75% Notes, pursuant tewAMC Networks filed a registratis
statement with the SEC with respect to an offeexchange the 7.75% Notes for registered notes'ikehange Offer”)with terms identical i
all material respects to the 7.75% Notes except ttia registered notes do not contain terms thatvige for restrictions on transfer (
“Registered Notes"which was declared effective by the SEC on Jurg0T2. On July 10, 2012, the Exchange Offer was deimg and all ¢
AMC Networks’ original 7.75% Notes were exchangedRegistered Notes.

4.75% Senior Notes due 2022

On December 17, 2012, AMC Networks issued $600j608ggregate principal amount of its 4.75%nior notes, net of an issua
discount of $10,500 , due December 15, 2022 (th&5% Notes”).AMC Networks used the net proceeds of this offeringrepay th
outstanding amount under its term loan B facilityapproximately $587,600with the remaining proceeds used for generalarate purpose
In connection with this repayment, the Company réed a writeeff of the related unamortized deferred financirasts and a loss
extinguishment of debt of $898 and $10,77#spectively, in the consolidated statement obime for the year ended December 31,
Additionally, the Company recorded an unrealizesslof $8,72%n the related interest rate swap contracts prelyalesignated as cash fl
hedges of a portion of the term loan B facility ahhis included in interest expense in the constddlatatement of income for the year er
December 31, 2012.

The 4.75% Notes were issued pursuant to an indentated as of December 17, 2012 (the “Base Indefitaind together with the Fil
Supplemental Indenture, the “4.75% Notes Indenjure”

In connection with the issuance of the 4.75% Nof&dC Networks incurred deferred financing costs&df,393, which are bein
amortized, using the effective interest methodnterest expense over the term of the 4.75% Notes.

Interest on the 4.75% Notes accrues at the raer6P6 per annum and is payable semiually in arrears on June 15 and December
each year, commencing on June 15, 2013.

The 4.75% Notes may be redeemed, in whole or i parany time on or after December 15, 201at a redemption price equal
102.375%0f the principal amount thereof (plus accrued angaid interest thereon, if any, to the date of swdlemption), declining annua
to 100% of the principal amount thereof (plus accrued angaid interest thereon, if any, to the date of stethemption) beginning
December 15, 2020 .

In addition, if AMC Networks experiences a Chan§€ontrol (as defined in the 4.75% Notes Indentutled holders of the 4.75% No
may require AMC Networks to repurchase for castoiall portion of their 4.75% Notes at a price eqad01%of the principal amount there
(plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if tnthe date of such repurchase).

The 4.75% Notes are guaranteed on a senior unskbasis by the Subsidiary Guarantors in accordaiiitethe 4.75% Notes Indentu



The guarantees under the 4.75% Notes are full andndlitional and joint and several.
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AMC Networks is a holding company and has no indepat assets or operations of its own, the guazaniader the 4.75% Notes
full and unconditional and joint and several, angt aubsidiaries of AMC Networks other than the Sdibsy Guarantors are minor. There
no restrictions on the ability of AMC Networks arnyeof the Subsidiary Guarantors to obtain fundsfits subsidiaries by dividend or loan.

The 4.75% Notes Indenture contains certain affiveatind negative covenants applicable to AMC Neksoand its Subsidia
Guarantors including restrictions on their abilidyincur additional indebtedness, consummate cedssets sales, make investments in er
that are not “Restricted Subsidiariesis(defined in the 4.75% Notes Indenture), creatnslion their assets, enter into certain affi
transactions and make certain restricted paymémtkjding restrictions on AMC Networksbility to pay dividends on, or repurchase
common stock.

Summary of Debt Maturities

Total amounts payable by the Company under itouardebt obligations (excluding capital leases}taunding as obecember 31, 20:
are as follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2013 $ =
2014 4,25(
2015 197,75(
2016 226,00(
2017 452,00(
Thereafter 1,300,00

RNS Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes Reolgon
RNS Senior Notes

In April 2011, Rainbow National Services LLC (“RNS"a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the Company, issuedotice o
redemption to holders of its 8 3/4% senior notes 8aptember 2012. In connection therewith, on M&y2011 RNS redeemed 1008k the
outstanding senior notes at a redemption priceléqued0% of the principal amount of the notes 80&,000, plus accrued and unpaid inte
of $5,250 to the redemption date. In order to ftmelMay 13, 2011 redemption, the Company borrongD$00 under its $300,008volvinc
credit facility which existed prior to the Closifpte. The Company used cash on hand to fund thegrayof accrued and unpaid interes
$5,250 . In connection with the redemption, the @any recorded a writeff of the related unamortized deferred financingts and a loss
extinguishment of debt of $1,186 and $350 , respelgt in the consolidated statement of incometfar year ended December 31, 2011.

RNS Senior Subordinated Notes (tender prices petenia dollars)

On June 15, 2011, RNS announced that it commencedtatender offer (the “Tender Offer”) for allitsf outstanding $325,0Q8ygregat
principal amount 10 3/8% senior subordinated ndtes 2014 (the “RNS Senior Subordinated Notes”{dtal consideration of $1,039.5fI
$1,000 principal amount of notes tendered for paseh consisting of tender offer consideration g0$2.58 per $1,000rincipal amount ¢
notes plus an early tender premium of $10 per lp@idicipal amount of notes. The Tender Offer was enadconnection with the Distributi
of AMC Networks by Cablevision.

In connection with the Tender Offer, on June 3 R2&NS redeemed 100% of the outstanding $325:0@0egate principal amount
the RNS Senior Subordinated Notes. The Company psetkeds from borrowings under the Credit Facildyfund the redemption, a
payment of fees and accrued and unpaid intere$tLldfl46 . Tender premiums aggregating $12,86bng with accretion to the princi
amount and other transaction costs of $132de been recorded in loss on extinguishment of idethe consolidated statement of income
the year ended December 31, 2011. The related utiaet deferred financing costs aggregating appnekely $2,455vere written off an
recorded in write-off of deferred financing cosiglie consolidated statement of income for the gaded December 31, 2011.

RNS Credit Facility Repayment

Outstanding borrowings under the RNS term loanlifacand revolving credit facility were $425,000 ca$50,000, respectively, i
December 31, 2010. In connection with the Distiitnut RNS repaid amounts then outstanding unddRNS credit facility at June 30, 2011
$412,500 under its term A loan facility and $30@Qathder its revolving credit facility which aggreégd $713,785 including accrued ai
unpaid interest and fees to the repayment datered 30, 2011. The Company used proceeds from bimgswunder the Credit Facility to fu
the repayment. The related unamortized deferrexh@img costs aggregating approximately $2,062 weitten off and recorded in writeff of
deferred financing costs in the consolidated statdrof income for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Note 7. Fair Value Measurement

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to a@tun techniques that are used to measure fairevdlat are either observable
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect assumptitarket participants would use in pricing an asséiability based on market data obtai
from independent sources while unobservable ingilsct a reporting entitg' pricing based upon their own market assumptibhs.fair valus
hierarchy consists of the following three levels:

» Level I—Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets

e Level II—Quoted prices for similar instruments in active keds; quoted prices for identical or similar ingtents in markets that ¢
not active; and model-derived valuations whose tigpwe observable or whose significant value dsiege observable.

» Level lll—Instruments whose significant value drivers arebseovable

The following table presents for each of thesednity levels, the Comparg/financial assets and liabilities that are meabatefail
value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2012Daceémber 31, 2011 :

Level | Level Il Level llI Total

At December 31, 2012:
Assets:

Cash equivalent® $ 487,900 $ — 3 — $ 487,90(
Liabilities:

Interest rate swap contracts $ —  $ 22,137 $ — $ 22,13
At December 31, 2011:
Assets:

Cash equivalent® $ 202,27t $ — 3 — % 202,27t
Liabilities:

Interest rate swap contracts $ — 3 19,09. $ — 3 19,09:

(a) Represents the Compamynvestment in funds that invest primarily in mpmearket securitie

The Companys cash equivalents are classified within Level thef fair value hierarchy because they are valudguquoted mark
prices.

The Companyg interest rate swap contracts (discussed in Ntel@v) are classified within Level Il of the faialue hierarchy and ths

fair values are determined based on a market apipresluation technique that uses readily observataleket parameters and the consider:
of counterparty risk.
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Credit Facility Debt and Senior Notes

The fair values of each of the Compasgebt instruments are based on quoted marketspficethe same or similar issues or on
current rates offered to the Company for instrumefthe same remaining maturities.

The carrying values and estimated fair values ef@ompanys financial instruments, excluding those that aeied at fair value in tt
consolidated balance sheets are summarized awollo

December 31, 2012

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value
Debt instruments:
Senior Secured Credit Facility $ 876,35¢ $ 876,15:
Senior Notes 1,276,95 1,404,501
$ 2,153,31 $ 2,280,65

December 31, 2011

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value
Debt instruments:
Senior Secured Credit Facility $ 1,604,841 $ 1,550,96
Senior Notes 686,43: 761,25(
$ 2,291,228 $ 2,312,211

Fair value estimates related to the Compsardebt instruments presented above are made acé#isgoint in time, based on relev
market information and information about the finahdnstrument. These estimates are subjectiveaiture and involve uncertainties
matters of significant judgments and therefore oare determined with precision. Changes in assiomptcould significantly affect tl
estimates.

Note 8. Derivative Financial Instruments

To manage interest rate risk, the Company entécsiimerest rate swap contracts to adjust the amotitotal debt that is subject
variable interest rates. Such contracts effectifidythe borrowing rates on floating rate debt itmit the exposure against the risk of ris
interest rates. The Company does not enter in&rdnt rate swap contracts for speculative or ttagirposes and it has only entered
interest rate swap contracts with financial ingiitas that it believes are creditworthy counterigart The Company monitors the finan
institutions that are counterparties to its intemade swap contracts and to the extent possiblersifies its swap contracts among var
counterparties to mitigate exposure to any sinigignicial institution.

The Companys risk management objective and strategy with m@sfgeinterest rate swap contracts is to proteet@ompany agair
adverse fluctuations in interest rates by redudiagexposure to variability in cash flows relatitm interest payments on a portion of
outstanding debt. The Company is meeting its oljedby hedging the risk of changes in its cash #dimterest payments) attributable
changes in the LIBOR index rate, the designatedli®ark interest rate being hedged (the “hedged)risk an amount of the Compaisytieb
principal equal to the then-outstanding swap neatiofihe forecasted interest payments are deemieel poobable of occurring.

In July 2011, the Company entered into primarilyoatiming interest rate swap contracts to effecfiiet borrowing rates on a substan
portion of the Company’ floating rate debt. These contracts were destgnas cash flow hedges for accounting and tax gesp(see belov
The Company assesses, both at the hedgeéption and on an ongoing basis, hedge effantiss based on the overall changes in the faie
of the interest rate swap contracts. Hedge effeatgs of the interest rate swap contracts is basexd hypothetical derivative methodolc
Any ineffective portion of the interest rate swamtracts is recorded in current-period earnings.

As discussed in Note 6, in connection with the yepent of the term loan B facility, the Company netma an unrealized loss $8,72¢
related to the interest rate swap contracts prelyodesignated as cash flow hedges of a portiothefterm loan B facility which wi
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensbdss lto interest expense in the consolidated staewfeincome for the year enc
December 31, 201&s the related interest rate swap contracts nceetoggalified for hedge accounting. Future changeir values related
these interest rate swap contracts will be recaghia earnings and included in interest
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expense. The interest rate swap contracts outsiguttidging the Company's floating rate debt onténen loan A facility continues to
designated and qualifies as an effective intesgstswap cash flow hedge.

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company has inteagéstswap contracts outstanding with notional ant®aggregating $838,813The
Company’s outstanding interest rate swap conttzate varying maturities ranging from September 2015ly 2017 . At December 31, 2012
the Company’s interest rate swap contracts desigres cash flow hedges were highly effective, imatterial respects.

The fair values of the Company's derivative finahzistruments included in the consolidated balateet are as follows:

Liability Derivatives
Balance Sheet Location Fair Value

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate swap contracts Other liabilities $ 13,39¢ $ 19,09:
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate swap contracts Other liabilities 8,73¢ —
Total derivatives $ 22,137 $ 19,09:

The amount of the gains and losses related to thrap@ny's derivative financial instruments desigthae hedging instruments are
follows:

Amount of Loss Location of Loss Amount of Loss
Recognized in Other Reclassified from Reclassified from
Comprehensive Income Accumulated OCI Accumulated OCI
(“OCI”) on Derivatives into Earnings into Earnings
(Effective Portion) (Effective Portion) (Effective Portion)(a)
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Derivatives in cash flow hedging
relationships:
Interest rate swap contracts $ 12,660 23,71¢ Interest expens $ 18,35¢ $ 4,62¢

(&) There were ngains or losses recognized in earnings relatechyoirgeffective portion of the hedging relationship related to ar
amount excluded from the assessment of hedge igHaess for the years ended December 31, 2012 @i .2

The amount of the gains and losses related to mep@ny's derivative financial instruments not deatgd as hedging instruments ar
follows:

Location of Loss Recognized Amount of Loss Recognized in Earning
in Earnings on Derivatives on Derivatives

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011

Derivatives not designated as hedging relationships

Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens $ 14 $ —

Note 9. Leases

Operating Leases

Certain subsidiaries of the Company lease offi@epmnd equipment under long-term mamcelable operating lease agreements v
expire at various dates through 20Z0he leases generally provide for fixed annuataisnplus certain other costs or credits. Costeciate(
with such operating leases are recognized on @stdtne basis over the initial lease term. The diffexe between rent expense and rent pi

recorded as deferred rent. Rent expense for thes yemled December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 amotmt&t#,814 , $13,312 and $12,363
respectively.
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The future minimum annual payments for the Compayerating leases related to continuing operafjith initial or remaining terrr
in excess of one year) during the next five yessmfJanuary 1, 2013 through December 31, 20id thereafter, at rates now in force at
follows:

2013 $ 16,06
2014 16,16"
2015 16,33:
2016 16,28
2017 10,17:
Thereafter 12,13¢

Capital Leases

Future minimum capital lease payments as of DeceB®ihe2012 are as follows:

2013 $ 3,03¢
2014 3,03¢
2015 3,03¢
2016 3,03¢
2017 3,03¢
Thereafter 6,931
Total minimum lease payments 22,11

Less amount representing interest (at 9.3%-10.4%) (6,449
Present value of net minimum future capital lessgments 15,66:

Less principal portion of current installments (1,559
Long-term portion of obligations under capital lesis $ 14,10

Note 10. Income Taxes

Income tax expense attributable to continuing agama consists of the following components:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Current expense:
Federal $ 148,49* $ 2,33: $ —
State and foreign 18,83¢ 6,48¢ 4,36(
167,33: 8,82 4,36(
Deferred (benefit) expense:
Federal (77,360) 62,13: 62,07¢
State (11,159 7,02¢ 18,66¢
(88,519 69,16( 80,74«
Tax expense relating to uncertain tax positionduiiing accrued interest 7,241 6,26¢ 2,96¢
Income tax expense $ 86,05¢ $ 84,24¢ 3 88,07

Income tax expense attributable to discontinuedaijmns is classified as current income tax expdos¢he year ended December
2012 and deferred income tax expense for the yrated December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tate to the effective income tax rate is as fofio

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35% 35% 35%

State and local income taxes, net of federal benefi 2 4 5

Changes in the valuation allowance @ (0] 1

Change in the state rate used to measure defared, thet of federal benefit — — 1

Tax expense relating to uncertain tax positionduiging accrued interest, net of

deferred tax benefits 2 2 1

Other 1 — —
Effective income tax rate 39 % 4C % 43%

The tax effects of temporary differences that gige to significant components of deferred tax &see liabilities atDecember 31, 20:
and 2011 are as follows:

December 31,

2012 2011
Deferred Tax Asset (Liability)
Current
NOLs and tax credit carry forwards $ 687 $ 55,32:
Compensation and benefit plans 10,23( 7,328
Allowance for doubtful accounts 392 1,02¢
Deferred litigation settlement proceeds 114,21( —
Other liabilities 1 127
Deferred tax asset 125,52( 63,80:
Valuation allowance (4,117%) (4,529)
Net deferred tax asset, current 121,40: 59,27
Noncurrent
NOLs and tax credit carry forwards 25,62t 22,73
Compensation and benefit plans 13,76¢ 10,94
Fixed assets and intangible assets 7,48( 14,77:
Interest rate swap contracts 4,971 7,064
Other liabilities 7,531 4,37
Deferred tax asset 59,38 59,89:
Valuation allowance (1,949 (4,252
Net deferred tax asset, noncurrent 57,43¢ 55,64
Prepaid liabilities (66¢) —
Investments in partnerships (85,907 (107,549
Deferred tax liability, noncurrent (86,57%) (107,544
Net deferred tax liability, noncurrent (29,14) (51,909
Total net deferred tax asset $ 92,26: $ 7,361

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company recordedr@miutax liability and a deferred tax asset of 4210for the estimated 2012 tay
payable on the VOOM HD litigation settlement pradgeAlthough the allocation of such proceeds betvtbe Company and Cablevision \
not determined by December 31, 2Q1the income taxes payable by the Company on stmtepds for 2012 were estimated based upc
cash received by the Company during 2012 from setttement.
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At December 31, 2012 , the Company had foreignctaxlit carry forwards of approximately $18,008xpiring on various dates fro
2014 through 2022 . For the year ended DecenitheRB312, the utilization of the remaining federal net aarg loss carry forwar
(“NOLs") and alternative minimum tax credit cargrivards reduced current deferred income tax abget50,000 and $2,1Q0espectively
In addition, for the year ended December 31, 20&2cess tax benefits of $7,484 relating to shaised compensation awards ad#,43:
relating to amortization of tax deductible secandhponent goodwill were realized as a reductiotainliability (as determined on a 'with-and-
without' approach).

At December 31, 2012 , the liability for uncertéax positions was $16,721 , excluding the relatsdeed interest liability of $3,204nc
deferred tax assets of $7,044ll of such unrecognized tax benefits, if recagul, would reduce the Company's income tax expans
effective tax rate.

A reconciliation of the beginning to ending amouwftthe liability for uncertain tax positions (exding related accrued interest |
deferred tax benefit) is as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 10,46
Increases related to prior year tax positions 43
Increases related to current year tax positions 6,21:

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 16,72:

Interest expense (net of the related deferred égmetit) of $617 was recognized during the year dridecember 31, 2012nd is include
in income tax expense in the consolidated statemiemcome. At December 31, 2012 and 2Q1he liability for uncertain tax positions ¢
related accrued interest noted above are includethier liabilities in the consolidated balanceethe

Under the Company's Tax Disaffiliation AgreementhwCablevision, Cablevision is liable for all incentaxes of the Company
periods prior to the Distribution except for New rKaCity Unincorporated Business Tax. The City ofWN¥ork is currently auditing tt
Company's Unincorporated Business Tax Returnshfoyéars 2006 through 2008 .

We estimate that The American Taxpayer Rekadt of 2012, enactedon January 2, 2013will reduce the Company's current incc
tax liability and net deferred tax assfrom the amounts reported at December 31, 204 agproximately $28,000primarily as a result of tl
extension of the provision allowing a current taxidction for the costs of certain television prdaoturcs.

For periods prior to the Distribution, the Compantaxable income or loss was included in the catastad federal and certain state
local income tax returns of Cablevision. Consedyeiricome tax expense for such periods is basetti®mtaxable income of the Company «
separate tax return basis. The reductions in tpagable during such periods realized by the Complargugh the utilization of Cablevisian’
NOLs or by Cablevision through the utilization betCompan’s NOLs or credits are reflected as deemed camitatibutions or distribution
respectively, in the periods of utilization and adjusted for trueps in subsequent periods. Accordingly, deemedalagintributions, net
$36,867 and $52,824 were recorded in the conselidstatement of stockholdersleficiency) equity for the years ended December281,]
and 2010, respectively, to reflect the estimated_8lOf Cablevision used by the Company. In additideemed capital distributions, net
$2,942 and $2,586 were recorded in the consotidstetements of stockholdergeficiency) equity for the years ended Decembe2812 an
2011, respectively, to reflect trugs as of the Distribution date for utilization G&blevision's NOLs and for adjustments to lialgitifo
uncertain tax positions and net deferred tax assetsresult of the Distribution and the estimded York City Unincorporated Business ~
credits of the Company used by Cablevision, respedygt

As a result of the Distribution, the following adjments to the deferred tax assets and liabilitiese recorded as a deemed ca
distribution, net in the consolidated statementstfickholders’'deficiency for the year ended December 31, 20D1a @decrease in the |
deferred tax assets of $2,302 to reflect the lostendalone estimated applicable corporate tax ratesa @iecrease in the deferred tax asst
share-based awards of $7,292 to eliminate thequodf the deferred tax asset relating to sheased compensation expense attributak
Cablevision corporate employees that was alloctiegtie Company prior to the Distribution, and (@idecrease in the deferred tax ass
$1,314to reflect that certain compensation awards arlnger anticipated to be realized as a tax dedugtiosuant to Internal Revenue C
Section 162(m). In addition, as of the Distributidate, liabilities for uncertain tax positions @&6$409 , accrued interest of $1,284nd th
related deferred tax assets of $2,388e eliminated and recorded as a deemed capitdtilmation, net in the consolidated statemer
stockholders’ (deficiency) equity as the liabilftyr such uncertain tax positions became an obtigadf Cablevision.
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Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

The Company has purchase obligations which compsistarily of program rights obligations that havetryet met the criteria to
recorded in the balance sheet. Future purchasgabibins at December 31, 2012, are $188,612 in ZRB3819 in years 2014-2015 ab4], 59"
in years 2018017. The Company has guarantee commitments wluinhists primarily of a guarantee of payments taadyction servic
company for certain production related costs. Guees at December 31, 2012, are $71,483 in 2013Baridi5 in years 2012015. Th
Company has contract obligations which primarilpresents participation obligations and deferrediage fees payable to distributc
Contract obligations at December 31, 2012, are48%3in 2013; $22,780 in years 2014-2015 and $2i23@ars 2016-2017.

Legal Matters
DISH Network Contract Dispute

In 2005, subsidiaries of the Company entered igiee@ments with EchoStar Communications Corporadiod its affiliates by whic
EchoStar Media Holdings Corporation acquired a 268rest in VOOM HD and EchoStar Satellite LLC (fhreedecessor to DISH Netwo
agreed to distribute VOOM on DISH Network for a-y&ar term. The affiliation agreement with DISH Netw for such distribution providt
that if VOOM HD failed to spend $100,0@@r year (subject to reduction to the extent thatrtumber of offered channels was reduced to
than 21 ), up to a maximum of $500,000the aggregate, on VOOM, DISH Network could séekerminate the agreement under ce
circumstances. On January 30, 2008, DISH Networbqted to terminate the affiliation agreementgefive February 1, 2008, based o1
assertion that VOOM HD had failed to comply wittistspending provision in 2006. On January 31, 20B0OM HD sought and obtainec
temporary restraining order from the New York SupeeCourt for New York County prohibiting DISH Netrkofrom terminating th
affiliation agreement. In conjunction with its rexpt for a temporary restraining order, VOOM HD alequested a preliminary injunction
filed a lawsuit against DISH Network asserting tBaSH Network did not have the right to terminate &ffiliation agreement. In a decis
filed on May 5, 2008, the court denied VOOM HDotion for a preliminary injunction. On or abdday 13, 2008, DISH Network ceas
distribution of VOOM on its DISH Network. On May 22008, VOOM HD amended its complaint to seek daaagr DISH Networls
improper termination of the affiliation agreeme®n June 24, 2008, DISH Network answered VOOM s$iBimended complaint and asse
counterclaims alleging breach of contract and breafcthe duty of good faith and fair dealing withispect to the affiliation agreement.
July 14, 2008, VOOM HD replied to DISH Netwosktounterclaims. The Company believes that theteoclaims asserted by DISH Netw
are without merit. VOOM HD and DISH Network eacledi crossmotions for summary judgment. In November 2010, dbert denied bo
parties’ cross-motions for summary judgment buntgd VOOM HD’s motion for sanctions based on DISEWork’s spoliation of evident
as well as its motion to exclude DISH Network’sngipal damages expert. DISH Network appealed thater tworulings. On January 3
2012, the Appellate Division of the New York St&apreme Court issued a decision affirming (i) thal court’s finding of spoliation ar
imposition of the sanction of an adverse infereatérial; and (ii) the trial court’s decision toadnde DISH Networks damages expert. |
February 6, 2012, DISH Network filed a motion segkieave from the Appellate Division to appeal ¢tinder. On April 26, 2012, the Appelli
Division denied DISH Networls motion, thereby precluding any further appeathef trial court rulings. The stay of the pendinigltcour
proceedings was lifted on May 1, 2012. A trial befthe New York State Supreme Court began on Séyaie8, 2012.

On October 21, 2012, VOOM HD and CSC Holdings, L{_CSC Holdings"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Caldkion, entered into
confidential settlement agreement and release “@ettlement Agreement”with DISH Network, and for certain limited purposédSC
Holdings, L.P., The Madison Square Garden Comparty EBchoStar Corporation, to settle the litigatiostieen VOOM HD and DIS
Network. On October 24, 2012, VOOM HD and DISH Netkvfiled a stipulation of discontinuance with preice with the New York Sta
Supreme Court with respect to the litigation.

The principal terms of the Settlement Agreement asefollows: 1) DISH Network paid $700,080 an account for the benefit
Cablevision and the Company; 2) Cablevision agteesell its multichannel video and data distribotgervice spectrum licenses in the U.¢
DISH Network; 3) simultaneously with the executioh the Settlement Agreement, DISH Network enteretb ia longterm affiliatior
agreement with AMC Network Entertainment LLC, WEoMven's Entertainment LLC, The Independent Film @eahLC, Sundance Chani
L.L.C. and Fuse Network LLC, a subsidiary of Thedi#é®n Square Garden Company, that provided fornpson of carriage of all of tt
Company's networks by no later than November 1228td 4) an affiliate of DISH Network agreed taveey its 20%membership interest
VOOM HD to Rainbow Programming Holdings LLC ("Raove Programming Holdings"), a wholly owned subsigdiaf AMC Networks.

In connection with the Distribution, AMC Networksich Rainbow Programming Holdings (collectively, teMC Parties”) and CS(
Holdings entered into an agreement (the “VOOM latign Agreement”), which provides that, CSC Holdirigad full
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control over the litigation with DISH Network anldet decision with respect to settlement was to beenj@intly by CSC Holdings and the AN
Parties. In addition, the VOOM Litigation Agreemeirbvides that CSC Holdings and the AMC Partied slilare equally in the procet
(including in the value of any norash consideration) of the settlement in the litagawith DISH Network. The AMC Parties were respitnte
for the legal fees and costs until such costs mheim agreed upon threshold, which occurred irhiné quarter of 2012, subsequent to wl
CSC Holdings and the AMC Parties bear such feesapdnses equally.

The allocation of the settlement proceeds betwdenAMC Parties and CSC Holdings will be determineasuant to the VOO
Litigation Agreement. The AMC Parties and CSC Hogdi agreed that, pending a determination of tleeation of the proceeds, $350,080
the cash proceeds would be distributed to eacheo€ompany and Cablevision. Accordingly, the portissbursed to the Company is inclu
in cash and cash equivalents in the consolidatethba sheet at December 31, 2012. The final amoulné allocated to the Company is ye
be determined and may be significantly less tha&5OERO0 .

As the Settlement Agreement and the long-termiatifin agreement entered into on October 21, 2@2esent a multiplelemen
arrangement that includes elements other than ueyeand there is vendor-specific objective evideot¢he fair value of the lonterr
affiliation agreement, which is the only undelivérelement of the arrangement, the Company detedmihat the residual method
accounting is the most appropriate method to aéothe consideration among the disparate elemdntiseoarrangement. Accordingly,
October 21, 2012, the fair value of the affiliatiagreement must be deferred and recognized asue\es the programming services
provided.

Based on the Company's fair value assessment d@ffiliation agreement, the affiliation fees payalbly DISH Network to the Compa
from the effective date of the affiliation agreerheh October 21, 2012 through December 31, 2013batew fair value by approximate
$31,000and the affiliation fees payable by DISH Networleothe remaining term of the affiliation agreemeagiresent fair value. As a res
the Company recorded the $31,8ess of the fair value of the affiliation agreemever the contractual affiliation fees as defémevenu
on October 21, 2012, of which approximately $5,02% recognized as revenue during 2012 as the pnogirag services were provided. 1
remaining $26,000s included in deferred revenue in the December2B12 consolidated balance sheet and will be razedrratably ove
2013 as the programming services are provided.

Deferred litigation settlement proceeds of appratety $308,000s recorded in the consolidated balance sheet eember 31, 201
which is the result of the $350,000 temporary a@tmn of proceeds, less the $31,000 of deferredme® and less an $11,0@&eivable relate
to VOOM HD'’s previous affiliation agreement with DISH NetwoAt. December 31, 2012, there is no minimum amotisettlement procee
that the Company is guaranteed. As a resultjtigation settlement gain, if any, was recognize®012 and such gain, if any, which coulc
material, will not be recognized until realizedlfoving the final resolution of the allocation oftkettlement proceeds.

Other Legal Matters

On April 15, 2011, Thomas C. Dolan, a directorhef Company and Executive Vice President, StratagyDevelopment, in the Office
the Chairman and a director of Cablevision, filethasuit against Cablevision and RMH in New YorkpS&meCourt. The lawsuit rais
compensation-related claims (seeking approximékéll;,000) related to events in 2005. The matter is beingdiead under the direction of
independent committee of the board of director€ablevision. In connection with the Distribution regment, Cablevision indemnified
Company and RMH against any liabilities and expsnstated to this lawsuit. Based on the indemrificaand Cablevisios’ and th
Company'’s assessment of this possible loss comtaygeo provision has been made for this matténénconsolidated financial statements.

In addition to the matters discussed above, the famy is party to various lawsuits and claims in tirdinary course of busine
Although the outcome of these other matters cahaqgiredicted with certainty and the impact of timalfresolution of these other matters
the Companys results of operations in a particular subseqrepurting period is not known, management doedali¢ve that the resolution
these matters will have a material adverse effacthe financial position of the Company or the iapibf the Company to meet its financ
obligations as they become due.

Note 12. Equity and Long-Term Incentive Plans

In connection with the Distribution, the Companyptkéd the AMC Networks Inc. 2011 Employee StocknRthe 2011 Employee Stoi
Plan™), the AMC Networks Inc. 2011 Stock Plan foorNEmployee Directors (the “2011 Non-Employee DivecPlan”) and the AMC
Networks Inc. 2011 Cash Incentive Plan (2011 Cash Incentive Plan™All Plans were amended and restated and approvethd
Company’s shareholders on June 5, 2012.

Equity Plans

Under the 2011 Employee Stock Plan, the Compaumytisorized to grant incentive stock options, mmdified stock options, restrict
shares, restricted stock units, SARs and othertyfased awards. The Company may grant awards gotous,000,000shares of AM(
Networks Class A Common Stock (subject to certdjnsgtments). Stock options and SARs undel
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2011 Employee Stock Plan must be granted with @ncése price of not less than the fair market valfia share of AMC Networks Clas:
Common Stock on the date of grant and must expirkater than 10years from the date of grant. The terms and cmomditof awards grant
under the 2011 Employee Stock Plan, including wgstind exercisability, are determined by the Cormspéon Committee of the Board
Directors (“Compensation Committee”) and may ineluerms or conditions based upon performance iexiter

Subsequent to the Distribution through December281? , the Company granted 893,8@stricted share awards to certain empla
under the 2011 Employee Stock Plan, that vest erttiiid anniversary of the grant date. The vestintgria for 284,086f those restricte
shares also includes the achievement of certaiionpeance targets. As of December 31, 2012 , these2#04,91&hare awards available
future grant under the 2011 Employee Stock Plan.

Under the 2011 Non-Employee Director Plan, the Camypis authorized to grant nqualified stock options, restricted stock ut
restricted shares, SARs and other equity-baseddsw@he Company may grant awards for up to 465380@0es of AMC Networks Class
Common Stock (subject to certain adjustments). KStgtions under the 2011 Ndfmployee Director Plan must be granted with an @se
price of not less than the fair market value ohare of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock on thte dd grant and must expire no le
than 10 years from the date of grant. The ternts @nditions of awards granted under the 2011 Employee Director Plan, includi
vesting and exercisability, are determined by thenffensation Committee. Unless otherwise provideghiapplicable award agreement, s
options granted under this plan will be fully vesand exercisable, and restricted stock units gtchnhder this plan will be fully vested, uj
the date of grant.

In connection with the Distribution, non-employeieedtors were issued 61,54Bares of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock
17,981 AMC Networks stock options under the 201 h{&mployee Director Plan. In 2012 and 2011, the Gamy granted 30,393 ar38,95:
restricted stock units, respectively, to non-empbgirectors under the 2011 NBmployee Director Plan, which vested on the graate dA:
of December 31, 2012, there are 316,129 share aveamallable for future grant under the 2011 Non-Eyge Director Plan.

Stock Option Award Activity

The following table summarizes activity relating @mpany employees who held AMC Networks stock amtifor the year end
December 31, 2012 :

Shares Under Option _ Weighted
Weighted Average
Time Performance Average Contractual Aggregate
Vesting Vesting Exercise Price Term Intrinsic
Options Options Per Share (in years) Value(a)
Balance, December 31, 2011 136,54: 2500 $ 10.7¢ 3.08 % 3,73:
Exercised (7,390 — $ 13.4:
Balance, December 31, 2012 129,15: 2500 $ 10.5¢ 205 $ 5,12
Options exercisable at December 31, 2012 129,15! 2,50C $ 10.5¢ 2.05 $ 5,12¢
Options expected to vest in the future — — n/e n/a n/e

(a) The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated asdifference between (i) the exercise price of thdanlying award and (ii) the quot
price of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock on Deben31, 2012 or December 31, 2011, as indicated.

In addition, the following table summarizes activielating to Cablevision and MSG employees whal #eIC Networks stock optiol
for the year ended December 31, 2012 :

Shares Under Option _ Weighted
Weighted Average
Time Performance Average Contractual Aggregate
Vesting Vesting Exercise Price Term Intrinsic
Options Options Per Share (in years) Value(a)
Balance, December 31, 2011 1,144,46! 78,40( $ 12.0Z 3.29 $ 31,25:
Exercised (818,089 (42,800 $ 10.11
Balance, December 31, 2012 326,37t 35,60 $ 16.57 342 % 11,91¢
Options exercisable at December 31, 2012 276,37t 35,60 $ 15.0¢ 3.00 $ 10,74¢
Options expected to vest in the future 50,00( —  $ 26.11 6.06 $ 1,17¢




(a) The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated aglifierence between (i) the exercise price of theéanlying award ar

F-30




AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(i) the quoted price of AMC Networks Class A Comm8tock on December 31, 2012 or December 31, 2044 indicated, ai
December 31, 2012 in the case of the stock opgapscted to vest in the future.

Restricted Share Award Activity

The following table summarizes activity relating@mpany employees who held AMC Networks restrictbdres for the year enc
December 31, 2012 :

Weighted
Number of Average Fair
Number of Performance Value Per
Restricted Restricted Share at Date
Shares Shares of Grant
Unvested award balance, December 31, 2011 679,57: 205,19 $ 28.2¢
Vested (207,99) — % 9.01
Forfeited (38,54¢) — | @ 33.7i
Unvested award balance, December 31, 2012 433,03( 205,190 g 34.1¢

The following table summarizes activity relating@ablevision and MSG employees who held AMC Netwaestricted shares for
year endeDecember 31, 2012 :

Weighted
Number of Average Fair
Number of Performance Value Per
Restricted Restricted Share at Date
Shares Shares of Grant
Unvested award balance, December 31, 2011 1,366,01: 135,17¢ $ 18.67
Vested (825,159 — 8 9.0t
Forfeited (70,49%) — 3 30.4¢
Unvested award balance, December 31, 2012 470,36: 13517 ¢ 30.41

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , 1,03%hdees of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock preslipissued to employe
of AMC Networks, Cablevision and MSG vested. In mection with the employeesatisfaction of the statutory minimum tax withhaolg
obligations for the applicable income and other leypent taxes, 352,910 of these shares, with aneggte value of $15,988 were
surrendered to the Company. These acquired shasesgll as 109,048rfeited unvested restricted shares have beemsifitab as treasu
stock.

Restricted Share Unit Activity

The following table summarizes activity relating @mpany employees who held AMC Networks restricthdre units for the ye
ended December 31, 2012 :

Weighted
Number of Average Fair
Number of Performance Value Per
Restricted Restricted Share Unit at Date
Share Units Share Units of Grant
Unvested award balance, December 31, 2011 — —  $ —
Granted 353,82 97,91f % 45.01
Forfeited (16,199 — | @ 45.0¢
Unvested award balance, December 31, 2012 337,63« 97,91f ¢ 45.07]
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Sharebased Compensation Expense

The following table presents the shin@sed compensation expense reduced for forfeiteesded during the year ended Decembe
2012, 2011 and 2010. Forfeitures were estimateddoas historical experience. To the extent actaallts of forfeitures differ from tho
estimates, such amounts will be recorded as arstadgunt in the period the estimates are revised.

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Stock options (including performance based options) $ 69 $ 83¢ % 1,32¢
Stock appreciation rights — (423 93¢
Restricted shares/units (including performance dabares/units) 17,13: 15,17: 14,93¢
Share-based compensation $ 17,20: $ 1558¢ §  17,20¢

For periods prior to the Distribution, the Companyharebased compensation includes amounts related to &wnpmployee
participating in the Cablevision equity awards peogs, as well as amounts related to Cablevisioparate employees and nemploye:
directors to the extent allocated to the Compawy.deriods after the Distribution, the Company oioger receives an allocation of shagese:
compensation expense for Cablevision corporate @mapbk and non-employee directors, including expeziaged to the Comparg/Executiv
Chairman with respect to his participation in th@bf@vision equity awards program (since he remaareéxecutive officer of Cablevisio
The Company does not record any shaased compensation expense for AMC Networks stptikrms or restricted shares held by Cablevi
and MSG employees, however such stock options siriceed shares do have a dilutive effect on thenfanys net income per share. 1
Company records share-based compensation expanSalitevision and MSG stock options and restristieares/units held by the Company’
employees.

Sharebased compensation expense is recognized in theolidated statements of income as part of selljggeral and administrati
expenses. As of December 31, 2012 , there was 424Btotal unrecognized shabased compensation costs related to Company engs
who held unvested AMC Networks and Cablevisionrietstd shares/units. The unrecognized compensatishis expected to be recogni
over a weighted-average remaining period of appnatly 1.84 years. There were no costs relatechaoebased compensation that w
capitalized.

The Company receives income tax deductions relédedestricted share/units, stock options or othguitg awards granted to
employees by the Company, Cablevision or MSG, lbgschot receive income tax deductions for Compayte awards held by Cablevisi
or MSG employees. The Company uses the 'with-atidewi' approach to determine the recognition andsmement of excess tax benefits.

Cash flows resulting from excess tax benefits dmesified as cash flows from financing activiti&scess tax benefits are realized
benefits from tax deductions for options exercisedl restricted shares issued in excess of therddféax asset attributable to st
compensation costs for such awards. Excess taXitseok$7,484 were recorded for the year endedebdwer 31, 2012.

Treatment of Previously Outstanding Sh&&sed Payment Awards After the AMC Networks Digtioin

In connection with the Distribution and as provided in Cablevision$ equity plans, each stock option and SAR outstandi thi
effective date of the Distribution became two stagkions or two SARS, as the case may be: (i) oite mespect to Cablevisioe’CNYC
Class A Common Stock and (ii) one with respectite Companys Class A Common Stock. The existing exercise pofeach stoc
option/SAR was allocated between the existing Gadilen stock option/SAR and the Compasiyiew stock option/SAR based on the weig
average trading price of Cablevision’'s and the Camyjs common shares for the 10 trading days subsedaetfte Distribution and tl
underlying share amount took into account the 1 distribution ratio. As a result of this adjustmeapproximately 73.59% of the pre-
Distribution exercise price of stock options/SARasvallocated to the Cablevision stock options/SARS approximately 26.41%as allocate
to the Company’s new stock options/SARs.

On February 9, 2010, Cablevision distributed tcsttsckholders all of the outstanding common stack8G (the “MSG Distribution).
As a result of the Distribution and the MSG Distttibn, certain employees of MSG hold stock optid®8Rs and restricted stock with resy
to AMC Networks Class A Common Stock. In additias,a result of the MSG Distribution, certain empley of the Company held MSG st
options, SARs and restricted shares with respeiS& Class A Common Stock as of the MSG Distributiate.
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Long-Term Incentive Plans

Under the terms of the 2011 Cash Incentive PlaanGbmpany is authorized to grant a cash awardrtaineemployees. The terms
conditions of such awards are determined by the ggmsation Committee of the CompanyBoard of Directors, may include the achievet
of certain performance criteria and may extendafperiod not to exceed ten years.

In connection with the long-term incentive awards$standing, the Company recorded expense of $11,821,392 and $16,20@r the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ctasbe. Accrued liabilities for lon-term incentive awards of $20,673 and $18,487
included in accrued employee related costs and @#islities in the consolidated balance sheetBatember 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti
These liabilities include certain performarussed awards for which the performance criteriarf@d/et been met as of December 31, 20:
such awards are based on achievement of certdiorpeamnce criteria through December 31, 2013 or 204 Company has accrued the prc
rata amount earned that it currently believes wilmately be paid based upon the performancer@itstablished for these performarzese:
awards. If the Company subsequently determinesthieaperformance criteria for such awards is nobpble of being achieved, the Comp
would reverse the accrual in respect of such awatidat time.

Note 13. Benefit Plans

Through June 30, 2011, the date of the Distribytazertain employees of the Company participate@ablevision’s noreontributory
qualified defined benefit cash balance pension fttaa “Cash Balance Pension Plan”) and non-conitpunongqualified defined benefit exce
cash balance plan (the “Excess Cash Balance Plemgonnection with the Cash Balance Pension Plahtha Excess Cash Balance |
(collectively, the “Pension Plansfhe Company was charged by Cablevision for creddse into an account established for each partit
Such credits were based upon a percentage ofleligise pay and a market-based rate of return.

Certain employees of the Company patrticipate inl€aion’s qualified defined contribution 401(k)v&ags plan (the “401(k) Plan’gnc
non-qualified excess savings plan (the “ExcessrgviPlan”). Under the 401(k) Plan, a @uxalified retirement savings plan, participa
Company employees may contribute into their placpants a percentage of their eligible pay on ateafx basis as well as a percentag
their eligible pay on an aftéax basis. The Company makes matching contributionisehalf of participating employees in accordanitk the
terms of the 401(k) Plan. In addition to the matghcontribution, the Company will make a discretipnyearend contribution to employ
401(k) Plan accounts equal to 4% of eligible conspéion, subject to certain conditions.

The Excess Savings Plan is a rquralified deferred compensation plan that operate®njunction with the 401(k) Plan. The Comp
provides a matching contribution to the Excess i&/Plan similar to the 401(k) Plan.

Total expense related to all benefit plans was 28,9%$7,865 and $7,285 for the years ended Deceg&ihe2012 , 2011 and 2010
respectively. The Company does not provide posgretnt benefits for any of its employees.

Note 14. Related Party Transactions

Members of the Dolan Family, for purposes of Secti@(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934am&nded, including trusts for
benefit of the Dolan Family, collectively benefitjaown all of the Company’s outstanding Class Bn@oon Stock and own less than 2¥the
Company’s outstanding Class A Common Stock. Sudreshof the Company’Class A Common Stock and Class B Common £
collectively, represent approximately 66% of thgragate voting power of the Compasyutstanding common stock. Members of the C
Family are also the controlling stockholders offb@ablevision and MSG.

In connection with the Distribution, the Companyezad into various agreements with Cablevisionhsasa distribution agreement, a
disaffiliation agreement, a transition serviceseagnent, an employee matters agreement and cedkited party arrangements. TF
agreements govern certain of the Companglationships with Cablevision subsequent toDRistribution and provide for the allocation
employee benefits, taxes and certain other ligdsliand obligations attributable to periods priorthie Distribution. These agreements
include arrangements with respect to transitiomises and a number of aging commercial relationships. The distributiomesggnent include
an agreement that the Company and Cablevision dgr@eovide each other with indemnities with regpecliabilities arising out of tt
businesses Cablevision transferred to the Company.

The Company provides services to and receivescafiom Cablevision and MSG. Until the Distributidate, the consolidated finans
statements of the Company reflect the applicatioceatain cost allocation policies of Cablevisidhanagement believes that these alloca
were made on a reasonable basis. However, it ipnaaticable to determine whether the charged atsa@present amounts that might
been incurred on a stand-alone basis, including agparate independent publicly owned companyha® tare no comparspecific o
comparable industry benchmarks with which to malehsestimates. Further, as many of these transactie conducted between subsidi
under common control of the Dolan Family, amounts
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charged for these services may not represent amthadt might have been received or incurred iftthesactions were based upon arteisgtt
negotiations. Through the Distribution date, thempany paid Cablevision a management fee pursuaatdonsulting agreement betw
Cablevision and certain of the Compasgubsidiaries. The consulting agreement was temaiinon the Distribution date and the Compan
not replace it.

Revenues, net

The Company records revenues, net from subsidiafi€ablevision and MSG. In addition, AMC NetworReoadcasting & Technoloy
has entered into agreements with MSG to provid®uwuartransponder, technical and support serviaesitih 2020. Revenues, net from rel;
parties amounted to $32,195 , $31,885 , and $29@#08e years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 @hd 2respectively.

Technical and Operating

The Company and its related parties routinely eintertransactions with each other in the ordinzoyrse of business. Such transact
include various studio production services the Canypprovides to MSG for which the charges are ctdl@ as a reduction of the rele
expenses. In addition, certain related partiesigeovarious digital media and administrative supganctions which primarily include salar
and facilities costs charged to the Company. Funibee, through December 31, 2011, employees ofSbrapany participated in health ¢
welfare plans sponsored by Cablevision. Health amdfare benefit costs have generally been chargedCablevision based upon -
proportionate number of participants in the plans.

Amounts charged to the Company, included in teclrdnd operating expenses, pursuant to transaatithsts related parties amoun
to $620 , $5,040 and $3,971 for the years ende@mmber 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Selling, General and Administrative

Amounts charged (credited) to the Company, includesklling, general and administrative expensassyant to the transition servi
agreement and for other transactions, includingagament fees allocated by Cablevision for peribdsugh the Distribution date, with
related parties amounted to $(206) , $57,004 ar 280 for the years ended December 31, 2012 , 26d12010, respectively. Amoun
charged to the Company for the year ended Decefihe2012are net of shared legal fees charged to Cablevissociated with the DIS
Network Contract Dispute (see Note 1

Through the Distribution date, general and admiaiste costs, including costs of maintaining cogterheadquarters, facilities ¢
common support functions (such as executive managgrhuman resources, legal, finance, tax, acaoginéiudit, treasury, risk managem
strategic planning, information technology, etbdye been charged to the Company by Cablevisioditiddally, the Company charges M
for a portion of the Company’'leased facilities utilized by MSG which such aestbursements are recorded as a reduction togefjenere
and administrative expenses. Subsequent to theilidisbn date, amounts charged by Cablevision grecharges pursuant to a trans
services agreement. See also Transition Servicesefigent discussion below.

Through the Distribution date, the Company paidl@a&bion a management fee pursuant to a consujngement between Cablevis
and certain of the ComparsySubsidiaries. The consulting agreement was taednon the Distribution date and the Company didreplac
it.

Transition Services Agreement

In connection with the Distribution, CablevisiondaAMC Networks entered into a Transition Servicegrdement under which,
exchange for the fees specified in such agreen@atilevision agreed to provide transition servicéb wegard to such areas as accoun
information systems, risk management and emplogeeces, compensation and benefits. Under the TiamsServices Agreement, AN
Networks also provides certain services to Cabileriand MSG on behalf of Cablevisic

Under the Transition Services Agreement, AMC Neksoprovides transition services to Cablevision an8G with regard to it
information technology systems that AMC Networksb{&vision and MSG may share. AMC Networks and @abion, as parties receivi
services under the agreement, have agreed to infyetha party providing services for losses incdrigy such party that arise out of or
otherwise in connection with the provision by syelrty of services under the agreement, exceptaasitent that such losses result fromr
providing partys gross negligence, willful misconduct or breaclit®bbligations under the agreement. Similarlygheparty providing servic
under the agreement has agreed to indemnify thg pageiving services for losses incurred by suattypthat arise out of or are otherwis:
connection with the indemnifying party’s provisiari services under the agreement if such lossedtrsem the providing partys gros
negligence, willful misconduct or breach of itsigations under the agreement.

F-34




AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Share-based Compensation and Long-Term IncentaesHExpense

Cablevision charged the Company through the Digtidln date its proportionate share of expenseseaetits related to Cablevisian’
employee stock plans and Cablevision’s laagn incentive plans. Such amounts are includestliing, general and administrative expens
the consolidated statements of income. The long-iecentive plans are funded by the Company andeagde liabilities of $18,13@wvhich
includes $3,475 attributable to the Company’s 2[@ihh-term incentive plan) related to these plans arkudtedl in accrued employee rele
costs and other liabilities in the Compasygonsolidated balance sheet at December 31, Z&lihe obligations related to stock option
restricted share awards under the Cablevision gitzsis are satisfied by Cablevision, the allocatimthe Company of its proportionate shar
the related expenses through June 30, 2011 ictedas capital contributions in the consolidatedrfcial statements.

Treatment of Cablevision Long-Term Incentive Plarafds After the Distribution

In 2011, 2010 and 2009, Cablevision granted tlyems- performance awards to certain executive offi@nd other members of
Company’s management under Cableviso2006 Cash Incentive Plan. The 2009 awards weig ipaMarch 2012. The Cablevisi
performance metrics in the awards granted in 2@10ettain executive officers and other employeeshef Company were replaced v
Company performance metrics. The awards grantedrtain executive officers and other employeefhiefGompany in March 2011 under
Cablevision 2006 Cash Incentive Plan were replacellily 2011 by awards granted under the Commag911 Cash Incentive Plan, and
Cablevision performance metrics related to thosardsvwere replaced with Company performance methosounts applicable to employe
of the Company are and will continue to be refldas liabilities, based on achievement of certarfggmance criteria as noted above, in
Company’s consolidated balance sheets until settled

RMH Promissory Note with Madison Square Garden

As of December 31, 2009, Madison Square Garden, bB.Bubsidiary of MSG, a related party of Cablewvishad extended advan
aggregating $190,000 RMH. On January 28, 2010, in connection with dieribution of MSG from Cablevision, the advaneesre replace
with a promissory note from RMH to Madison Squamrd&n, L.P. having a principal amount of $190,0@M ,nterest rate of 3.25%nd ¢
maturity date of June 30, 2010 . In March 2010,80h80,000 of indebtedness was repaid by the CommaMSG, including $914f interes
accrued from January 28, 2010 through the datepzEfyment, which was funded by a capital contrilsutiom Cablevision.
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Note 15. Cash Flows

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company’s nofi-gagesting and financing activities and other dappental data were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Continuing Operations:

Deemed capital (distribution) contribution relatedhe utilization of Cablevision tax
losses (see Note 10) $ (1,799 $ 36,867 $ 52,82:

Deemed capital (distribution) contribution, netated to adjustments to the liability for
uncertain tax positions and net deferred tax assetsresult of the Distribution (see

Note 10) (1,14% 44,59¢ —
Capital distribution for the transfer of a promissnote receivable to Cablevision (se

Promissory Note discussion below) — (17,119 —
Deemed capital distribution to Cablevision relai@@émployee benefit plans as a result

of the Distribution (see Employee Matters Agreentistussion below) — (6,319 —
Deemed capital distribution related to tax credttbzed by Cablevision — (2,58¢€) —
Deemed capital distribution associated with thaasse of debt to Cablevision (see

Note 1) — (1,250,001 —
Capital distribution related to the entities tramséd to Cablevision on December 31,

2010 (see Note 1) — — 41,27:
Deemed capital contribution related to the allamatf Cablevision share-based

compensation expense — 8,34: 16,26°
Leasehold improvements paid by landlord 2,93¢ 15C 554
Increase (decrease) in capital lease obligatiodgelated assets 1,39¢ 39 (279
Capital expenditures incurred but not yet paid 5,391 — —

Discontinued Operations:
Deemed capital contribution related to the allamatf Cablevision share-based

compensation expense — — 4,29:
Supplemental Data:

Cash interest paid—continuing operations 113,49: 78,71« 72,33t

Income taxes paid, net—continuing operations (seerhe Taxes Paid, Net discussion

below) 40,52: 11,56¢ 5,217

Income taxes refunded, net—discontinued operations — — @
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Promissory Note

In September 2009, RMH and one of its subsidiahiaswas transferred by the Company to CablevisioDecember 31, 2010 agree:
the terms of a promissory note having an initi#hgipal amount of $@&nd increasing from time to time by advances madBMH, with ar
interest rate of 8.625% . Interest income recoghlze RMH related to this note amounted to $120 $6@0for the years ended December
2011 and 2010, respectively. On January 31, 20MHK Ristributed to a subsidiary of Cablevision dllits rights, title and interest in and to
promissory note. This distribution amounting to 318, including principal and accrued and unpaid irgerés reflected as a cap
distribution in the consolidated statement of stmi#lers’ deficiency for the year ended Decembe281,1.

Employee Matters Agreement

In connection with the Distribution, AMC Networksitered into an Employee Matters Agreement with @ablon which allocate
assets, liabilities and responsibilities with regpe certain employee compensation and benefitspnd programs and certain other rel
matters. As a result of such agreement, AMC Netwoelcorded a net receivable from Cablevision o1&3, an increase in accrued empla
related costs of $7,479 and a capital distributidn$6,313 which decreased additional paid in cépiiathe Companys statement
stockholders’ deficiency for the transfer to thentpany from Cablevision of the obligations relatediie Company’s employeegarticipan
accounts in the Cablevision Excess Savings Plar6$§3 and the Cablevision Excess Cash Balance d&teri@an $(3,863mnd for thi
Company'’s obligation to Cablevision for the $5,90%unded liability associated with Company emplopeeticipants in Cablevisios’'Cas
Balance Pension Plan. In addition, the Company aedlits longterm incentive plan and stock appreciation righabilities and increast
amounts due to related parties by $6,7dR2its obligation to pay Cablevision for its alkted share of the related expense for Cable\
corporate employees through June 30, 2011. As oéber 31, 2011, these related party balancessedtied.

Income Taxes Paid, Ne

Income taxes paid, net increased by $28,866 2011 to 2012 primarily due to federal estindatex payments during the year en
December 31, 2012 , which were based on annuatizedble income after utilization of NOLs.

Note 16. Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company classifie®pisrations into twaeportable segments: National Networks, and Inteynal anc
Other. These reportable segments are strategindsssunits that are managed separately.

The Company generally allocates all corporate aeaahcosts to the Compasytwo reportable segments based upon their propatt
estimated usage of services, including such casexacutive salaries and benefits, costs of mainmigicorporate headquarters, facilities
common support functions (such as human resoulegal, finance, tax, accounting, audit, treasuigk management, strategic planning
information technology) as well as sales suppartfions and creative and production services.

The Company evaluates segment performance basewamal factors, of which the primary financial m&® is business segm
adjusted operating cash flow (defined as operaticgme (loss) before depreciation and amortizatetrarebased compensation expens
benefit and restructuring expense or credit), a-@G&#\P measure. The Company has presented the comfgotteat reconcile adjust
operating cash flow to operating income, an acce@AAP measure. Information as to the continuingrapions of the Compang/reportabl
segments is set forth below.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 2012

National International Inter-segment
Networks and Other eliminations Consolidated
Revenues, net
Advertising $ 522,91 $ 147 % — ¢ 523,06
Distribution and other 731,26¢ 114,39« (16,150 829,51:
Consolidated revenues, net $ 1,254,18 $ 114,54: $ (16,150 % 1,352,57
Adjusted operating cash flow (deficit) $ 492,12¢ $ (30,040 $ 3,32¢  $ 465,41
Depreciation and amortization (70,436 (14,949 — (85,38()
Share-based compensation expense (13,57¢) (3,62€) — (17,207)
Restructuring credit — 3 — 3
Operating income (loss) $ 408,11 $ (48,607 $ 3,32¢ $ 362,83t
Capital Expenditures $ 5541 $ 13,01¢ $ —  $ 18,55:
Year Ended December 31, 2011
National International Inter-segment
Networks and Other eliminations Consolidated
Revenues, net
Advertising $ 447,44¢  $ 177 $ (4549 ¢ 447,17
Distribution and other 634,90¢ 125,39¢ (29,736 740,56¢
Consolidated revenues, net $ 1,082,35; $ 12557. $ (20,190 $ 1,187,74
Adjusted operating cash flow (deficit) $ 447,55 $ (4,976 $ (866) $ 441,71:
Depreciation and amortization (85,707 (14,14°) — (99,84%)
Share-based compensation expense (12,587 (3,007%) — (15,589
Restructuring credit — 24C — 24C
Operating income (loss) $ 349,27. % (21,890 $ (86€) $ 326,51t
Capital Expenditures $ 2,817 $ 12,55 $ — $ 15,37:
Year Ended December 31, 2010
National International Inter-segment
Networks and Other eliminations Consolidated
Revenues, net
Advertising $ 397,61¢ $ 384 % (329) ¢ 397,67¢
Distribution and other 596,95¢ 104,11! (20,44%) 680,62:
Consolidated revenues, net $ 994,570 % 104,49¢ $ (20,777 % 1,078,301
Adjusted operating cash flow (deficit) $ 419,05. $ (14,68¢ $ (3,080 $ 401,27¢
Depreciation and amortization (92,73%) (13,720 — (106,45
Share-based compensation expense (13,79) (3,41%) — (17,206
Restructuring credit — 2,21¢ — 2,21¢
Operating income (loss) $ 312,52 % (29,609 $ (3,08¢ % 279,83t
Capital Expenditures $ 1,600 $ 15.64: $ — 3 17,24:

Intersegment eliminations are primarily revenues recgghby the International and Other segment foistrassion revenues recogni:
by AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology and tieemsing of its program rights by the national pesgming networks.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Inter-segment revenues
National Networks $ (569 $ 459 $ (325)
International and Other (15,587 (29,736 (20,44Y
$ (16,15() $ (20,190 $ (20,779)

One customer accounted for 11¥the consolidated revenues, net for the year éieErember 31, 2012. Two customers accounte
10% and 12% of consolidated revenues, net for #a& gnded December 31, 2011 and 11% and df286nsolidated revenues, net for the
ended December 31, 2010.

Failure to renew affiliation agreements with then@pany’s largest customers, or renewal on less favorabes, or the termination
those agreements could have a material adverset efifethe Company’s business. A reduced distributd the Companyg programmin
networks would adversely affect the Company’s iatiibn fee revenue, and impact the Compargbility to sell advertising or the rates
Company charges for such advertising.

Substantially all revenues and assets of the Coynaamattributed to or located in the U.S.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Note 17. Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the Company’s seldaaarterly financial data for the years ended bdus 31, 2012 and 2011 :

For the three months ended,
September 30, December 31,

2012; March 31, 2012  June 30, 2012 2012 2012 2012
Revenues, net $ 326,23¢ $ 327,57 $ 332,05t % 366,71: $ 1,352,57
Operating expenses (229,200 (229,29) (245,19) (286,04 (989,739
Operating income $ 97,03¢ $ 98,27¢ $ 86,85¢ $ 80,66 $ 362,83t
Income from continuing operations $ 43,077 $ 41,408 $ 36,54 $ 15,19: $ 136,21t
Income from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes 104 10t 10t — 314
Net income $ 43,18 $ 41,51C % 36,64t $ 15,19. % 136,53(
Basic net income per share:
Income from continuing operations 0.62 0.5¢ 0.52 0.22 1.94
Income from discontinued operations — — — — —
Net income 0.6z 0.5¢ 0.5z 0.2z 1.94
Diluted net income per share:
Income from continuing operations 0.6C 0.57 0.51 0.21 1.8¢
Income from discontinued operations — — — — —
Net income 0.6C 0.5¢ 0.51 0.21 1.8¢
For the three months ended,
September 30, December 31,

2011; March 31, 2011  June 30, 2011 2011 2011 2011
Revenues, net $ 272,90 $ 291,96! $ 283,91: $ 338,95¢ $ 1,187,74
Operating expenses (202,22) (209,69)) (189,47() (259,84() (861,22)
Operating income $ 70,67¢ $ 82,27: $ 94,44: % 79,11¢ $ 326,51t
Income from continuing operations $ 29,72: $ 27,05¢ $ 40,317 $ 29,26¢ $ 126,36:

Income (loss) from discontinued

operations, net of income taxes 96 97 (319 215 92
Net income $ 29,81¢ $ 27,158 $ 40,00: $ 29,47¢ $ 126,45:
Basic net income (loss) per share(a):
Income from continuing operations $ 04: $ 03¢ $% 05¢ $ 04z $ 1.82
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ~ $ — % — $ — 3 — $ =
Net income $ 04: $ 03¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 04z $ 1.8
Diluted net income per share(a):
Income from continuing operations $ 04: $ 03¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 04C $ 1.7¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ~ $ — 3 — 3 —  $ — 3 —
Net income $ 04: $ 03¢ % 05t % 041 % 1.7¢

(&) Common shares assumed to be outstanding for beth &ad diluted earnings per share during the threeths ended March 31, 2(
and June 30, 2011 totaled 69,161,006presenting the number of shares of Company ammstock issued to Cablevision sharehol
on the Distribution date, and excludes unvestedtantling restricted shares, based on a distribuditim of oneshare of AMC Network
common stock for every four shares of Cablevisiommon stock outstanding.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Contirad)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

As set forth in the table above, there have beangés in the level of the Compasyevenues, net from quarter to quarter and/orgdt
from year to year due primarily to increased digttion and other revenue items and advertisingmaseln addition, the Comparsybperatin
expenses have also changed from quarter to quartiéor year over year due primarily to the timifigh® exhibition, promotion and market
of program rights and/or program rights write-doviased on managementissessment of programming usefulness. In addditime change
in operating income, non-operating income and egpdtems such as interest expense, net, wfitef deferred financing costs, loss
extinguishment of debt and income tax expenseialpact quarter over quarter and year over yeamgeme.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE I
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(Dollars in thousands)

(Recovery of)

Balance at Provision Deductions/
Beginning for Bad Write-Offs and Balance at
of Period Debt Other Charges End of Period
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 3,09 % (1,265 % (449 ~ $ 1,37¢
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 8,321 % 33 % (5,567 * $ 3,09:
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 7,767 $ 1,48  $ (930) » $ 8,321

Amounts in 2012 and 2011 represent primarily tinte-off of certain uncollectible trade receivables thad previously been ful
reserved. Amounts in 2010 represent primarily thigevoff of trade receivables following the filing of bleruptcy of certain advertise

and a multichannel video programming distributor.

*



AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(Dollars in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

Exhibit 12

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Earnings:
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeome
taxes $ 222,27. $ 210,61 $ 206,26: $ 158,95 (17,849
Fixed charges 132,71¢ 100,30° 79,92: 84,47 106,22
Total earnings as adjusted $ 354,99 $ 310,91 $ 286,18! $ 243,42 88,38!
Fixed Charges:
Interest Expense (*) $ 127,77¢ $ 9587( $ 75800 $ 79,77¢ 101,48’
Portion of rents representative of an interestofiact 4,93¢ 4,43 4,121 4,69: 4,74(
Total fixed charges $ 132,71¢ $ 100,30 $ 79,920 $ 84,47 106,22
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 2.7 3.1 3.€ 2.€ 0.€ (a)

(a) For the year ended December 31, 2008, earningsinguficient to cover fixed charges by $17.8 roitli

(*) Interest expense includes the amortized premiuisspdnts and capitalized expenses related to iedakss.



Subsidiaries of the Registrant
AMC Networks Inc.

Subsidiary

Jurisdiction of Formation

Exhibit 21

Percent Owned

11 Penn TV, LLC

AMC Film Holdings LLC

AMC Network Entertainment LLC
AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology
AMC Networks Ventures LLC

AMC Television Productions LLC
AMC/Sundance Channel Global Networks LLC
American Movie Classics IV Holdings Corporation
Crossed Pens Development LLC
Digital Store LLC

Five Moons Productions | LLC

Halt and Catch Fire Productions | LLC
IFC Entertainment Holdings LLC

IFC Entertainment LLC

IFC Films LLC

IFC In Theaters LLC

IFC Productions | L.L.C.

IFC Theatres Concessions LLC

IFC Theatres, LLC

IPTV LLC

LS VOD Holdings LLC

Making Waves Studio Production LLC
Peach Pit Properties LLC

Philly Productions LLC

Rainbow Film Holdings LLC

Rainbow Media Enterprises, Inc.
Rainbow Media Holdings LLC
Rainbow National Services LLC
Rainbow Programming Holdings LLC
Rectify Productions Il LLC

Rectify Productions LLC

Red Monday Programming LLC

RMH GE Holdings I, Inc.

RNC Holding Corporation

RNC Il Holding Corporation

Selects VOD LLC

Sleuth Secrets Productions LLC
Sports On Demand LLC

Sundance Channel (UK) Limited
Sundance Channel Asia LLC
Sundance Channel Europe LLC

Delaware
Delaware
New York
New York
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%




Sundance Channel L.L.C.
Sundance Film Holdings LLC
The Independent Film Channel LLC
Turn Productions | LLC

TWD Productions Il LLC

TWD Productions Il LLC

TWD Productions IV LLC

TWD Productions LLC

Voom HD Holdings LLC

WE tv Asia LLC

WE: Women's Entertainment LLC
Wedding Central LLC

Yeah IPTV LLC

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%



Exhibit 2%

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
AMC Networks Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrélggstration statements (No. 3385361) on Form S-3 and (No. 333¥5206) on Form 8
of AMC Networks Inc. of our reports dated Februd6; 2013, with respect to the consolidated balatesets of AMC Networks Inc. as
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related cdasetl statements of income, comprehensive incomeklwolders' (deficiency) equity, a
cash flows for each of the years in the thyear period ended December 31, 2012, and the defatancial statement schedule, and
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting as of December 31, 2012, which reports appethe December 31, 2012 annual re
on Form 16K of AMC Networks Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

New York, New York
February 26, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

I, Joshua W. Sapan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K &fi& Networks Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does patain any untrue statement of a material factroit ¢o state a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts. under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the peric
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeand other financial information included insthieport, fairly present in all matel
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlie periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrarg’ other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contiantsl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(nd internal control over financial reportiras defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and pruoesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoeedo be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durimg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over finanoigdorting, or caused such internal control oveariicial reporting to be designed ur
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with genegralbepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regisgatisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiyis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures as of the end of the period covered yrépiort based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in tlegiRrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the Registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registraniourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regasit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The Registrard’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdzh on our most recent evaluation of internal @dndwver financie
reporting, to the Registrast’auditors and the audit committee of the Registrasoard of directors (or persons performing thaiwalen
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material Weasses in the design or operation of internalrobitver financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ires management or other employees who have &fis@nti role in the Registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2013 By: /sl Joshua W. Sapan
Joshua W. Sapan
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.Z

I, Sean S. Sullivan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K &fi& Networks Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does patain any untrue statement of a material factroit ¢o state a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts. under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the peric
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeand other financial information included insthieport, fairly present in all matel
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andlie periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrarg’ other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contiantsli procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(nd internal control over financial reportiras defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and puoesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoeedo be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durimg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over finanoigdorting, or caused such internal control oveariicial reporting to be designed ur
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with genegalbepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Regisgatisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiyis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures as of the end of the period covered yrépiort based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in tlegiRrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the Registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registranourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regasit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The Registrard’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdzh on our most recent evaluation of internal @dndver financie
reporting, to the Registrast’auditors and the audit committee of the Registrasoard of directors (or persons performing thaiwalen
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material Weasses in the design or operation of internalrobitver financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ires management or other employees who have &fis@nti role in the Registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2013 By: /sl Sean S. Sullivan
Sean S. Sullivan
Executive Vice President and Chief Ririal Officer




Exhibit 32

Certifications

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, each of the undezdignificers of AMC Networks Inc. ("AMC Networks")eheby certifies, to su
officer's knowledge, that AMC Networks' Annual Refpon Form 10-K for the period ended December 31L.24the "Report”) fully complie
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d)ajpglicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 that the information contained in
Report fairly presents, in all material respedis, financial condition and results of operation&\bfC Networks.

Date: February 26, 2013 By: /sl Joshua W. Sapan

Joshua W. Sapan

President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: February 26, 2013 By: /sl Sean S. Sullivan

Sean S. Sullivan
Executive Vice President and Chief Ririal Officer



